NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE
MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT DECENNIAL COMMITTEE
6834 Dempster Street
Morton Grove lllinois 60053

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2023
6:00 O'CLOCK P.M.

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Morton Grove Park District Decennial Committee,
established pursuant to P.A. 102-1088, will hold its third meeting on the 18" day of October,
2023, at 6:00 o'clock P.M., at 6834 Dempster Street, Morton Grove, lllinois 60053.

AGENDA

The agenda for the third meeting of the Morton Grove Park District Decennial Committee is as
follows:
CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
PLEDGE OF ALLIGENCE
APPROVAL OF MINTUES
a. DECENNIAL MEETING OF AUGUST 16, 2023
5. DISCUSSION OF MATERIALS PROVIDED TO COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRIOR TO MEETING

. N

a. FINAL REPORT REVIEW AND APPROVAL
6. PUBLIC COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS
7. SURVEY OF RESIDENTS IN ATTENDANCE ON MATTERS DISCUSSED AT THE MEETING
8. ADJOURNMENT

The Prairie View Community Center is an ADA accessible building. Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation
to participate in this meeting should contact the Park District’'s ADA Compliance Officer, leffrey Wait, at the Prairie View
Community Center by mail at 6834 Dempster, 5t. Morton Grove, IL 60053, by phone at (847) 965-1200, Monday through Friday
9:00am until 5:00pm or by email to jwait@mgparks.com at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL
interpreter generally require at least 3 business days’ notice. For the deaf or hearing impaired please use the lllinois Relay Center
Voice only operator at (800) 526-0857.



Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT
To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Marty O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance
Date: October 18, 2023
Subject: BINA Hearing
Issue:

To conduct a Bond Issue Notification Act (BINA) hearing.

Discussion:

The Board of Park Commissioners is required to conduct this public hearing to receive public comments
on the proposal to sell up to $1,200,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds. The bonds will be
used to maintain, improve, and protect the existing land and facilities of the District as well as to refund
certain outstanding park district obligations. The bands will be repaid from funds collected through the
2023 tax levies which will be collected in 2024.

The proceeds of the bonds, which are expected to be used for the following items, are tentative and
subject to change.

e QOriole Pool Bond and Interest Payments
e Update playgrounds at Palma Lane Park
e Tri Deck Mower

e Utility Truck

e New Roof Top Units for PVCC

e Club Fitness Improvements

We estimate the total cost of these capital projects to be $1,600,000.

Park Board Action:
Conduct a BINA hearing on October 18, 2023,



Morton Grove Park District

6834 Dempster Street ® Morton Grove, lllinois ® 60053 847/965-1200

VIl

VIIL.

XI.
X1l

X1l
X1V,

XV.

XVl

XVIIL.

XIX.

BINA Hearing and Board Meeting Agenda
October 18, 2023 at 6:30pm at PVCC MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

Board Meeting Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Additions/Changes to the Agenda

Citizens’ Comments on Agenda Items/Correspondence
Call BINA Hearing to Order

BINA Hearing Roll Call

Explanation of Hearing: Public hearing concerning the intent of the Board of Park Commissioners to sell
51,200,000 General Obligation Limited Tax Park Bonds for the purpose of refunding certain outstanding
obligations of the District and for the payment of the expenses incident thereto.

Public Comment
Adjournment of BINA Hearing
Consent Agenda:
a. Approval of Minutes: Minutes from the September 20, 2023 Board meeting
b. Approval of Financial Reports
1. Cash Summary and Revenue and Expenditure Report dated September 30, 2023
2. Invoice Distribution Report for the period ending September 30, 2023 in the amount of $108,341.70
3. Card Services Report dated September 30, 2023
Director’s Report
Attorney’s Report
Department Heads’ Reports
Village Liaison Report
New Business:
a. Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Pietron, Chair

Action Item: 2024 Capital Plan

Action Item: Disposal Ordinance 0-03-23

Action Item: Part-time/Seasonal Staff Benefit Policy Update
Action Item: Education Reimbursement Policy Update

Action Item: Exempt Overtime Compensation Policy Update
Action Item: Safety and Crisis Management Manual Approval

Citizens’ Comments on Non-Agenda Items

Commissioner Comments:
Commissioner Pietron Commissioner Liston
Commissioner Khan Commissioner Schmidt Commissioner Minx

Closed Session: | make a motion for the Board to move into closed session in accordance with the Open Meetings
Act section 120/2(c)(1).

Adjournment

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in Park District meetings should contact Jeffrey
Wait, ADA Compliance Officer, at the Prairie View Community Center at 6834 Dempster St. Morton Grove, IL 60053, by phone
at 847-965-1200, Monday through Friday 9:00am to 5:00pm or by email to jwait@mgparks.com, at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter generally require at least 5 business days advance notice. For the deaf or
hearing-impaired, please use the lllinois Relay Center voice only operator at (800) 526-0857.




Consent Agenda: October 18, 2023 — Commissioner John Pietron

Minutes:

| move to accept the recommendation of the Administration and Finance
Committee to approve the minutes of the:

e The Board Meeting held on September 20, 2023

And the Financial Reports which include:

e Cash Summary and Revenue and Expenditure Report dated September 30,
2023

e The Invoice Distribution Report ending September 30, 2023 in the amount
of $108,341.70

e Card Services Report dated September 30, 2023.



Approval of Minutes




Morton Grove Park District

6834 Dempster Street = Morton Grove, lllinois = 60053 847/965-1200

VI.

VIL.

Minutes of the 862" Board Meeting MORTON GROVE

September 20, 2023 PARK DISTRICT
Held at Prairie View Community Center

Roll Call: Commissioner Minx called the meeting to order at 6:36pm.
Commissioners Present: Mazhar Khan, John Liston, John Pietron, and Paul Minx.

Staff Present: Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director; Marty O’Brien, Superintendent of Finance; Sue
Braubach, Superintendent of Recreation; Keith Gorczyca, Superintendent of Parks and
Maintenance; and Luisa Brown, Recording Secretary.

Attorney Present: None

Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
Additions/Changes to the Agenda: None

Citizens Comments on Agenda Items/Correspondence: None

Consent Agenda:
Commissioner Pietron made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Liston to approve:
a. The minutes from the Board Meeting held on August 16, 2023.
Ayes: Commissioner Minx, Khan, and Liston. Abstain: Commissioner Pietron. Nays: 0.
Motion carried.

Commissioner Pietron made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Khan to approve:
b. The Financial Reports:
1. The Cash Summary and Revenue and Expenditure Report dated August 31, 2023,
2. The Invoice Distribution Report for the period ending August 31, 2023 in the amount
of
$218,909.08, and
3. Card Services Report dated August 31, 2023.
Ayes: Commissioner Pietron, Minx, Khan, and Liston. Nays: 0. Motion carried.

Steve Schmidt entered the meeting at 6:43pm.

Director’s Report: Director Wait stated October 7" the District will be hosting a 16" softball
tournament at Harrer Park. Visit mortongroveparks.com to register. Wait reminded everyone
that on October 14t the District’s Cold Brew event will be taking place between 1 - 5pm at
Harrer Shelter.

Attorney’s Report: Submitted electronically

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



VIIL

Village Liaison Report: None

Department Heads’ Report: Superintendent O’Brien mentioned that the finance department
has received the results back from the RFP that was submitted for auditing services. The
District has decided to accept a contract for three years from our current auditor Lauterbach
and Amen. O’Brien continued by stating the District is still working on the Member Initiative
Grant. O’Brien lastly stated that the finance department is currently working on the 2024

Budget. A public hearing regarding the budget will be held either late October or early
November.

Superintendent Gorczyca stated that the shade structures have been completed at Harrer
Park. Gorczyca mentioned that all the field houses have been changed from camps to
preschool for the upcoming year. Lasty, Gorczyca stated that renovations have been
completed at Austin Park’s ballfield and soccer fields.

Superintendent Braubach announced that recreation staff have wrapped up the summer
season and are getting ready preparing fall and winter programs. Braubach mentioned that on
September 30'" the District will be hosting another community blood drive from 8am-12pm.
Braubach stated that preschool has started with 51 students and the District’s Kinder Odyssey
program has 26 students.

New Business:

a. Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Pietron, Chair

Sponsorship Presentation: Recreation Supervisor, Susan Smentek gave a presentation
about the District’s past and present sponsorship program.

Crisis Management and Safety Manual Updates: Human Resource Generalist and Risk
Manager, Michelle Trevino, gave a presentation regarding changes and updates to the
crisis management and safety manual.

BINA Hearing Date: Commissioner Pietron made a motion, seconded by Commissioner
Liston to set the date for the BINA hearing for October 18, 2023 at 6:30pm.

Ayes: Commissioners Minx, Khan, Liston, Pietron, and Schmidt. Nays: 0. Motion
carried.

Travel, Meals, and Lodging Approval: Commissioner Pietron made a motion, seconded
by Commissioner Khan to approve the travel, meals, and lodging expense for the
Executive Director to attend NRPA’s annual conference in the amount of $2,033.89.
Ayes: Commissioners Pietron, Liston, Minx, Khan, and Schmidt. Nays: 0. Motion
carried.

Lobbyist Discussion: The Board of Park Commissioners discussed if the District should
pursue the hiring of a lobbyist.

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



Xl.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda ltems: None

Xll. Commissioner Comments:
Commissioner Pietron: Mentioned how great the staff is and thanked them. Stated to keep up
the good work.
Commissioner Liston: Thanked the entire staff, and stated how wonderful it is that the District
has picked up new sponsorship opportunities.
Commissioner Khan: Thanked the entire staff for their hard work.
Commissioner Schmidt: Stated summer is over and fall season is ahead and to keep up the good
work.
Commissioner Minx: Stated District staff does a great job. Mentioned a resident came up to him
and praised the Park District for the new dugout shade structures that have been installed.

Xlll.  Adjournment: Commissioner Liston made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Pietron
to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried by voice vote.
The meeting ended at approximately 7:37pm.

Board President, Paul Minx Board Secretary, Jeffrey Wait

COMMITTED TO QUALITY PARK AND RECREATION SERVICES



Financials

Cash Summary

e Revenue and Expenditures Report
The Invoice Distribution Report
Card Services Report



S8 V89 €906 81°919°'816 666651 ‘98S PO TVI’'96E’6 SONNA TTY - TYLOL
£€°GLE'BE LO P8BS 09T S9°E9G 19T SL"G6E'8E ONOd ONIFVATD TI0HAYd 66
£E8°¥Z8'9TC ‘9 00°SLY 9 00°SL¥ £8°¥Z28'2ZZZ'9 SINIWIAOYAWI TYIIdYD 0L
LT p9€’s 00°0 00°000'2Z (€8°GE9/€T) 1100y 0¥
LO* LSO ‘008 82 €81 00°0 GETOFZ'00E NOILVTEDEY TYIDads G¢
9G°GE9‘R9 BLTLLB'S 00°0 PEETS'SL AONYENSNT ALITIEYIT o€
Zh ZEE'TOL DE"286 ‘22 00°000'0FT (BZ 689 °ST) i e | Z2
Zr*9Z6‘c8 10696 ‘8T 00700029 EV G6B'0F TATHTHTI 0z
9Z'660'ET G99 6TE’S 00" 000 ‘2¢ (60" 18S'0T) WOESNKW GT
89°9LL'F BL LES‘E 000008 {FS5-589) d01710d S0
68°L9T1 ‘288 19°00T ‘€92 6V LOGS'TZT 10°T19L'€20'T NOILYHEDHY zZo
T GCT'SKE’T 0L°98G 'BEY GB"ET19 '8E LO"860'SEL'T IIVHOdH0D 10
£202/0£/60 §31paiD s3198Q £EC02/10/60 uotidTInsaq pung
aoueTeyg Te30L TE310L aourTeRg
butpug Butuuthag

:abeg

SLNNODOV LNIWISHANI ONY HSYD

SANNA TTV :aNnd

EZ0Z/0E€/60 OL £Z0Z/10/60 WOHA
LOTALSTA HMdv¥d HSA0YD NOLHOW dH04 OMN0d A€ AMVHWAS HSWD

}ied 24015 UOJICK :€QJ
zaTerzuobt :183sn
Wd 0F-€0 €202/60/0T1



00°00T (TT°€ZE‘OT) (BL-tL8'9) T1°ECE'OT 00°0 SHAOLIANTIYA 3 SEONIATY J0 L3N

81" 2k B6°660°Z8 8L LLB'9 207006 '65 00°000°2KT STHNLIANIdXE TYLOL

SPT6b LB OLL TL 00°0 ET EZEZ 0L 00°0002FT SENNEATE TYLOL

SEADNVENSNT ALITIEVIT - 0f pung

FONVANSNT ALITIEYIT - (Qf Ppund

00°00T 00°SZF ‘95T 000 (00°52¥ '962) 00°0 SHUNLIANIdXE % SANNIAEY JO LAN

88°CE 0D°G6LG'E2S 000 00°SZ¥'95¢ 00°000°08L SHMALIONAdXE TYLOL

00" 0 00" 000‘08L 00°0 00°0 00°000°08L SHONIATY TYIOL

$T00d WENMVH - LSAHALNI ONY GNO" - 97 pung

T00d WIYYYH - LSTYILNI ONY ONOY - 97 pund

00°00T (TZ2°6S€£795L) 00°0 1Z 6SE"9SL 000 SHENLIONIAXE 7 SANNIAZY 40 LEN

000 00°0007050°'T 0070 000 00°000°050°1 STUALIANAdXE TYLOL

£0°2ZL 6L 0P ‘E62Z 00°0 T1Z°6GE“9GL 00700070501 SHNNEAFY TYIOL

CLSIYEINT ¥ dNO"g - ST pung

LSHAAELNI * ONO"H - §Z pund

00°00T (0T 62L"TF) 0L LTO'LTT 0L 6ZL 1Y 00°0 STINIIANAAXE 3 SIONIAEY 40 LIN

09°69 LB ¥BRbL 0£°2ZB6'2E ET SIS 0LT 00°000'S¥Z SHANLIANAZAXT TYLOL

£9°98 LL GGL'ZE 00°000'0%T ol 4 A A s 00" 000'GhE SHANFASE "TYLOL

IYTDTICd - gz pund

Y014 - ZZ puna

00001 (BE'GLLOT) 66°0E0 ‘€W BE"GLL'DT 00°0 SHMALIONAdXE % SENNIATY J0 LIN

69791 ST TES'LE T0°696 "8T S8 B9V ‘EZT 00°000°19T STINLIANIdXE TYLOL

8E'E8 LL'GGL'OE 00°000'29 €T FPEVET 00°000'19T SHNNAATY TYLOL

PTITHTHTI - 0F pung

CATHTRTI - 07 Pung

00°00T (tz 06w ’2) GE 089 ‘€ LZ 0Gh'2 0070 SEUALIANIAXE % SAANIATY J0 LAN

VE"Z6 LZ 0Gh ‘2 G99 6IE’'S £L'6¥G 62 00°000'ZE STANIIANAIXE "TYIOL

00" 001 00°0 00°000 '2E 00000 ‘ZE 00000 'ZE SEANNIATE TYIOL

WNESAW - G1 pung

WAFSOW - ST pund

00°00T (60" LLT) Zz ear’s 60°LLT 00°0 STUNLIANTAXI * SEANIATY J0 13N

6L L6 60°LLT BL°LEG'Z 16°228°L 000008 STINIIANEAXE TWIOL

00°00T 0070 00"000°8 000008 00" 0008 SENNAAFE TYIOL

1901704 - S0 pung

421704 - G0 Pung

00" 001 (BL*PT0’9F) (ZT E6S'TFT) 8L FTO‘9F 000 SHHNLIANIAXE % SANNIAATE 40 LUN

287 8L gF 0TZ’LEY 6¥"BZ9'09¢2 8G°98E‘bEE‘E 00°L65'196'C SHENLIANIdXE TYIOL

BE" OB ¥9°S6T°18S LE"GED'BTLT 9g° 10V 088’2 00°L66°T96°Z SHANIATE TYIOL

INOILYFNDEY - Z0 pund

NOILYEHOEY - Z0 Pund

00 001 (GE-168B'GZ0'T) (58°ZL6 ‘68E) GE'TER'SEZ0'T 00°0 SEMOLIONEd®E % SHEANAATY J0 I3N

20°9% TI°LZS'BOF'T ZE"LG9 99T 68°Z00°T0Z'T 00°0£S'609°2 SHENLIANIXKE TYIOL

FE"G8 9L°GED'ZBE (ES-GTIE‘'ECT) vZ b68°9ZZ°'2 00°0£S ‘609'Z SHONAASY TYIOL

tALYHOJH0D - T0 pung

AIVHOdH0D - T0 pung

assn (TYWIONEY) TYWION (ASYEY0HA) ASYHEHONI (TYWYONEY) TWHEON L390Ng QHANIWY NOILAIHDSET HAAHAN T
1oad 3 HONYIVE ETOZ/0E/60 HINOW £Z0Z/0E/60 €202

ATAVTIVAY ¥0d ALIATIIOV HONYTYE QLA

€202/0€/60 ONIOGNE AOTHAd Bl egnsa NOAoN ad

zaTezuoby :a8sp

Z/1 :9beg IDTHLSIA ¥M¥¥d TAOHD NOLMOW ¥0d I1H0ddY FTUNIIANIIXE ANY FNNIATH Wd OF:€0 £20Z/60/01



00°00T (8Z°6LZ'B19'T) (LL™SEV'EEE) 82 6LZ'BTI9'T 00°0 STENLIONIAXA § SANNIATY 0 L3N

60°9F% 9L°681'609E'S 19 651 '€6F PE LER'06G'F 00°LZ9'656'6 SaNNd TIY - SHHNLIANIIXT TVIOL

vE"Z9 8V 0T6’05L'E P8 6TL'6ST Z5°91L'802 9 00°LZ9'656'6 SANNA TTV - SHANIAZY IVIOL

007001 (PP bOB) 00°0 Y k06 0D0 SAYMNLIONAdXA % SIONIATY J0 IAN

0070 0070 00°0 00°0 000 STYNLIANTAXT TYIOL

007001 (vb 706) 00°0 ¥ b06 0070 SANNIATY TYIOL

1aNNd ONIWYATD TI0dAdWd - 66 Pund

aNnd SNIEVATD TI0HAYd - 66 pund

00001 v0 8v678S1 {00°000‘9) (PO 876 ‘BST) 000 STANLIANTAXE 3 SANNAATY JO IEN

20°LT 836 TOZ'0ZE'T 0070009 F0"86L°0LT 00°000'T6G"T SHANLTANIIYNE TYIOL

EO" L 00°0ST"6LF'T 0070 00" 0G68°TIL 00°000°16G"1 SANNIATY TYIOL

ISINAWIAOHAWT TYLIAYD - DL Pung

SINAWEADHAWI 'TWLIAYD - 0L Pung

00°00T (00" 00L) po-oo0‘ze 007 00L 0070 STANLIANTAXE 3 SEANTANY J0 IEN

LD 66 00" 002 00°0 007 00€'12 00°00G6°12 STINLIANIAXE TW.IOL

€£°201  (DO-00S) 00°000‘Z2 00" 000“2E 00°006°'1Z SANNIATY TVIOL

:L1an¥ - Ob pund

LIany - 0F pung

00°00T (65 LZE"BET) (BT E8T) 65 LTE’BET 00°0 STYNLIANAAXE % SENNIATY JO L3N

0g ezt T6°TEL'CVE BZ €8T 60°89Z°GTT 00°000'BSE SEMALIAONIAXE TYLOL

¥B8°0L CETWOP'WOT 00°0 B9°G6G ‘EGE 00°000‘BSE SENNIAEE TYLOL

INOTIVAMOEY TYIDEAS - GE pung

NOILVAYDEY TWIOAdS - GE pund

azsn ["TYIHONEY)  TVHMON (ASWEHOEd) ESVEMONI  (TYWHMONEW) TYWHE0N LADANE dEANEAY NOTILdTHOSHA HFENON TO
Ioad % HINYTIVE £Z0Z/0E/60 HINOW £Z0Z/0£/60 £20¢2

ATEVTIVAY ¥Od ALIAILDY HONYIVE dLA

£20Z2/0€/60 DNIANT AOTHAL ed 2A0IH UOJIIOW :Hd

zaTezZUObT :i1838n

z/z :abeg IDTELSIA ¥¥Yd FA0YMD NOLYOW ¥0d I1d0ddd THNLIANIdXHE ONY HANTAT Wad 0F:€0 EZ0Z/60/0T



10/09/2023 03:39 PM
User: lgonzalez

DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

GL Number

PAID
Invoice Line Desc Vendor

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023

Invoice Description

Page:

1/8

Amount Check #

Check 317045
02-21-513309

02-32-513700

Check 317046
01-20-520225

Check 317047
02-32-552300

Check 317048
02-33-540110

Check 317049
01-20-570410

Check 317050
15-10-554600

Check 317051
02-33-520227

Check 317052
01-20-520323

Check 317053
02-22-520260

Check 317054
01-20-554100

Check 317055
01-20-520318

01-20-520321
01-20-520323
01-20-520400
02-21-520260
02-33-520227
02-33-520312
02-33-520321
02-33-520323
02-33-560200

Check 317056
02-01-49%0176

Check 317057
01-20-520327

Check 317058
02-22-560700

Check 317059
01-10-554100

SALARIES & WAGES-POOL - WA BODYMINDSPIRITFITNESS CORP INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR GRO
SALARIES & WAGES-GROUPX IN BODYMINDSPIRITFITNESS CORP INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR GRO

Total For Check 317045

MATRL-SUPP-R & R - VEHICLE CASSIDY TIRE & SERVICE

Total For Check 317046

CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL COMCAST CABLE

Total For Check 317047

UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED

Total For Check 317048

BLDG-LNDSCP-BLE DIRT-SAND- CONSERV FS

Total For Check 317048

VAN TIRE REPAIR

LOBBY TV CABLE

ELECTRIC BILL FOR 8830 ORK

FIELD PAINT

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PROF CRNE'S ENVIRONMENTAL CONTR MUSEUM A/C DIAGNOSTIC CHAR

Total For Check 317050

MATRL AND SUPP-EQUIP MAINT CUMMINS NPOWER

Total For Check 317051

MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA GRAINGER

Total For Check 317032

PLANNED MAINTENANCE COMPLE

CABLE TIES

MATRL AND SUPP-REPAIR EQUI HALOGEN SUPPLY COMPANY, IN WATER HEATER IGNITER

Total For Check 317053

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE JAMES DRIVE SAFETY LANE, L
Total For Check 317054
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS
MATRL-SUPP-SUPPLIES - TOOL MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-REPAIR EQUI MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-EQUIP MAINT MENARDS
MATERIALS AND SUFPLIES-JAN MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS
MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - MAIN MENARDS

Total For Check 317055

PROGRAM FEES REV-ISEC KARA NICOLE HEBSON

Total For Check 317056

MATRL- SUPP-MAINT. - BALL O'BRILL COMPANY

Total For Check 317057

EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - POOL PLATINUM POOL

Total For Check 317058

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE PROSHRED CHICAGO

JUNE 2023-VEHICLE INSPECTI

SIGN REPAIR MATERIAL
BATTERIES AND LIGHTBULBS,
POTHOLE PATCH

BATTERIES AND LIGHTBULBS,
SIGN REPAIR MATERIRL
CONCRETE CRACK SEALER
SUPPLIES FOR PVCC
SUPPLIES FOR PVCC
SUPPLIES FOR PVCC
SUPPLIES FOR PVCC

REFUND FOR KARATE

SHADE STRUCTURES

DEPOSIT FOR COMMERCIAL BAS

SHRDDING SERVICES

180.00
B55.00

1,035.00

38.00

38.00

52.80

52.80

95.91

83,91

415.80

415.80

309.00

302.00

376.40

376.40

102,30

102,30

106.36

106.386

41.00

41.00

20.63
28.05
461.88
96.73
10.98
307.75
73.95
16.54
2.48
21.08

1,040.08

371.00

371.00

78.30

78.30

959.50

95%.50

72.80

317045
317045

3170486

317047

317048

317048

317050

317051

317052

317053

317054

317055
317055
317055
317055
317055
317055
317055
317055
3L7055
317055

317056

317057

317058

317059



10/09/2023 03:39 PM
User: lgonzalez

DB: Morton Grove Pa

GL Number

Inveice Line Desc

PAID
Vendor

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023
JOURNALIZED

Invoice Descriptien

Page: 2/8

Amount Check #

Check 317059

Check 317060
01-20-520325

Check 317061

MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS

Total For Check 317059

RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT

Total For Check 317060

02-07-592821 CONTRACTING SERVICES-PUPPY WENDY DECARLO

Check 317062
02-08-592945

Check 317063
01-10-5B1600

Check 317064
15=-10-570200

Check 317075
01-10-554100

02-10-554100

Check 317076
01-20-520312

Check 317077
01-10-481810

01-10-520110
01-10-520130
01-10-552200
01-10-560800
01-10-560810
01-10-580100
01-10-581120
01-10~-581200
01-10-581400
02-03-592412
02-03-593412
02-04-593514
02-04-593520
02-06-593711
02-07-593823
02-07-593825
02-08-593912
02-08-5583926
02-08-553936
02-08-593950
02-10-554100
02-21-513310
02-21-520314
02-21-584400
02-22-513310
02-22-520332
02-32-554200
02-32-560600
02-35-554100

CONTRACTING SERVICES-BACK

EXP MISC,-MORTON GROVE SPE

BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN

MISCELLANEQUS REV-MISC. -
MATRL AND SUPP=OFFICE EXP
MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP
CONTRACT SVCS-FRAMEWORK IT
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - COMP
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - COMP
EXP MISC.-HUMAN RESOCURCE E
EXP MISC-COMM EXPENSE - ED
EXP MISC.-EDUCATIONAL SEMI
EXP MISCELLANECUS-DUES & S
CONTRACTING SERVICES- CARMP
PRCGRAM SUPPLIES-CAMP
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-DANCE - C
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-DANCE - R
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PRE SCHOO
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-B4
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BASE
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-HALLOWEEN
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-SUMMER CO
PROGRAM SUPPLIES-FAMILY CA
PROGEAM SUPPLIES-FREE EVEN
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE
SALARIES & WAGES-INCENTIVE
MATRL AND SUPP-SUFPLIES -
EXP MISCELLANEOUS-POOL - M
SALARIES & WAGES-INCENTIVE
MATRL AND SUPP-LEARN TC SW
CONTRACT SVCS-AGREEMENTS -
EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - FITN
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

Total For Check 317061

RECORD A HIT, INC.

Total For Check 317062

RECORD A HIT, INC.

Total For Check 317063

GMS HEATING & COOLING

Total Far Check 317064

CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA
CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA

Total For Check 317073

CASE LOTS, INC

Total For Check 31707é&

FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH TEHIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK

CARBURETOR/GASKETS

DOG AND PUPPY TRAINING CLA

BALANCE DUE FOR PETTING Z0

BALANCE DUE FOR NTIONAL NI

CARRIER CONDENSER AND UNCA

COPIER LEASE
COPIER LEASE

PVCC SUPPLIES

AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
RUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARRD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
RUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI

72.80
69,02 317060
62,02
935.20 317061
935.20
550.00 317062
550.00
447.50 317083
447.580
4,956.66 317064
4,956.66
105.50 317075
105.50 317075
211.00
1,3B4.865 317076
1,384.65
(2,B893.12) 317077
562.98 317077
132,00 317077
5,013.09 317077
4,287.24 317077
22.17 317077
662.36 317077
(55.00) 317077
157.87 317077
175.89 317077
1,553.50 317077
68.38 317077
32.34 317077
35.00 317077
408.59 317077
20.58 317077
568,50 317077
102.81 317077
4.99 317077
434,38 317077
29,97 317077
9.99 317077
65.11 317077
34.98 317077
243.76 317077
69.55 317077
268.73 317077
468.00 317077
75.23 317077
952.10 317077



10/09/2023 03:39 PM
lgonzalez

User:

DB: Morton Grove Pa

GL Number

Invoice Line Desc

JOURNALIZED

PAID
Vendor

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPCRT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023

Invoice Description

Page:

3/8

Amount Check #

Check 317077
02-35-554405

30-10-582650

Check 317078
02-03-592412

Check 317079
01-20-554100

Check 317080
02-01-553131

Check 317081
02-33-552300

Check 317082
02-01-593105

Check 317083
02-01-592131

Check 317084
01-10-554100

02-10-554100

Check 317085
01-20-554100

Check 317086
02-08-592912

Check 317087
35-10-552705

Check 317088
02-01-593105

Check 317089
02-01-583131

Check 317080
01-20-520312

01-20-520325

Check 317091
02-01-593105

Check 317082
02-01-592131

Check 317083
01-20-520325

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-PUBLI
EXP MISC.-SAFTY TRAIN & SU

CONTRACTING SERVICES- CAMP

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

PRGM SUPP-SOFTBALL - ADULT

CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL

PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PICKLEBAL

CONTRACTING-SOFTBALL - ADU

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-ARGREE
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

CONTRACTING SERVICES-HALLO

CNTRCT SVCS-ADA INCLUSION

PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PICKLEBAL

PRGM SUPP-SCFTBALL - ADULT

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES-JAN
MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS

PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PICKLEBAL

CONTRACTING-SOFTEALL - ADU NORTH SHORE OFFICIALS ASS0

MATRL-SUPP-MAINT.

FIFTH THIRD BANK
FIFTH THIRD BANK

Total For Check 317077

FIRST STUDENT

Total For Check 317078

GREEN TURF INC.

Total For Check 317079

GREG EASTMAN

Total For Check 317080

GROOT, INC.

Total For Check 317081

HENRY MODUPE

Total For Check 317082

JACK ARKUS

Total For Check 317083

LERF
LERF

Total For Check 317084

LRS HOLDINGS, LLC

Total For Check 317085

MAGIC BY RANDY INC.

Total For Check 317086

MAINE-NILES ASSN OF SP REC

Tetal For Check 317087

MARY PEMBROKE

Total For Check 317088

MATT SILVERBERG

Total For Check 317089

MENARDS
MENARDS

Total For Check 317090

MICHAEL GANSHAW

Total For Check 317091

Total For Check 317082

- MAT'LS O'REILLY

AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI
AUGUST 2023 CREDIT CARD BI

11917488,115917485,11917489

GRUB CONTROL

2023 SPRING/SUMMER 16" 18T

GARBAGE SERVICES FOR PVCC

FALL PICKLEBALL TOURMAMENT

2023 SPRING/SUMMER MENS 16

COPIER RENTALS
COPIER RENTALS

6250 DEMPSTER

HALLOWEEN ENTERTAINMENT

INCLUSION SERVICES FOR SEP

FALL PICKLEBALL TOURNAMENT

2023 SPRING/SUMMER CO-REC

DRILL BIT AND LAWN MOWER P
DRILL BIT AND LAWN MOWER P

FALL PICKLEBALL TOURNAMENT

AUGUST 2023 UMPIRE INVOQICE

HI-POWER BELT

714.35
35.89

14,302.41
§$52.00
852.00

1,875.00
1,875.00
800.00
800.00
322.85
322.85
60.00
60.00

200.00

200.00

182.76
182.76

385.52
1,024.32
1,024.32

650.00

650.00

61.5%
61.59

100,00

100.00

400.00

400.00

257.89
44.04

301.93

60.00

60.00

1,680.00

1,680.00

64.61

317077
317077

317078

317078

317080

31708l

317082

317083

317084
317084

317085

317086

317087

317088

317088

317020
317020

317091

317092

317093



10/09/2023 03:39 pM
User: lgonzalez

DB: Morton Grove Pa

GL Number

Invoice Line Desc

PAID
Vendor

INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTCN GROVE PARK DISTRICT
INVOICE ENTRY DATES 05/01/2023 - 09/30/2023

JOURNALIZED

Invoice Description

Page:

4/8

Amount Check #

Check 317093

Check 317094
02-33-554100

Check 317085
02-22-560700

Check 317096
02-08-552912

Check 317097
02-01-593131

Check 317058
01-20-520323

01-20-520325
01-20-520400

Check 317099
02-08-592926

Check 317100
15-10-554600

Check 317101
02-01-593131

Check 317102
70-10-586151

Check 317103
01-10-540130

02-10-540130
02-21-540130
02-22-540130
02-33-540130
15-10-540130

Check 317104
01-10-520110

Check 317105
01-10-520110

Check 317106
02-01-593105

Check 317107
70-10-5B86000

Check 317110
01-10-554100

02-10-554100

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

EQUIPMENT-NEW EQUIP - POOL

CONTRACTING SERVICES-HALLO

PRGM SUPP-SOFTBALL - ADULT

MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA
MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS
MATRL-SUPP-SUPPLIES - TOOL

CONTRACTING-SUMMER CONCERT

CONTRACTURL SERVICES-PROF

PRGM SUPP-SOFTBALL - ADULT

PALMA LANE RENCVATIONS

UTILITIES-WATER
UTILITIES-WATER
UTILITIES-WATER
UTILITIES-WATER
UTILITIES-WATER
UTILITIES-WATER

MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP

MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP

PROGRAM SUPPLIES-PICEKLEBAL

EXP MIS-BOND REGISTRAR & L

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE

Total For Check 317093

QTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY

Total For Check 317094

PLATINUM POOL

Total For Check 317095

RECORD A HIT, INC.

Total For Check 317096

ROBERT GRIFFIN

Total For Check 317097

RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT
RUSS50 POWER EQUIPMENT
RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT

Total For Check 317098

SECOND HAND SOUL BAND, INC,

Total For Check 317099

SHERI COZZI

Total For Check 317100

SUSAN BRAUBACH

Total For Check 317101

UPLAND DESIGN

Total For Check 317102

VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE
VILLAGE OF MORTCON GROVE
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE
VILLAGE OF MORTON GROVE

Total For Check 317103

WAREHOUSE DIRECT

Total For Check 317104

WAREHQUSE DIRECT

Total For Check 317105

WASIM CHOWDHURY

Total For Check 317106

PVCC ANNUAL ELEVATOR SERVI

BALANCE DUE FOR COMMERCIAL

HALLOWEEN INFLATABLE DEPQOS3

2023 SPRING/SUMMER MENS 16

FILTERS AND TRIMMER LINE
FILTERS AND TRIMMER LINE
DOT RERCHER

SUMMER CONCERTS

CLEANING FOR SEPTEMBER 202

2023 SPRING/SUMMER CO-REC

PALMA LANE MASTER PLAN OSL

JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL
JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL
JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL
JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL
JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL
JULY AND AUGUST WATER BILL

CALENDARS FOR PVCC

CALENDAR

FALL PICKLEBALL TORNAMENT

AMALGAMATED BANK OF CHICAG BOND PAYMENT SERIES 2013

Total For Check 317107

CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES,
CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES,

PRINTER USGAE CHARGES
PRINTER USGAE CHARGES

64,61

1,560.00

1,5860.00

859.50

959.50

995.00

995,00

200.00

200.00

65.98
8.14
22.98

97.10

1,500.00

1,500.00

105.00

105.00

200.00

200.00

6,000.00

6,000.00

207.42
379.14
3,216.50
2,582.98
829.¢68
€1.15

7,276.B7

24.73
24.73
65.78
65.78
100.00
100.00

475.00

475.00

224.55
224.55

317094

317085

317096

317097

3170898
317098
3170898

317089

317100

317101

317102

317103
317103
317103
317103
317103
317103

317104

317105

317106

317107

317110
317110



10/09/2023 03:39 PM  INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT Page: 5/8

User: lgonzalez INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023
DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED
. _ PAID
GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 317110

Check 317111
02-32-552300

Check 317112
02-10-540110

Check 317113
02-21-420260

Check 317114
02-07-592815

Check 317115
35-10-552705

Check 317116
01-10-540110

02-10-540110
02-21-540110
02-22-540110
02-33-540110
15-10-540110

Check 317117
01-10-589110

Check 317118
01-10-540120

02-10-540120
02-21-540120
02-22-540120
02-33-540120
15-10-540120

Check 317119
30-10-532610

30-10-532615
30-10-532630

Check 317120
01-10-540150

02-10-540150
02-33-540150

Check 317121
02-01-592105

02-01-592131

Check 317122
02-01-490105

Check 317123
01-10-481810

Total For Check 317110 449,10
CONTRACT SVCS-CONTRACTUAL COMCAST CABLE PVCC BUISMESS CAELE 587.27 317111
Total Fer Check 317111 587.27
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED ELECTRIC BILL FOR PARKING 26.91 317112
Total For Check 317112 26.91
FEES AND ADMISSIONS-MERCHA DONNA LANGE REFUND FOR AQUA ZUMBA T.12 317113
Total For Check 317113 T.12
CCNTRACTING SERVICES-PIANO JAMES ECKWALL THREE PIANOS TUNED ON 9/18B 270.00 317114
Total For Check 317114 270.00
CNTRCT SVCS-ADA INCLUSION MAINE-NILES ASSN OF SP REC INCLUSION SERVICES FOR SEP 121.69 317118
Total For Check 317115 121.869
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 1,630,38 317116
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 686,75 317116
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 1,468,80 317116
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 1,520.56 317116
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 6,521.57 317118
UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY MIDAMERICAN ENERGY SERVICE ELECTRIC BILL FOR ALL PARK 307.31 317116
Tetal For Check 317116 12,135.38
EXP MISC.-MARKETING SPECIA MORTON GROVE CHAMBER OF CC CHAMBER GOLF SPONSORSHIP 500.00 317117
Tetal For Check 317117 500.00
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GAS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 193.69 317118
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICCOR GAS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 265.47 317118
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GAS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 306.65 317118
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GAS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 290.97 317118
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GAS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 256.84 317118
UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GRS GAS BILL FOR AUGUST 2023 64.83 317118
Total For Check 317118 1,378.45
INSURANCE-PROPERTY PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY/LIABILITY 3,382.55 31711¢
INSURANCE-EMPLOYMENT PRACT PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY/LIABILITY 379.29 317119
INSURANCE-WORKERS COMP PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEM PROPERTY/LIABILITY 2,620,085 317119
Total For Check 317119 £,381.79
UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK, INC, PHONE SERVICES 1,206.28 317120
UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK, INC. PHONE SERVICES 1,206.28 317120
UTILITIES-TELEPHONE PEERLESS NETWORK, INC. PHONE SERVICES 1,242.84 317120
Total For Check 317120 3,655.40
CONTRACTING SERVICES-PICEL QUICK SCORES LLC FALL ADULT SOFTBALL, PICKL 45.50 317121
CONTRACTING-SCFTBALL - ADU QUICK SCORES LLC FALL ADULT SOFTBALL, PICKL 45.50 317121
Total For Check 317121 21.00
PROGRAM FEES REV-PICKLEBAL RICHARD FIEK INSTRUCTIONAL PICKLEBALL L 456.00 317122
Total For Check 317122 456.00
MISCELLANEQUS REV-MISC. - RON STEIN FENCE REPAIR FOR FALLEN TR 375.00 317123



10/09/2023 03:39 PM  INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT Page: 6/8

User: lgonzalez INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2022 - 09/30/2023

DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

PAID

GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 317123
Total For Check 317123 375.00

Check 317124

D2-08-592912 CONTRACTING SERVICES-HALLO ROYAL PRINCESS FARTIES LLC HALLOWEEN ENTERTAINMENT 370.00 317124
Total For Check 317124 370.00

Check 317125

01-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 37.32 317125

02-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 11.38 317125

02-21-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 2.00 317125

02-22-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 310.28 317125

02-33-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 98.62 317125

15-10-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL SYMMETRY ENERGY SOLUTIONS GAS BILL FOR ALL PARKS 2.00 317125
Total For Check 31712% 461.860

Check 317126

02-07-593823 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-B4 SYSCO FQOD SERVICES BEFORE SCHOCL CEREAL AND B 1,185.00 317126

02-07-5%3825 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BASE SYSCO FOOD SERVICES BEFORE SCHOOL CEREAL AND B 1,18%.17 317126
Total For Check 317126 2,378.1%7

Check 317127

02-22-420250 FEES AND ADMISSIONS-POOL - TIMOTHY COMIA SWIM TEAM AND SWIM LESSONS 55.00 317127

02-22-420280 FEES AND ADMISSIONS-POOL - TIMOTHY COMIA SWIM TEAM AND SWIM LESS50NS 16,00 JITI2T
Total For Check 317127 71.00

Check 317135

02-10-540110 UTILITIES-ELECTRICTY COMED ELECTRIC BILL FOR OUTSIDE 561.02 317135
Total For Check 317135 561.02

Check 317136

01-20-581200 EXP MISC.-EDUCATIONAL SEMI CONSERV FS FIELD DAY REGISTRATION 120,00 3171386
Tetal For Check 317136 120.00

Check 317137

30-10-582650 EXP MISC.-SAFTY TRAIN & SU DALE WARE BOOT REIMBURSEMENT 150,00 317137
Total For Check 317137 150.00

Check 317138

02-22-570600 BLDG-LANDSCAPE-POOL - BLDG GMS HEATING & COOLING COMPRESSOR AND BLOWER REPL 4,447.17 317138
Total For Check 317138 4,447.17

Check 317139

02-21-520260 MATRL AND SUPP-REPAIR EQUI GRAINGER MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 86.72 317139
Total For Check 3171389 86.72

Check 317140

02-32-554200 CONTRACT SVCS-AGREEMENTS - GRAPHIC ARTS SERVICE POSTCARD FCR CLUB FITNESS 1,817.48 317140
Total For Check 317140 1,817.48

Check 317141

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE GREEN TURF INC. SEPT. LAWN MAINTENANCE 1,714.00 317141
Total For Check 317141 1,714.00

Check 317142

02-33-570200 BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD J&M BUILDING MAINTENANCE, DANCE STUDIO AND GYMMASIUM 4,000,00 317142
Total For Check 317142 4,000.00

Check 317143

15-10-570200 BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD JC LICHT, LLC - DEPT #1047 WALL PAINT AND BRUSHES 85.94 317143
Total For Check 317143 B5.94

Check 317144

02-33-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE JOHMSON CONTROLS SECURITY 3 MONTHS BURGLAR ALARM MON 564.33 317144
Total For Check 317144 564,33

Check 317145

02-08-592943 CONTRACTING SERVICES-HOT W KELLY STACHURA PAYMENT FOR SERVICES AT OU 840.00 317145

B40.00

Total For Check 317145



10/08/2023 03:39 PM  INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT Page: 7/8

User: lgonzalez INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023

DB: Morton Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

PAID

GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description Amount Check #

Check 317148

30-10-582650 EXP MISC.-SAFTY TRAIN & SU LEARN FOR LIFE CPR, INC PAYMENT FOR CPR MANNIKINS 300.00 317146
Total For Check 317146 300.00

Check 317147

01-20-554100 CONTRACTUAL SERVICES-AGREE LRS HOLDINGS, LLC PORTA POTTIES 9500 SHERMER 936.00 317147
Total For Check 317147 836.00

Check 317148

01-20-520321 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS WOOD GLUE 53.51 317148

01-20-520323 MATRL AND SUPP-MAINT. - MA MENARDS SEWER REPAIR PVCC PARKING 17.96 317148

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS MENARDS PENETRANT SPRAY 11.94 317148

01-20-520400 MATRL-SUPP-SUPPLIES - TOOL MENARDS WOOD GLUE 83.82 317148

15-10-570200 BUILDING & LANDSCAPE-BUILD MENARDS SUPPLIES TO REPAIR MUSEUM 75.34 317148
Total For Check 317148 242.87

Check 317149

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT., - MAT'LS NAPA BATTERY AND MOTOR QIL 251.65 317148

01-20-520500 MATRL-SUPP-SUPPLIES - GAS NAPA BATTERY AND MOTCR OIL 37051 317149
Total For Check 317149 622.16

Check 317150

02-21-540120 UTILITIES-HEATING FUEL NICOR GAS GAS BILL FOR HARRERFILTER 1,503.93 317150
Total For Check 317150 1,503.83

Check 317151

02-08-592212 CONTRACTING SERVICES-HALLO RC JUGGLE ENTERTAINMENT HALLOWEEN ENTERTAINMENT 575.00 317151
Tetal For Check 317151 575.00

Check 317152

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS RUSSO POWER EQUIPMENT LID AND FILTER 136.08 317152
Total For Check 317152 136.08

Check 317153

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS SAFETY KLEEN SERVICE OF PARTS WASHER 331.32 317153
Total For Check 317153 331.32

Check 317154

02-22-570600 BLDG-LANDSCAPE-POOL - BLDG SOUND PLANNING ASSOCIATES, REPAIR TO ORIOLE POOL SOUN 510,00 317154
Tetal For Check 317154 510.00

Check 317155

02-07-593823 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-B4 8YSCQ FOOD SERVICES BEFORE SCHOCL CEREAL AND B 1,13%.00 317155

02-07-593825 PROGRAM SUPPLIES-BASE SYSCO FOOD SERVICES BEFORE SCHOQL CEREAL AND B 1,139.22 317155
Total For Check 317155 2,278.22

Check 317158

01-20-520325 MATRL-SUPP-MAINT. - MAT'LS ¥V AND J LANDSCAPING AND SE BELT WRAFPPED A-EPDM 53.99 3171586
Total For Check 317156 53.99

Check 317157

02-08-592914 CONTRACTING SERVICES-COLD WALLACE ENTERTAINMENT DJ FOR COLD BREWS 225.00 I1LTIET
Total For Check 317157 225.00

Check 317158

01-10-520110 MATRL AND SUPP-OFFICE EXP WAREHOUSE DIRECT PVCC SUPPLIES 66.30 317158

For Check 317158 66.30

Total



10/09/2023 03:39 PM  INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

User: lgonzalez INVOICE ENTRY DATES 09/01/2023 - 09/30/2023
DB: Morten Grove Pa JOURNALIZED

BAID
GL Number Invoice Line Desc Vendor Invoice Description

Page: 8/8

Amount Check #

Fund Totals:
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund

01

15
30
35
70

CORPORATE
RECREATION

MUSEUM

LIABILITY INSURANC
SPECIAL RECREATION
CAPITAL IMPROVEMEN

23,596.80
65,241.61
5,967.23
6,877.78
183.28
6,475.00

108,341.70



0ZTO8S-0T-T0 DO'0ES uolsH] uyor Joj dey awen sudiIS g pue [ any-gT UUBLILIBH
00THSS-SE-Z0 000425 uondusqns adew| Apgapenn 3¥2015| any-¢1 uuewLLIEH
00T¥55-SE-20 96°'EZS uonduasgns Ajyiuopy suljug aunqu) odeoiy) sny-Z1 UUBWLIBH
00T¥S5-5E-20 66'715 uondudsqns Ajyiuop eipa |ej2os Aauowig anv-z1 uueWIAH
SOFYSS-SE-Z0 B6'VIS (10 dwe)) sluane Jawwns 1o} spy 300gade4 anv-z1 UUBWLIBH
SOWPSS-SE-T0 800915 (I1g esia xau uo xe3 3uipunyal) ugis ped Joj sayels deaydayuoiuugd gny-¢ UUBWILIRH
00T¥S5-5€-Z0 AT'LTYS 3JUBUIIUIE JAJUL4 PUBjOY Addns udis 1sampiy any-¢ UUBWIIDH
0196 lagquiny pie)
e2Az2409)
viZE Jaquinp pJed
0S6E6S-BO-TO 1uaA3 Aleagn J0) SYOBUS qnD Swes INr-€2 yoegne.g
ZI6E6SBO-TO 1534 Ajwe4 usamoyjey 1o} ssiddns wesdoid uozewy des-1 yaeqnelig
LI6E6S-BO-Z0 1594 Ajiwieq usamojjey Joj saddns wesdoiy uozeLwy any-ge yregneig
CI6E6S-BO-Z0 1594 Ajiie4 uaamojey Joj saiddns wesdoid UOZELWY dnyg-gz yaegnelg
VIEOZLS-TZ-Z0 sa1ddng weidold a51219%3 19IEM UOZEWY any-pe yaegnesg
056EES-B0-Z0 1524 Ajlwey usamojjey Joy sajddns wesdoig uozRWY any-ze yaeqneug
{16EBS-BO-Z0 1594 Ajwe4 uaamoj|ey 1o} saiddns wesdoiy UOZELWY dny-zz yareqneig
OEEOTS-TZ-TO Fuiuen yels jood 10§ UDjIUUBN HdD uozZEWY any-81 yoegne.g
CEEQES-CC-T0 salddng uossa] wims 340)S pJenday] ayl any-£1 yaeqneug
00TPBS-0T-70 uonduasgns Ajiuopw Anods Sny-T1 yoegneig
00r¥8S-1Z-70 £R'LTTS asemijos Sunpayos Jeis sanenby Buysieg Any-g yoegneig
TESO Jaquinn pied
 SE'00E'LS
0T8095-0T-T0| £1°225 saiddng saindwo) uozewy das-¢ uaug,0
0OPTIBS-0T-T0 00'091S diySIaquIay "I0SSY 193140 3JURUI JUBLILLIBADG Y049 any-1¢ uaug,0
008095-01-10 6595 juawdinb3 Jaindwo) uozewy Inyg-1€ uaug,0
00¢ZssS-01-10 TPIEY'TS Suuny pue Suidasyawn | saAojdui] op 01 WasAs YH MaN HH ooquieg any-67 uaug.0
0110250110 009615 saiddns 3240 uozewy any-0g usug,0
. 1eD) Jpad uaug,0
KR EATUE0 L9'9L5ES Aq pied j1 Junoosip % - sadiaas Suuonuo 1aindwao) 10j Ful ___wmﬂ“_-__._u”c__“ SROmeEEY Bnv-8e
0TT0ZS-0T-T0 P6'61ZS saddng a0 uozewy any-g7 uaug,0
00VIRS-0T-10 66'STS wooz Wooz anyg-77 uaug,0
008095-0T-T0 vH9ZE'ES 53] JW0L4 Jo) sIaIndwos map 2a any-6T uang,0
008095-0T-T0 1T°¥S6S Juawdinb3l Jaindwo) UOZRLUY Sny-9T uaug,0
QET0ZS-0T-T0 00'ZETS adeysod sdsn any-91 ualg,0
OTT0Z501-TO 96°6L5 saljddnsg Jaindwo) UOZELWY anyg-0r uaug,0
OTT0ES0T-TO 86615 seiddns Jaandwo) uozewy any-0tr uaug,0
OTT0ZS0T-T0 0T°L1S saljddns Jandwo) uozewy any-g uaug,0
0IBI8Y-0T-10 IT°E68'C5- uondwapay piemay 2)1eqay Ysed) pJeD paiyl yyid any-£ uaug,0
0081 Jaquinn pie)
3000 139ang INNOWY NOSY3Y ueyuapy 3Lva "ON 'J2y
£20Z/1/6 ‘HINOW




0ZT185-0T-T0 XUl - 38ueyd 210y Joy punyay YduN das-1 HEM
00€185-01-T0 UEM - BAUBLD |210Y Joj punyay YduN das-1 uem,
LELE Jaquinp pJe)
009095-ZE-Z0 sjuawydiene ajqed - uawdinbg wig uozewy dos-T aloopy
T46S Jaquiny pied)
V/N uewdalg
1981 Jaquiny pied
059Z89-0T-0€ w001 3dei0)s 100 IST Uiew 10y udis X3 uozewy dny-£ auuepy
7405 Jaguinn pJed
TTLE6S-90-20 salddns yaug uozEWY das-T Jsupedwneg
TTLEGS 3070 8T'PLS saijddns yaid uozRWY dny-1¢ Jaupedwneg
TTLEGS90-20 ETV0TS salddns ya.id Aiddnsg jooyas yunoasig Bny-0g Jaupelwneg
9Z8E65-L0-20 L6'62% saiddns AassApQ Japuiy uozZeWYy V-6 Jaupedwneg
ITLE6S90-70 8£°65S sanddns yaud uozewy dny-6z Jaupedwneg
9EBEBS-L0-T0 LYOrS saljddns AassApQ Japupy uozewy Sny-gz Jaupedwneg
9ZBERS-LO-ZO 886115 saiddns AassApQ Jepury Wwod‘uoieanp3 any-zz Jeupedwneg
TTLE65-90-20 L85 saijddns yaig uozewy any-1z Jaupeswneg
CIVI6S-E0-Z0 0S¥92% duy ppay dwer |mog J1sse) dny-g1 Jaupedwneg
TTL€65-90-T0 zZO'TLS saljddns yauq uozewy any-91 Jaupeswneg
TL/E65-950-Z0 vLTIS saj|ddns yaug uozewy any-91 Jaupeswneg
CIVERS-EO-ZO 6E°875 saijddns dwe) HEWEM Bny-91 Jaupedwneg
9TBEGS-LO-20 L1785 sauddns AassApo Japury uozewy gny-91 Jaupedwneg
9ZBERS-L0-Z0 66'65 saljddns AassApQ Japury uozewy any-91 1aupeswneg
9ZBEGS-L0-70 26'8S sanddns AassApg Japury uozewy any-vT Jaupedwneg
9T8EGS-L0-Z0 B6°ELS sanddns AassApp Japury uozewy any-p1 Jaupedwneg
9ZREGSL0-Z0 E6° VS sonddns AessApQ Japury uozewy any-41 J3upedwneg
9E6EGS-B0-Z0 S6bLS sanddns ynodwe) Ajjwe] upjung any-71 Jsupeswneg
9E6EGS-BO-ZO0 TL°0SS saljddns ynodwe) Ajiweq HEw|em dny-6 Jaupeswneg
¢IvE6S-E0-T0 00'65L5 du] pjai4 dwe) 1311351 YIBd S|ied] Jany any-4 Jaupelwneg
9EREGS-BO-Z0 ¥0'2ZS saijddns ynodwe) Ajwey uozewy N Jaupeswneg
CIVEGS-EO-Z0 66'6ES saijddns dwe) uozewy any-£ Jaupedwneg
ZIve6S-EO-Z0 00°0DESS du| pei4 dwe) Wed 133uoid any-p Jaupedwneg
LETS JaquinN pJed
00T#SS-SE-T0 uonduasqns aapip Ajyiuop owoid any-1g UUBULLIAH
00TFSS-SE-Z0 234 duysoy gam Ajyjuoy audul dm 2ny-g7 UUBLLLIDH
00Z¥SS-TE-Z0 Jaulel) ssaully QD Joy SpaeD ssauisng Juld BISIA any-sz UUBLWLLIDH
00TSS-SE-Z0 uonduasqns |Enuuy Aasyuoy Aaning ~ Any-pz UUPWLLIDH
00ZT185-01-T0 LBTYTS J3lulld puejoy 10) |eLDIB JaUUeg MNddng uBis 15am PIN any-7z UUPWLIBH
00T#55-SE-Z0 00°Z1S uonduasgns Ajyuoly aulug piesay Apeg any-g7 UUBWLLIDH
SOvPSS-SE-Z0 009€TS smaig pjo) 1oy padeid spy yoeg dny-/1 UUBWLIBH
SOvvSS-SE-20 00't0TS JUILWELINO] ||EGaDId JO) padeid spy yoed dny-41 UUBWIIBH
SObYSS-SE-Z0 00955 Juawewsno] ||eqyos Joy padejd spy yoeq any-£1 UuBWLIBH
SOb¥SS-SE-Z0 6T EVTS JuaAa ade|ip 10y Aemeanin Jundw) ¢ any-91 UuBWLIBH




{|ej0L

00108S-0T-T0| Aepyuig SOUBLIEJY Iny-1¢ epjezYY
Sﬁcwméu.ﬂa_ Aepyuig soueuey any-62 EjEZYY
00TO8S-0T-10| Huneapw sa01JaS 159N suyor Auwwir #ny-01 EEZYY
00T08S-0T-TO LS9TYS Aueq Jswwins jo pu3g SOUBPJEID any-6 ejEZY)
00TO8S-0T-T0 00065 Aued sawwins jo pua Joj spied Yo suaagiepm dny-g eezyy
001085-0T-T0 66'TZS Aepyrig SOUBLIB|A any-g EIeZYY
00TO8S-0T-TO 05'TS Aepyuig @al] Jejjoq dny-/ BINEZYY
00T08S0T-T0 00°ES 5131504 aal] lejjoq any-£ EREzYy
€464 laquinu pied)
9¢6E65-80-70 sanddng yied ayl ul sSpaduo) 0I50-|oMaf Fny-st yajualug
025¢65 020 uonenasddy yeis asueq Jawwnsg SHINQUEIS Iny-6 jauawg
tISERS-+O-T0 soiddng dwe) asueq uozewy any9 FEIUETS
YISE6SYO-Z0 salddng dwe) aoueg uozZeLWY ny-p FEIUENTS
EEBT Jaguinu ple)
OTEETS-TZ-Z0 spaenday Joy weaud 33| $49 das-1 [=TTTTE
00T08S0T-T0 6E'0ES s1yan a3l UozZEWY das-1 530 |
£TBERSLOZ0 9T'ES 100425 240J39 JOJ Y|IIN ysad4 uozewy any-1¢ S9.0|
EZRERS-LO-Z0 66°'F1S |00Y2S a10yag 10) saddng uozewy any-57 SaI0]
STBERS-L0-Z0 88'TE 15y Joj saddns uozewy ny-£7 S9110]
00v¥8S-TZ-Z0 £6°S1S sauo7 pindajr 10 aqopy aqopy any-£7 S840
ETBERS-LO-ZO EECS |00Yy2S 2J0Jag 10 Y|IN ysai4 uozewy Sny-z7z S3410]
OTEETS-ZZ2-20 55695 paendayl) ioj ezzig SILI0W any-41 $8110]
SZREGS-L0-Z0 vOEBS 35w 10) saljddng UOZRWY any-/1 58440
SCBERS-L0-T0 86615 1Svg 10 saiddng uozZELWY any-91 S840
SZBEGS-L0-Z0 05955 35vg 10) saiddng uozewy any-91 sal10]
GTBERS-LO-Z0 119915 15vq 40 saijddng uozZeLUY any-g1 3140 |
SCBEGS-L0-T0 LY vhS 3Svg J0) sanddng uozZeWY any-9T CEYIGTN
SZBEGS-LO-20 PS9ELS 1Svg 10 sanjddnsg uozZEeWY any-sT sa4J0 ]
SZ8E65-L0-C0 86625 3Syg 4oy sayddng uozewy any-sT S2110]
1100 Jaquinu piej




October 18, 2023

To the Finance Officer:

The payment of the above listed accounts has been approved by the

Board of Park Commissioners at their regular scheduled board meeting and you are

hereby authorized to pay the attached vendors from the appropriate funds.

(President) (Treasurer)



Motions/New Business




MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
BOARD MOTIONS
September 20, 2023

Administration and Finance Committee — Commissioner Pietron, Chair

2024 capital plan: | move that the Board of Park Commissioners approve the
2024 Capital Improvement Plan.

Disposal Ordinance 0-03-23: | move that the Board of Park Commissioners
approve ordinance #0-03-23 for the disposal, donation, trade-in, or sale of listed
items and authorizes the Park Board President and Secretary to execute said
ordinance.

Part-time/Seasonal staff benefit policy: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve the changes to the Part-Time/Seasonal Staff Benefits
Policy.

Education Reimbursement Policy Update: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve the changes to the Education Reimbursement Policy.

Exempt Overtime Compensation Policy Update: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve the changes to the Overtime Compensation/Exempt
Employees Policy.

Safety and Crisis Management Manual Approval: | move that the Board of Park
Commissioners approve the changes to the Crisis Management and safety

Manual.



- » - Foe
T elagt
N

"’ I

% "en
"‘; AP, e

W\

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

Memorandum

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director
Date: October 18, 2023

Subject: 2024 Capital Plan

Issue:

The District’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) details the long-range capital needs of
the District by outlining infrastructure and equipment improvements. The long-range capital
plan is an instrument that is annually reviewed and modified as funds and priorities change.

Discussion:
The District defines a capital project as a project that meets one of the following criteria:

e Projected cost of the project exceeds $5,000;
e Long Useful life (at least five years); or
e Results in the creation or the revitalization of a fixed asset.

The District defines a capital expenditure as one that meets the following criteria:

e The purchase of a qualifying asset as stated above.
e The resulting expenditure would increase the value of an existing asset.
e The resulting expenditure would extend the life of an existing asset.

Projects are re-evaluated on an annual basis and new projects will be added based on the
planned initiatives of the District. It is possible, even likely, that projects will be moved based
on opportunities that arise or budgetary constraints. Therefore, it is important to note that the
CIP is a plan that is constantly being adjusted.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the 2024 Capital Improvement Plan.



1 38ed

908'vZ0’'s S 706'879'v S TE9'IsEw S BBY'EITY S TI86'ZYI'Y S TEL'LEB'Y $ TEE'9BY'S $ pua seaA je 3jqe|ieAe JUNOLLY
¥0¥'02S'S S T80'vOT'T S TEV'EZ80'T $ B0Z'TI0'T S 00v7'0v0'T $ 000°0Z0'T $ 000'000°T S 53|es puog |RUORIPPY
00S‘vZB'S $ 008'950'T $ 00E'6ZI'T $ DOL'SLTT $ OSI'S6E'Z $ 009°861°C $ 615's08 S ISNIdX3 TVLIdYD TVLI0L
000°08 $ 000't8 $ 000°€8 S 000€8 S 000'80T S 000'€lT $ GLS'6T S NOLLVYLSININGY
5 $ 000's $ 000'sE S 000'st S 000's9 $ 000's6 S 6vs'te 5 SOILITHLY
000°sy $ 000°st S 000'st S 000'st $ 000'sy S 000°sk S E0S'SE S SSANLH
000'¥05°Z S 00S'LET $ 00008 $ 000082 S 000°0E¥'T $ 000°LL6 S 89v'0v S SANNOYDAV1d - NOLLYIHO3Y
005°S6TE S 00£'989 $ 00£'989 S 00L°TEL S 0ST'LvL S 009'806 S wIv'L89 $ $100d - SHH¥Yd
= 5 E 8 = $ 000'00¥ $ 000°00% $ 0S8TTI $  led aue] Bw|ed 3 yJed 0130 404 JUBID QYISO
000°00Z S 000'002 $ 000002 $ 000'00Z $ 000°002 S 000°06T S 000°081 S pun4 73y |e17adS WOy s1aysuel] vay
206'829'y S 12918ty S 68¥'8Zl'Yy S 1I86°TYPI'Y S TEL'[68'Y $ TEE"98Y'S $ 000°000'S s £207 ‘T Asenuer 2jqejieay [eyde] 101
aining 8207 L20T 9T0¢ S702 vzoe €207 V3Iuv
sJeah g |enloy

20z ‘T Adenuer JO SV AYVININNS NY1d VLIV

1J141S1a dVvd JAOYD NOL4OW



00S'S6T°E
000'S6LT
000" T¥E
005°L

000'0s

000°T

A VR W

00€'989
000°005
008921
005'L

000'0S

000°2

LS T A

DOE"989
000'00S
0089zt
00S°L

000'08

0007

T adey

0L 'TEL
000'SBY
0029V
00S°L

WE OV VW

000'TY

S 0007

VUV

0ST it
000"0LY
059°291
005°L

000°05

000ST
000°0%

0007

v WA B A

009806
DOO'SSY
D0E'9LT

00s't

000°0T
000°0€
00005

000°Z1

000'0TT

0000T

000°s
000°'s

008's
000'02

000'7

5
s
$
$

v

VIv'LE9
000'0tY
005681

Sik

ST0'v

¥¥6's

0058

T
086 8E

VWA D

(oL
jedpulig puog |00 3jOU0
152u33u| puog |00d |00
saa4 SI|ES PUOR

LI 3PIYRA 1504 Inoy
wawdinb3 | ews

Jopel) 5335 PS
sjuawanoudwy T Plal4 Buey
JAYSE AN 2ANSSAUY

Jaunpaty

Japeauds YauH

18308 10) JojiR1L AMBN
ayey JOJRI|

AL e g AUBN
PuUB|jOH MBN - J0138IL
syang) dwng g aes 7T
1e304 10§ J8jes) Ann
Feup pjau 11eg

Jamow ume Buipry

Y joss1ag afie]
wawadejday Jaddiyd
Jamop ¥33g UL

Jaag uyof - Joj3ed |

Jamol Buipiy

samow dn pueys

13JUAD A2AIBE IO LLIB|Y
LN MO|4 A|EMBPIS 54330 UYO[
He) Jon

1aTR|f DTS 5€ YINS HINIL WS
jo01 19juay 3RS

ey Ann

ao\pieg

DIVEUUIEN SHJEd

SI3A0) APRYS

100|4 WOoY Wied

004 ajoug Furyne) g Sunuied
100d #0110

Bunydi 1ay@ys iaiieH
wayshs Ayunoag

SLWAISAS J1NdLI0T 1§ AU
aunyjuing yaag

juawdinba Ayajes

BINUUING WO BNAFAE0
sHElS YAy

|04 aippiy - SBINIINLS IPEYS 7§ se|Riqun
Hir - Jlep pieng

1aggnuog uiydiog

SIano) 2peys

hiajes

107 Buppey sauey
Wwawade|day j0og jauey
sjood ajouQ/iaLey

aunyng

BZOE

LzoT

9zoz

S202
£j00d B S}Jed

vzoz

vZ0Z ‘T Adenuer 40 SY AHYIWWNS NY1d 1vLIdYD

12141510 X4Vvd IAOUYD NOLYOW

EZ0Z

uopduossa



000'%0S'Z
000°0T

00001

000°00T

000°0Z

000°02

0oo‘or

000°01
000°0Z

R

v+ n

R0

005°2€2
000S

00S°L

000'02

000's

000°5Z

000°0T

000°0T
000's

S 000082

S 000s

S 00005

S 0o0'0T

$ 000'S

S 00052

S 000°0T

$ 00001
$ 000

U

S 000°S

S 00005

$ 00002

S 000's

$ 000'sZ

S 00001

0000t
S 000'S

W

000°082

¢ afegd

000'0EY'T
000°S

00005

00002

000's

000's2

000'0T

000'01
000's

000'LL6
000'S

00005
000°0Z

000's

000°0T
0000t

000°'s

A R s

89¥'OF S el
juawadejdal siey) g ajqe

0gazeo) YJed JaueH

a1epdn) Ja)jays Jauiey

- apeJddn asnoypial4

sjuawanoldw| Yoy /Alases

LNOD SIUUA| 10} SUIIIISPUIAN

sUNo) Jleqiayseq

SHNO) |jed PRt

510|

Bupyped jje joaoueuuiew-guine

saouUa4

068'6T S 2oueuzlUIeN SPI9Y ||ED
JDUBUAJUIBIA UNOY) SIUUA)

suonepuno aoejday

GeZS'E S SUONEAOUSY 1INOD) ||BqIdyseq

00'000'rZ

000°052°C

$

000°0ST

S 000°0S

T

S 000°0ST

000005

000°008

000°0S
00072

000'008

uoIEACURY 1IN0 SIUU3] DDA
jJuawdinb] jooyasaid

107 Fuppied 3se3 yied 3|oLQ

Fuijeo) |eas aAU(Q 1SV JalIeH

00%'T S wawade|day punoidie|d unsny

wawade|day punoidield

( 3noyum 000’0025 - AV1SO
Yum 000°008$) Juswade|day
punoiBAeld aue ew|ed

£59'ST S

(av1S0 Yyum p00'008S)
wswade|day punoidield 010

2un3ng

8¢0z

9zoz

§Z0Z

vZoz

spunoidie|d g uoijeaiday

pz0z ‘T Aenuer 40 SV AYVINIAINS NY1d TY1IdVD

1J141S1d MHVd IA0USO NOL4OW

£202 } uondinsag



¥ a8eqg

000'sSt S 000'st S 000'sk S 000'sk S 000's¥ S  000'st S €0S'SE $ w10l
000'st S 000'st S  000'Sk S 000'St S 000'st $ 000'sv S EOS'SE s juawdinby  Buuoold / YpBuAAS / OlpIe)
aimng 8707 LT70T 9202 SZ0T vzoz €202 [[EET] uonduisaq
ssaully

20z ‘1 Asenuer 40 SV AYVINIAINS NV1d TVLIdVD

1J141S1a YVd IA0HYD NOLHOW



G aded

S 000'S $  000'sE $  000'sE $ 00059 $ 000's6 $ 6vS'TT $ V101
000°0T S 13pIAIg WAD
spseogypeq gg 3|qeisnipy
000°0E S  000°DE ¢ 00009 ¢ DOD0E ¢ 6¥5'Tz ¢ 1a11eH - apeys Jnosng
000°0€ g pl3ysue - apeys inodng
000'0z S S|eon 423205
000°S ¢ 000% & 000'S $ 000 $ 000S $ 20uBUAUIRW J00]4 WNISEUWAS
- $ uawdinb3l 3] moLy
aimng L rdird LZ0Z 9z02 L4114 veoz €202 uondinsag
SINA|YY

vzoz ‘T AMenuer 40 SY AHYININNS NY1d TVLIAYD

1I141S1d MY4Vd JA0YUYD NOLYOW



00008

00007

000'09

$ DOO'ER

000'E

$ 0000

S 00009

$ 000't8

5 000'E

S 000°0Z

S 00009

$ 000't8

$ D00t

S 00007

S 00009

g adeg

000°801L

000°€ S

00001 S

000'0Z $

000'ST S

00009 s

000'ELT

000°E

000'ST

0000z

000°0T

000°S

000°09
00009

w

SLS'6T

006°L

0597
5706

ViU

Wil0L

ue|d Jd@a1e05
uejd 218a1ens
udisapay 2UsqIM
juawdinb3 1y

asemyyos Sunesadg |epueuld

I84] J9Y JUOLLIA
FUEER PELVES
Adojouyday

juawane|day 1edie) JOAd

uep ssed ST

sJjeday JOoY 1§ SMOPUIA “100Qg

v wy Ajunwiwod 10j uoiiued duipjod

juawdinb3 Jauueg

aauelajua juoyy je adedspue juold anosdw)
J0Ad 01pNIS 3Jueq ele4 Jo duljuied JoU3IX3
juawadejday 1adie) NYSNIN

107 Supjsed JDAd Bunec) jeas

wooy Apunet - JOAd 40§ dwng dwng

T0Ad JO Joou |easay

JONd 18 Juswadejday Nun NIy

JIAd

aumny

870z

Lot

9zoz

SI0T
UOIESILILIPY

Yot

v20zZ ‘1 Aenuer 40O SY AYVIWININS NY1d TVLIAYD

1J141S1a X4Vvd JAOUD NOLYOIN

€207

uonduasag



Memorandum

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director
Date: October 18, 2023

Subject: Disposal Ordinance 0-03-23

Issue:
Prior to the disposing or selling of the District property, the Board must approve an ordinance
specifying the property to be disposed of and the method(s) of disposal.

Discussion:
Occasionally, staff takes inventory of Administrative, Maintenance, and Recreation
Departments’ assets to identify obsolete or broken items which could be sold or disposed of

properly.

In accordance with state law (as specified in Section 8-22 of the Park Code), “if the District owns
personal property that is no longer necessary, useful to, or in the best interest of the District,
three-fifths of the Board may authorize the disposal, trade-in, donation, or sale of the property
in any designated manner (with or without advertising the sale) by passage of an ordinance.”
Disposal of any equipment will follow local, county, and state regulations.

The attached Ordinance contains the complete list of items for disposal.

Park Board Action:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve Ordinance #0-03-23 for the disposal,
donation, trade-in, or sale of listed items and authorizes the Park Board President and Secretary

to execute said ordinance.



MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT
Ordinance #0-03-23

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OR OTHER CONVEYANCE OF
SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

WHEREAS, the Morton Grove Park District, Cook County lllinois, (Park District) owns the
following used computer, office, mechanical and recreation equipment:

e 6 Metal File Cabinets

e Computer Equipment

¢ Roman Chair Knee Raise Fitness Machine
¢ Piano

WHEREAS; pursuant to Section 8-22 of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/8-22)
(“Code”); every park district is authorized to sell or convey any personal property that in the
opinion of three-fifths of the members of the Board of Park Commissioners then holding office
is no longer necessary; useful to; or for the best interests of the park district; and

WHEREAS; the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District (“Board”) has reviewed
a staff report finding that the equipment is no longer necessary; useful to or in the best interest
of the Park District and recommending its disposal; sale; donation or trade and the Board concurs
with the findings and recommendations contained in the staff report.

NOW; THEREFORE; IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED by the Board of Park Commissioners of the
Morton Grove Park District; Cook County; lllinois as follows:

Section 1. The Board finds that all the recitals contained in the preamble to this
Ordinance are true and correct and does hereby incorporate them in this Ordinance by this
reference.

Section 2. The Board finds that the equipment is no longer necessary; useful or for the
best interests of the Park District and declares it to be for the best interests of the Park District
and its residents to dispose of the equipment in the terms set forth in the staff report.

Section 3. The Board authorizes and directs the Executive Director of the Park District to
take such action necessary to dispose of the equipment as herein authorized.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as provided
by law.



Adopted this 18" day of October 2023 by the affirmative vote of three-fifths of the
members of the Board of Park Commissioners.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

President; Board of Park Commissioners
of the Morton Grove Park District

ATTEST:

Secretary; Board of Park Commissioners
of the Morton Grove Park District

[SEAL]



MEMORANDUM

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners

From: Michelle Trevino, Human Resources and Risk Manager
Date: October 18, 2023

Regarding: Part-Time/Seasonal Staff Benefits Policy Update

Issue:
The District's Part-Time/Seasonal Staff Benefits Policy needs to be updated.

Discussion:

The Part-Time/Seasonal Staff Benefits policy must be updated for all part-time and seasonal
staff. Morton Grove Park District is committed to supporting our team members and enhancing
their experience with the park district. To that end, the district offers part-time and seasonal
staff one of three benefits if the employee works ten or more hours per week. These benefits
includes:

1. Anindividual seasonal pool pass
2. Use of the Fitness Center
3. Free registration in park district-run programs under the following conditions:
a. Enrollment is not counted towards the program minimum,
b. Program has not reached its maximum,
c. If aprogram is at its maximum and if a paying customer registers, the employee
may be removed from the program, and
d. If the program is a contractual program, the employee pays the contractor’s
portion of the registration fee.

See the attached draft with changes.
Recommendation:

For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the changes to the Part-Time/Seasonal Staff
Benefits Policy.



Section 6.16: Part-Time /Seasonal Staff Benefits - CURRENT

Employees have their choice of a pool pass or Club Fitness membership. The benefit is valid for the
employee only and is not transferable. The benefit starts on the first day worked and ends on the last
day worked. Employee may not switch benefit once chosen but will have the option to change their
benefit each January 1.

Section 6.16: Part-Time /Seasonal Staff Benefits

The Morton Grove Park District values its part-time seasonal staff and is committed to providing certain
benefits to enhance their experience during their employment,

Eligibility:

e Minimum Hours: Employees must work a minimum of 10 hours per week during their
employment period.

e Seasonal Status: Staff must be employed in a seasonal capacity.
Benefits:

e Pool Pass: Eligible part-time seasonal staff members will receive a pool pass that provides access
to Harrer and Oriole Pool.

e Club Fitness Membership: Part-time staff will be granted club fitness membership during their
employment.

e Program Access: Part-time staff members are entitled to participate in programs organized and
run by the park district during their employment. If a program reaches full capacity, paying
patrons will be prioritized over part-time employees which means patrons will have the first
opportunity to enroll in the program.

Programs with a contractual fee, the employee pays the Park District cost. For programs with direct cost
associated with the program, i.e., materials, the employee pays the direct cost. Examples of contractual
programs include: Hot Shots, Karate, and Music Lessons. Examples of programs with direct cost include

Summer Camp and Pre-school.

The benefit is valid for the employee only and is not transferable. The benefit starts on the first day of
work and ends on the last day of work.



MEMORANDUM

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Michelle Trevino, Human Resources and Risk Manager
Date: October 18, 2023

Regarding: Education Reimbursement Policy Update

Issue:
The District's Education Reimbursement Policy needs to be updated.

Discussion:

The Education Reimbursement Policy must be updated for all full-time employees. The changes
will enhance our commitment to supporting professional development while ensuring that
resources are allocated effectively. Below are the areas that were changed.

1. Eligibility Criteria: Full-time employees who work 40 hours per week will be eligible for
education reimbursement. This adjustment reflects our recognition of the contributions and
dedication of our full-time staff.

2. Performance Evaluations: To be eligible for education reimbursement, employees must
consistently demonstrate performance evaluations that exceed expectations.

3. Request Approval Process: Employees seeking education reimbursement must submit a
formal request for approval before enrolling in any courses or programs. The Department
Head and Executive Director will review requests for approval, which will be granted based
on alignment with organizational goals and available budget.

4. Reimbursement: Reimbursement will be made upon successfully completing the approved
course or program. To receive reimbursement, employees must submit proof of final grade
of a “B” or better.

These changes promote a culture of continuous learning and professional growth within our
organization and benefit our employees and the organization.

See the attached draft with changes.
Recommendation:

For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the changes to the Education Reimbursement
Policy.



Section 6.8: Education and In-Service Training - CURRENT

Department Managers are responsible for the task of developing a training and educational program in
their respective areas.

Full-time employees shall be encouraged to further their education. Tuition and materials for courses
which, in the opinion of the Executive Director, will further the employee’s qualifications for the job, may
be paid by the Park District. Progress reports must be submitted to the Executive Director and made a
part of the employee’s personnel record. Once the employee completes the course, they will be
reimbursed.

The District will reimburse employees for tuition upon presentation of an acceptable final grade in each
course of study. An acceptable grade is defined as equivalent to a “C” or better.

The employee must remain employed at the District for two full years after completion of the course. If
the staffer is not employed for the full 24 months, he or she may be required to repay 100% of the cost
of the course or a portion of the cost based on the number of months they were employed following
completion of the course. That sum will be deducted from the employee’s final paycheck.

If time off from work is necessary to attend classes, and schedule can be arranged during working hours,
such arrangement may be made at the discretion of the Executive Director.

Section 6.8: Education Reimbursement - UPDATE

Department Managers are responsible for the task of developing a training and educational program in
their respective areas.

Full-time employees shall be encouraged to further their education. Tuition and materials for courses
which, in the opinion of the Executive Director, will further the employee’s qualifications for the job, may
be paid by the Park District. Progress reports must be submitted to the Executive Director and made a
part of the employee’s personnel record.

Eligibility:
To be eligible for tuition reimbursement, employees must meet the following criteria:

1. Full-Time Employment: Employees must be classified as full-time, working a minimum of 40
hours per week.

2. Performance: Eligible employees should have a track record of consistently receiving
performance evaluations that exceeds expectations.

3. Relevance to Job: Courses or Programs pursued by employees should be directly related to their
current job responsibilities.

4. |f the budget allows for the expense.



Program Approval Process:;

Employees who meet the eligibility criteria and wish to pursue educational opportunities must request
approval prior to enrolling in a course or program. The employee must submit a request for tuition
reimbursement to their immediate supervisor or HR Department. The request should include:

e (Course or Program details
e Estimated costs.
Covered Expenses:
1. The maximum annual amount available to an employee is $2,500 per calendar year.
Reimbursement Process:

1. The District will reimburse employees at 100% of the cost for any course where a grade of “B” or
better was attained.

2. Employees who receive a grade lower than a “B” shall not be reimbursed.

3. Any amount reimbursed by the district will be paid through the payroll system and will be
subject to applicable taxes, including withholding.

4. Final grades must be submitted to the Human Resource and Risk Manager or Executive Director
and made a part of the employee’s personnel record.

5. Once the employee completes the course, they will be reimbursed.

The employee must remain employed in the district for two full years after completion of the course. If
the staffer is not employed for the full 24 months, he or she may be required to repay 100% of the cost
of the course or a portion of the cost based on the number of months they were employed following
completion of the course. That sum will be deducted from the employee’s final paycheck.

If time off from work is necessary to attend classes, and the schedule can be arranged during working
hours, such arrangement may be made at the discretion of their immediate supervisor or the Executive
Director.



MEMORANDUM

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Michelle Trevino, Human Resources and Risk Manager
Date: October 18, 2023

Regarding: Overtime Compensation/Exempt Employees Policy Update

Issue:
The District's Overtime Compensation/Exempt Employees Policy needs to be updated.

Discussion:
The overtime compensation policy must be updated for exempt employees. This change is intended to
provide greater flexibility while maintaining efficiency and compliance with labor regulations.

Overtime compensation for exempt employees will continue to be classified as ineligible for traditional
overtime compensation. However, the District recognize it can be burdensome for an exempt employee
to work beyond 40-hours to fulfill their job responsibilities.

Many other districts offer exempt employees the ability to flex their time to minimize working beyond
40-hours. Flextime is the ability to adjust working hours for a day or for the week. For example, if an
employee has a meeting at night, they could start the day after their normal start time so that the
meeting is within an 8-hour day. Or if an employee has a Saturday event, they could not come to work
on another day that week.

Allowing exempt employees this benefit provides them with a better work-life balance and improved
well-being; at the same time providing the district with better talent acquisition and retention and
increased employee productivity.

An exempt employee may be granted flex time at the sole discretion of their Department Head, or the
Executive Director based on the operational needs of the District. All flex time must be resolved within
the same pay period.

See the attached draft with changes.
Recommendation:

For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the changes to the Overtime Compensation/Exempt
Employees Policy.



Section 5.3: Overtime Compensation Exempt Employees - CURRENT

An exempt employee is NOT eligible for overtime compensation. This is in accordance with the Fair Labor
Standards Act.

Although exempt employees will not receive overtime compensation, they may occasionally be eligible
for administrative time off at the sole discretion of the Department Head or Executive Director.

Section 5.3: Overtime Compensation Exempt Employees - UPDATED

An exempt employee is NOT eligible for overtime compensation. This is in accordance with the Fair Labor
Standards Act.

The District recognize it can be burdensome for an exempt employee to work beyond 40-hours to fulfill
their job responsibilities. The District offer exempt employees the ability to flex their time to minimize

working beyond 40-hours. Flextime is the ability to adjust working hours for a day or for the week. For

example, if an employee has a meeting at night, they could start the day after the normal start time so

that the meeting is within an 8-hour day. If an employee has a Saturday event, they could not come to

work on another day that week.

An exempt employee may be granted flextime at the sole discretion of their Department Dead or the
Executive Director based on the operational needs of the District. All adjustments must be done within
the same pay period.



MEMORANDUM

MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

To: Board of Park Commissioners
From: Michelle Trevino, Human Resources and Risk Manager
Date: October 18, 2023

Regarding: Changes to Crisis Management Manual and Safety Manual

Issue:
The District’s Crisis Management and Safety Manual need to be updated.

Discussion:

The District has experienced changes in personnel, including staff additions and departures. It is
crucial that the Crisis Management and Safety Manual accurately reflects the current roles and
responsibilities of all key personnel involved in crisis response. These updates ensure that the
right individuals know their responsibilities and can act swiftly during an emergency.

Additionally, Staff has identified opportunities to improve the crisis management and safety
policies and procedures. These updates incorporate best practices, lessons learned from past
incidents, and feedback from staff members and external experts.

The updated manuals incorporates valuable feedback from staff members, PDRMA, and lessons
learned from recent events and emergencies.

The Crisis Management Manual identifies what constitutes a crisis, as well as the specific
actions to be taken in response to different types of crises, such as floods, tornadoes, lock
downs, and many other potential emergencies.

The Safety Manual outlines policies, procedures, and guidelines for ensuring the safety of
employees and others in the workplace. The Safety Manual should clearly define the roles and
responsibilities of various individuals within the organization regarding safety.

See the attached drafts with changes. The Board of Park Commissioners will have a month to
review the Crisis Management and Safety Manual and then return in October to approve it.

Recommendation:
For the Board of Park Commissioners to approve the changes to the Crisis Management and
safety Manual.



Crisis Management Plan
Morton Grove Park District

September 2023



Table of Contents

What Is a Crisis?

Chain of Responsibility

General Action Steps to Consider When a Crisis Occurs
Crisis Information Gathering — Questions to Consider

Members of the Crisis Team and Their Roles

Agency Director Sample Duties (Official Spokesperson, Crisis Team Leader)
Communications Staff Sample Duties

Department Head Sample Duties (Recreation, Facilities, etc.)
Superintendent of Parks Sample Duties (if applicable at your agency)
Supervisor Sample Duties

Risk Manager Sample Duties

Administrative Staff Sample Duties

Spokesperson Sample Duties

Role of Board Members and Elected Officials

Role of Employees in Dealing with the News Media
Media Relations Plan

Continuing Operations Considerations

Appendix A - Sample Initial Press Release

Appendix B - Emergency Phone List

Appendix C - Statements of Admission and Social Media
Appendix D - Sample Chain of Custody Document

Appendix E - Crisis Management Plan Acknowledgment of Receipt Form

Crisis Management Plan

0 O =

10
10
10
10
11
11
12
12
13

14
14
15
16
17
18
20
22
24



Crisis Management Plan

What Is a Crisis?

A crisis is a situation or event that causes — or has the potential to cause —intense public or
media focus such as an accidental drowning, serious injury, allegations of child abuse, severe
vehicle accident, or criminal act. Any incident, minor or grave, that attracts significant
public/media interest and scrutiny will impact the nature and scope of a crisis event.

Chain of Responsibility
It is critical for employees to understand their respective roles in the event of a crisis. This

includes immediately implementing the agency’s emergency response plan and reporting any
potential or actual crisis situation to the Agency Director or Crisis Team Leader.

The Morton Grove Park District has appointed Executive Director as the Crisis Team Leader.
This person, in conjunction with agency management, activates the Crisis Management Plan
and coordinates the crisis response. If the Agency Director or Crisis Team Leader is not
available, immediately report any event to the Department Head. Do not report a crisis
situation via voice mail, text, social media or email as time may be of the essence, and you
should communicate directly to an authorized person about a potential crisis situation. CRISIS
TEAM LEADER: Jeffery Wait: 224-355-4069

In the event the Crisis Team Leader or Executive Director is unavailable, identify the next
available person from the list below (starting from the top) to activate and manage the crisis
plan. That staff member is responsible for implementing the agency's Crisis Management Plan
and notifying all Crisis Team members. The Crisis Team is then responsible for decision making
during the crisis including fact gathering, notification of key persons/agencies, operational
decisions, public relations and media response.

The following is the list of alternate Crisis Team Leaders:

1. Marty O’Brien: 847-774-0207 or mobrien@mgparks.com

2. Keith Gorczyca: 847-815-2837 or kgorczyca@mgparks.com

3. Sue Braubach: 847-710-3074 or sbraubach@mgroveparks.com
4. Michelle Trevino: 847-704-0847 or mtrevino@mgparks.com

There also is a chain of responsibility for the role of spokesperson. The Spokesperson, Executive
Director, is responsible for making official statements (written or oral) to the media on behalf of
the Crisis Team and agency and coordinating the dissemination of public information via social
media and the agency website. All those listed as potential Spokespersons should review their
duties on a periodic basis to ensure they are prepared in the event of an actual crisis. Staff
members should direct all media inquiries to the Executive Director.

Crisis Management Plan 1



Note: No formal media or public statement of any kind should be made until PDRMA legal

counsel has reviewed and approved those statements.

The following is a list of alternate agency Spokespersons:
1. Michelle Trevino

Legal Considerations for PDRMA Members

After any serious incident, PDRMA members have to manage a wide variety of issues, demands
and distractions — simultaneously pulling them in many directions. However, one of the most
important actions to complete during the initial crisis-response period is to CALL PDRMA
IMMEDIATELY (regardless of the time or day) and to contact the agency’s corporate counsel!
Time is of the essence, and it may be critical to consult with legal counsel and PDRMA staff
early in the crisis to establish attorney/client privilege and protect the investigation. PDRMA
risk management claims and legal staff are part of your team and are ready to provide
guidance.

During non-working hours, an emergency service answers calls to PDRMA and immediately
contacts appropriate PDRMA staff. Members should also immediately contact their corporate
counsel for additional legal input and to serve as legal liaison to the members’ board. To reach
PDRMA, simply call 630-769-0332, 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.

During a crisis, PDRMA provides members with helpful instructions about how to:
¢ Communicate and cooperate with a police or other agency investigation.
e Maximize and protect the confidentiality of any internal investigation by coordinating
with PDRMA legal counsel.
e Respond to the victim’s family, members of the public, the media and other third
parties.
e Provide customized legal and risk management services to mitigate the incident.

Protect the Investigation — Get Legal Counsel Involved Immediately

It is critical that the member agency does not accept or assume responsibility and/or liability for
any incident before all facts are fully known and confirmed and without PDRMA’s guidance.
There is a delicate balance between acknowledging the seriousness of the incident and being
accountable to your community, and making unnecessary (and often incorrect) admissions of
liability and/or responsibility

Crisis Management Plan 2



In the age of instant communication and immediate media involvement, which may or may not
be reporting accurate information, it is challenging to exercise restraint and caution. However,
while it might be difficult to withhold comment, PDRMA’s legal counsel must be part of the
investigative process, public response, and overall coordination of communication for any
serious incident (both internal and external). PDRMA’s role is to establish, maintain and protect

confidentiality and attorney-client privilege, as well as to help members avoid making
comments and statements that may unnecessarily expose their agency to potential liability
and/or unfounded public scrutiny.

“Attorney-client privilege” is a legal rule that protects certain communications between a client
(i.e., a PDRMA agency/employee) and attorney and keeps those communications privileged and
confidential. By assuring confidentiality, clients can make full and frank disclosures to their
attorney, who can better provide candid advice and effective representation. However,
communications that do not fall within the scope of attorney-client privilege are often subject
to public disclosure via the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA), subpoena and discovery in
litigation, or through third parties such as law enforcement and other official investigative
agencies. Those unprotected communications sometimes contain inaccurate information,
incomplete information and/or admissions that others can and will use against the member in a
court of law and the court of public opinion.

Remember, you can only give a statement with absolute confidentiality to PDRMA's legal
counsel (or your corporate counsel). This includes written statements prepared by staff
witnesses and third-party accounts documented and prepared by member staff. Members
should consult with PDRMA’s legal counsel before requesting or preparing substantive written

statements or incident/loss reports, or before contemplating any disciplinary action against
staff. This does not include compiling a list of witnesses and/or potential witnesses that

includes personal and professional contact information.

Morton Grove Park District should take the following steps immediately after a crisis:

1. Initiate the Crisis team.

2. Contact PDRMA at 630-769-0332.

3. Consult with PDRMA’s legal counsel and/or the agency’s corporate counsel before giving
any statement, requesting a written statement, preparing a written statement,
preparing any report — or forwarding substantive text messages, tweets or emails about

the incident.

Crisis Management Plan



Morton Grove Park District should obtain legal counsel prior to cooperating with
investigating law enforcement or other official agencies. It is crucial for members to
consult with PDRMA'’s legal counsel before providing any statement to law enforcement
agencies or other official investigating agencies such as OSHA, |IEPA or the Department
of Public Health.

Cooperation with an official third-party investigation and consulting with a PDRMA
attorney is not inconsistent or mutually exclusive. For example, if a law enforcement

investigator asks, “Why do you need a lawyer?” you simply say: “The Agency wants to
provide its full cooperation but also wants to protect its legal rights.” Keep in mind that
investigative reports and/or statements taken by investigating police or other official
investigator(s) are often subject to public disclosure under FOIA laws.

Third parties such as the local media, personal injury attorneys and potential claimants
may also be able to obtain business text messages, tweets, blog entries, Facebook
postings and emails among staff via FOIA requests, records subpoenas and/or written
discovery requests in a subsequent lawsuit. For the same reasons you avoid creating a
damaging “paper trail,” you should not create an equally damaging electronic trail with
texts, email messages or social media among staff. There is no such thing as a “private”
message among agency staff.

Prepare a preliminary Accident/Incident Report using PDRMA’s Accident/Incident
Report Form and not your agency’s internal accident/incident form. When completing
the PDRMA Accident/Incident Report Form, always provide a brief, objective and factual
account of the incident without any personal opinions as to fault or other unknowns.

PDRMA’s standard claims reporting forms contain specific language designed to
establish and protect the confidentiality of the report through attorney-client privilege.
Never release this report to any third party (including investigating police) without first
consulting PDRMA's legal counsel and obtaining authorization from PDRMA. Any written
account or description of the incident or supplemental written (including electronic)
communication or report pertaining to the incident should have the following language
at the top of the document:

THIS DOCUMENT IS AN ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION
PREPARED FOR, AND AT THE REQUEST OF, PDRMA'’S LEGAL COUNSEL.

Crisis Management Plan



When directed by PDRMA legal counsel or PDRMA-assigned outside legal counsel,
communications (email, fax, other) should always contain the above phrase in the
subject heading of the communication and should be directed to Ed Dutton, Director of
Claims and Legal Services, and/or Steve Kleinman, PDRMA General Counsel. Please DO
NOT send the draft documents to any other recipients (e.g., facility managers,
superintendents, etc.) since that could negate the attorney-client privilege. PDRMA’s fax
number is 630-769-0449.

Remember, any “internal report” you create that is not specifically and purposely
directed to PDRMA’s legal counsel or your agency’s corporate counsel may be obtained
via a FOIA or other document request and be potentially damaging in subsequent
litigation.

DO NOT request or prepare any witness and/or employee statements without first
consulting PDRMA’s counsel. Such statements are often incomplete, inaccurate and/or
misleading. For non-employee witnesses (i.e., patron witnesses), get their personal
contact information and a brief verbal account of the incident. At a later time, PDRMA
will arrange to conduct a subsequent interview and/or request a written witness
account.

When/if PDRMA asks agency staff to document a witness account, insert the following
language at the top of the summary:

THIS DOCUMENT IS AN ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION
PREPARED FOR, AND AT THE REQUEST OF. PDRMA’S LEGAL COUNSEL.

Use PDRMA’s in-house legal counsel or a PDRMA-assigned outside counsel to conduct
your agency's internal confidential investigation.

While members often want to conduct their own investigation, if they do that on their
own and not at PDRMA’s request, the investigative findings and materials may be
discoverable or subject to disclosure. However, if PDRMA conducts the investigation on
behalf of the member all related communications are more likely to be subject to
attorney-client privilege and protected. PDRMA legal counsel can hire investigators,
employ consulting experts, and enlist a variety of research and investigative resources
on a member’s behalf. PDRMA can then report the results back to the member while
protecting the findings and conclusions from disclosure.

Crisis Management Plan 5



General Action Steps to Consider When a Crisis Occurs
The Crisis Team Leader should use the following steps as a guide to manage a crisis and make
decisions:

1. Whenever a crisis involving personal injury and/or property damage occurs, the first
responsibility of the Crisis Team is to activate the agency's emergency response plan and
ensure necessary and appropriate actions are taken to minimize further loss. Immediate
safety needs of people and property are the top priority.

2. Another Crisis Team responsibility is to obtain, compile, monitor and verify the accuracy
of incoming information. It is critical to document all incoming events and information
in chronological order to assess and address the crisis accurately. The team must verify
and review new and incoming information against past and known information. The
team needs the available information to be complied accurately in order to make well-
informed decisions.

3. Agency staff will feel the emotional and physical impact of a crisis. The Crisis Team
should reassure agency staff so the process of information gathering can begin.
Employees exhibiting signs of unusual stress and/or an inability to attend to their
respective duties effectively should be relieved of their duties and directed to a
designated area. Employees directly involved in the incident should remain on duty until
the decision is made as to whether or not to conduct post-incident interviews under the
direction of PDRMA legal staff.

4. The Crisis Team should consider moving employees directly involved in the crisis
incident to a more private location if media is present or the environment is stressful.
The agency should provide transportation for staff to a secure facility for debriefing,
interviewing and evaluation of their physical and emotional well-being.

5. Notify parents of minor employees as to the location of their children as soon as
possible. Inform parents as they arrive that they can remain with their son/daughter
and possibly be present during the interview process conducted by police or PDRMA
legal staff.

6. Identify a secure facility location for the Crisis Team to meet and begin implementing
the Crisis Management Plan. This is where the team continues fact finding and
coordinating the crisis response with key parties such as emergency response agencies,
PDRMA, EMS, local police, key staff, legal counsel and the media.

Crisis Management Plan 6



a. Communicate to all agency staff that a crisis exists and to forward all
communications and relevant information immediately to the Crisis
Management Team. Identify the agency Spokesperson and reinforce with staff to
direct any and all media inquiries to the agency Spokesperson.

b. The Crisis Team Leader and legal counsel direct staff actions, coordinate
information gathering, liaise with outside groups, interface with emergency
responders, communicate with staff and the public, and provide direction on
needed resources.

7. Contact the governing board president to inform her about the situation, and then
notify other board members. Remind all board members not to make any public
comments concerning the incident, and that PDRMA is conducting a formal
investigation under the direction of its legal counsel.

8. Identify all staff directly involved in the crisis as soon as possible so legal counsel and the
agency director can interview and debrief them.

9. Assign staff to monitor (and digitally record/videotape, if possible) television news
reports, social media sites, local blogs, radio stations and other media outlets to
determine what information about the crisis is available to the public.

10. Assign staff to verify the accuracy of information as it becomes known. Legal counsel
and the Crisis Team rely on this information to respond to the crisis, prepare a media
relations plan, address public concerns, determine the scope and nature of investigative
action, and attend to the needs of victims, staff, relatives, and other affected parties.

11. Establish a communication team to answer incoming phone calls, emails, and social
media outlets to keep the Crisis Team informed. The communication team documents
all incoming information received or directed to the agency. The team documents who
called, the information provided/requested, the caller’s title, time of call, and return
phone number or email address. The team should forward all emails and social media
inquiries to the Crisis Team.

12. Develop a crisis communications strategy working in conjunction with the Crisis Team

and legal counsel and consider the following:
a. Obtain legal counsel approval of all public communications.

Crisis Management Plan 7



b. Identify the newsworthiness of the incident and how the media is reporting it.
Communicate with staff informing them of the crisis and that all statements shall
come from the agency spokesperson (See Appendix C).

Reassure the community and manage public relations.

Verify the accuracy and availability of information.

Limit initial contact with the media to a written press release.

o

Debrief and prepare the agency Spokesperson.
Determine the manner and means of addressing the media (i.e. off-camera or

Sm ~o o

on-camera).

i. Limit an on-camera response to the designated Spokesperson to read a
prepared, written statement to the press. The Crisis Team should regularly
reassess the need to address the media. Consider what stage the crisis is in; the
scope and extent of the crisis; the expectations of your community; public
relations; the need to balance inaccurate reporting; and the ability of the press
to report about the crisis fairly. The Spokesperson should never admit or address
fault or liability, so it is critical to coordinate all media response with legal
counsel.

Crisis Information Gathering — Questions to Consider

It can be difficult for the Crisis Team to know how to start the information-gathering process.
The team can use the following list of sample questions as a guide to gather information and
make decisions:

1. Is the emergency-response portion of the crisis complete or ongoing?
2. Has the agency notified PDRMA?
3. Have the families of all victims been notified? (Coordinate with local police.)

4. Have the proper authorities been notified? (Police, fire, poison control, EPA,
Department of Public Health, utility companies, etc.)

5. Have all Crisis Team members been notified and gathered? Does the team need to
establish a crisis center? If so, where?

6. Has the team notified your agency attorney and board members?

7. What is the status of the internal investigation process?

Crisis Management Plan 8



8. Isthere an investigation being conducted by a third party? (Police, fire, EPA, OSHA,
private investigator, aquatic certification entity, etc.)

9. Has the Crisis Team been provided contact information for all potential staff and non-
staff witness(s)?

10. Has the team assured the public the crisis is under control?

11. Has the agency representative contacted the local and/or reporting media to tell them
the agency will provide information once facts have been gathered and verified? Has
onsite media been made reasonably comfortable (electrical power for equipment,
computer access, administrative support services, coffee, etc.)?

12. Is a formal written press statement appropriate and/or necessary?

13. Has the agency communicated the appropriate level of compassion for the victim(s) and
the families?

14. Has the agency Spokesperson been updated with current information and thoroughly
prepared? (Anticipated questions, rehearsed responses, etc.)

15. Have false, misleading or inaccurate statements been made and/or reported by the
media that should be balanced by facts?

16. Are there visual images of the incident and/or post-incident damages/losses? (Cell
phone, video or photographs, security video cameras, etc.)

17. Should the EAP and/or other counseling/support services be made available for agency

staff/board member? Does agency staff need a group EAP meeting in addition to
individual staff counseling?

Crisis Management Plan 9



Members of the Crisis Team and Their Roles

Morton Grove Park District Executive Director Sample Duties (Official Spokesperson, Crisis
Team Leader)

Often the Agency Director acts as the official Crisis Team leader and as Spokesperson. The
Executive Director, working with legal counsel, is responsible for the overall coordination of the
Crisis Management Plan.

The Executive Director or designated legal counsel are typically the primary representative of
the agency throughout the crisis. However, others with specialized and/or direct knowledge
may also serve in the Spokesperson’s role.

Leadership Staff Sample Duties

e Coordinate and draft communications under direction of Crisis Team with legal input.

¢ Compile a list of local television, radio and newspaper phone numbers and contacts, if
known.

¢ Distribute information through media channels as directed. (Agency website; social
media sites; patron distribution lists; and local, television and print reporters.)

¢ Manage the communications team in monitoring media outlets, including social media,
to track crisis reporting. (Facebook, Twitter, blogs, etc.)

* Update the agency website to take on a lower profile as necessary based on the
sensitivity of the crisis. Provide information proactively through the website to
communicate with the public.

¢ Identify and manage all communication channels including email lists, mailing lists,
website and social media.

e Keep agency staff and the board informed and updated on facts and developments.
Employees often need reassurance and/or a better understanding of the crisis. These
communications also provide an opportunity to remind employees they should direct
media and third-party requests for information to the designated agency Spokesperson.
Careful monitoring of media output, along with careful management of internal
communications, prevents the release of misinformation, problematic speculation and
rumors.

Department Head Sample Duties

Department Heads ordinarily coordinate the information and activities associated with their
operations as directed by the Crisis Team. Duties may include:

* Coordinate the processing and verification of departmental policies, procedures,
training, records, etc.

Crisis Management Plan 10



= Provide information concerning any applicable contracts, affiliate groups and
independent contractors the agency uses.

= Communicate with staff concerning agency policies on not sharing any information
about the incident or making comments to people outside the agency (See Appendix C).

= Determine if any affected staff needs EAP assistance or other support services.

* Reschedule planned programs/activities as necessary, locating alternative programming
sites or cancelling programs, if appropriate. This includes communicating programming
changes to affected staff and the general public.

Superintendent of Parks Sample Duties
The Superintendent of Parks coordinates the information and activities associated with
department operations as directed by the Crisis Team. Duties may include:

* Provide Crisis Team with access to necessary buildings, facilities and staff resources.

* Coordinate needed services with the village police department, utility companies, other
park districts, etc.

» Secure the crisis location and authorize access only to approved personnel.

» Establish a centralized media center, as directed.

» Coordinate processing and verification of departmental policies, procedures, etc.

* Provide information about applicable contracts, affiliate groups and independent
contractors the agency uses.

* Communicate with staff concerning agency policies on not sharing any information
about the incident or making comments to people outside the agency (See Appendix C).

* Determine if any staff need EAP or other support services.

Supervisors Sample Duties
Agency Supervisory staff may need to assist the agency director, legal counsel, Spokesperson,
superintendents, Crisis Team, Risk Manager, PDRMA or clerical staff. Assignments may include:

= Provide specific information about a program or facility.

* Compile and verify facts and information and formulate appropriate responses to
guestions and concerns.

* Communicate with staff concerning agency policies on not sharing any information
about the incident or making comments to people outside the agency. (See Appendix C)

= Assist the Spokesperson in responding to inquiries, as directed.

* Monitor media outlets.

= |dentify alternative programming sites, as necessary.

Crisis Management Plan 11



Risk Manager Sample Duties

Assist PDRMA legal and risk management staff during the investigative process.
(Including other authorized third-party investigators.)

Coordinate identification of witnesses and gather personal and professional contact
information.

Take photographs/digitally record/video tape and preserve evidence as directed by legal
counsel.

Secure evidence gathered and release evidence only after approval by PDRMA’s legal
counsel using a chain-of-custody document. (See Appendix D.)

Contact the necessary governmental agencies, when applicable. (EPA following chemical
spills, IDOL following the death of an employee, Illinois Department of Public Health,
etc.)

Obtain, compile or present pertinent safety documentation or practices conducted by
the agency.

Complete the PDRMA Accident/Incident Report Form (not an internal reporting form),
have PDRMA legal counsel review it, and send it to PDRMA within 24 hours of the
incident.

Gather employee statements in a narrative format to supplement the accident report
form and as directed by PDRMA legal counsel.

Obtain any pertinent contracts, waivers, training records, certifications or similar
documentation. Contact EAP and/or other support services to inform them of the crisis
and possible need for services.

Review circumstances and cause(s) of the crisis and, if applicable, recommend and
implement post-crisis measures to minimize future similar events.

Administrative Staff Sample Duties

Work with Communications Manager (if applicable) to screen telephone calls, email,
website and social media inquiries.
Screen reporters, family members or others who may arrive unannounced at the
administration building. Obtain the following information and keep a log:
o Name.
Title and organization. (Who is the person representing?)
Name of newspaper, radio or TV station, if applicable.
Telephone number to reach the person.
Email address of person, if applicable.
Reporter's deadline, if applicable.
Nature of the inquiry.

Q0 O 0 0 O

Crisis Management Plan 12



= |f areporter, photographer, attorney, investigator or victim’s family appears in person at
the administrative office or another location, obtain the above information and
immediately contact the Crisis Team and official Spokesperson.

» All responses to information inquiries are limited to providing the official information
pre-approved by the Crisis Team for distribution. If possible, a script should be provided
(and up-dated periodically) for all staff to read from if responsible for answering the
agency phones.

Spokesperson Sample Duties

The role of the Spokesperson is to represent the agency as the liaison to the media and third
parties. At the direction of the Crisis Team, the Spokesperson presents official, accurate and
pre-approved information to the media on behalf of the agency. The agency is not obligated in
any way to share information with the media. However, it is often advisable to provide a brief
statement, before requested, acknowledging the incident and expressing sympathy for the
family and others involved.

Any agency-approved communication should never include a “no comment" statement. Such a
statement leads to a misinterpretation that the agency has something to hide, leading to
speculation and innuendo and prompting the media to find other information sources that may
be unreliable and/or have hidden agendas. The agency can, with legal counsel input, provide a
written press release including the following:

» Acknowledge the incident/crisis.

= Express compassion and support for victims and their families.

= Explain it is premature to provide details pending further investigation.

» Describe rescue/proactive efforts/safety record, etc.

* Emphasize the matter is under investigation and your agency is fully cooperating with
other agencies.

»  Assure public you will provide additional facts as they become known.

The designated Spokesperson should have in-depth knowledge of the organization, be well
spoken and professional, and be comfortable and confident in the role as Spokesperson. Pre-
crisis training through exercises such as mock press conferences is a valuable exercise to
prepare your Spokesperson for a future crisis situation. Remember, the Spokesperson is the
agency’s primary liaison and the face of your agency that the public sees.

On behalf of the agency and Crisis Team, the Spokesperson presents factual information in a
means and manner directed by the Crisis Team. If the agency determines a press conference or

Crisis Management Plan 13



in-person interview is necessary, it is advisable to have the Spokesperson begin by reading a
prepared statement that accurately presents the agency's response to the crisis. This allows the
agency to list points proactively for the media to know, even if reporters do not ask the
Spokesperson questions that would elicit that information.

The Spokesperson should not answer any questions for which verified facts are not available. In
such a situation, the Spokesperson can say:

“Regretfully, we all must respect the pending investigation, and it is premature to
address this question/issue at this time. | certainly would not want to provide any
inaccurate or misleading information inadvertently. Of course, as facts become
known and verified, | would be pleased to revisit this question/issue.”

In addition, the Spokespersons should never:
» Release victim information until family members are notified.
» Speculate on liability, damage costs, causes, etc., until verified and reviewed by legal
counsel.
* Fix blame on others or mislead.
» Speak off the record.

Role of Board Members and Elected Officials
Board members and elected officials are concerned during a crisis. Often, they feel obligated to

speak to the media, victims/families, and/or the general public. Despite their good intentions,
they may inadvertently compromise the agency’s reputation and ability to minimize potential
liability exposure. Strongly advise board members not to make any statements to the news
media or any third party without prior consultation and approval from legal counsel. PDRMA
counsel or assigned counsel often speaks with board members through the protection provided
by executive session to update them on the crisis and related legal and liability issues.

Role of Employees in Dealing with the News Media
All employees must recognize their role in a crisis. They must understand it is the agency’s

policy and expectation that any information released comes from the designated
Spokesperson. Employees should know, as soon as possible, the contact information of the
agency Spokesperson.

Advise those employees directly or indirectly involved in the crisis that reporters or other
investigators may approach them. The same is true for employees involved in the investigative
process and/or information flow. Reinforce your media-response policy with these employees
during interviews and crisis debriefing so they know the appropriate responses to questions.

Crisis Management Plan 14



Offer employees the following guidelines in handling reporters or others seeking information:

1. If anyone approaches you for information, you are not required to give an interview,
and we ask you to direct the person to the designated agency Spokesperson. You can
say, "I’'m sorry. I'm not the best person to answer that question. You should contact
(state designated Spokesperson), and | am confident he/she can assist you."

2. Itis acceptable not to know the answer to a question. Say, "I don't know," and direct the
reporter/person to the Spokesperson.

3. Never say, "No comment." Reporters may interpret that phrase to imply guilt or that
you have something to hide. Instead, say, "Please understand that | am not the best
person to discuss this event. | would not want to provide inaccurate or incomplete
information unintentionally. You should direct your inquiry to (provide name and
number of designated Spokesperson)."

4. Never make an off-the-record statement. There is no such thing as an off-the-record
comment. Any statement made off-the-record can become front page headlines. The
confidentiality of off-the-record statements cannot, and often will not, be guaranteed.

Media Relations Plan

Through direction of the Crisis Team and legal counsel, the Spokesperson coordinates all
interaction with the media and any outside requests for information. The Crisis Team decides
the time, place and means of sharing information with the media and/or responding to media
requests, with advice of legal counsel.

You want to show you are a willing partner in sharing information, and you are committed to
cooperating with the media, However, you must also be very clear that the agency will not
share any information until legal counsel verifies and reviews it.

Do not make promises to reporters. Tell them you will share information when it is available for
the public.

Monitor all news and social media to determine how the crisis is being reported. Determine
whether reports are objective and accurate. When necessary, prepare and distribute accurate
information to balance any serious false statements.

Crisis Management Plan 15



Always prepare an initial written press release and consider posting it on your website or on
other social media channels.

Continuing Operations Considerations

Crisis Management Plan

Evaluate staff readiness — The head of the Crisis Team should meet with supervisors of
employees directly involved in the incident to determine if they are ready to resume
duties. If not, does the agency have enough resources to continue operating with non-
involved staff?

Reopen the facility — Consider a gradual reopening to keep staff from becoming
overwhelmed following the incident. A supervisor should be available when reopening a
facility involved in a crisis event to answer any questions from the public so as not to
distract the staff.

Communicate with the public — Set a date to reopen when staff is ready. Consider
shorter hours or limiting public participation in programs for a period of time. Let the
public and patrons know staff evaluations and other readiness training was completed
prior to reopening.

Communicate with outside groups/users — Consider suspending out-of-the-ordinary
programming activities, special events or large-group facility use for a period of time.

16



Appendix A - Sample Initial Press Release

The Morton Grove Park District has recently been informed that on (date of crisis) at
approximately (identify time), the following occurred:

(Briefly describe crisis)

At this time, the specific facts and circumstances surrounding this event have been neither fully
substantiated nor confirmed. We are currently in the process of investigating this matter in full
cooperation with:

(Identify other investigative agencies)

Out of respect for the investigative process and in fairness to the families and parties involved,
we are unable to provide further details at this time. However, we are committed to providing
additional facts and developments as they become known and confirmed. In the interim,
anyone wishing to provide or request further information should contact (identify agency
Spokesperson) at (phone number). We are also providing up-dated information on our agency
website at Mortongroveparks.com.

Crisis Management Plan 17



Appendix B - Emergency Phone List
Below is the list of people to contact in the event of a crisis situation. Please call these individuals

in the order listed. If there is no response, call the next person on the list.

Morton Grove Park District Executive Director - Jeff Wait
Time Called

PDRMA
Time Called

Office (630) 769-0332
Fax (630) 769-0449
PDRMA After Hours — Includes instructions on how to reach PDRMA staff after hours.

Morton Grove Park District Human Resources & Risk Manager- Michelle Trevino
Time Called

Morton Grove Park District — Superintendent of Finance —Marty O’Brien
Time Called

5 111 v, R
HOmME. .cummninssaaiiimmss
Call PRORE. . civumsmswssnivi
EMailceeeeeeierie e

Morton Grove Park District Attorney — Steve Adams
Time Called

Crisis Management Plan 18



Cell Phone.....cooooviiieiniiinian

Governing Board President
Time Called

[ [0 ] 1 [,

Crisis Management Plan

19



Appendix C - Statements of Admission and Social Media
(To be read or otherwise communicated to staff from Management)

In a tragedy such as the one that has occurred, it is important to remind everyone of the
agency’s communication policy. It is critical to the reputation of the agency that all incident-
related communications be accurate, appropriate and properly attributed. Only those
employees officially designated by the agency have the authorization to speak on behalf of the
agency. In this matter, (identify Spokesperson) has been designated the agency Spokesperson.
Staff is expected to refer all media inquiries to Executive Director Jeff Wait, as our agency
Spokesperson. Should anyone from the media contact you, a simple and appropriate response
would be: “Please understand that Jeff Wait has been designated as the Morton Grove Park
District’s Spokesperson. Kindly direct your inquiries to Jeff Wait.” You can then simply walk
away, hang up the phone, or close the door. You have no obligation to talk to the media and
should not feel pressured to do so.

Staff should be cautious in discussing the incident with family members, friends, residents and
other third parties. Your communications may be inaccurate, misunderstood, misperceived, or
result in rumors that can negatively impact the image of the Morton Grove Park District and our
staff, and compromise our ability to defend potential litigation. Similarly, the agency recognizes
and respects the right of employees to use social networking, personal websites, texting and
weblogs as a medium of self-expression. Again, only those employees officially designated by
the agency have the authorization to speak on behalf of the Agency. It is important to keep in
mind that this matter is currently under investigation. Many facts remain unknown, and there is
significant information that has yet to be confirmed

Please be careful to avoid disclosing any information that may compromise the investigation, is
confidential, or may violate privacy rights or privacy perceptions. Show proper consideration
and respect to coworkers, the victim(s), our patrons and others. While we cannot prevent you
from using social media, we strongly recommend you do not use it to discuss the incident or to
discuss this incident in an inappropriate or counterproductive manner. Your perceptions or
representations may not be accurate, may violate attorney/client privileged, may violate
privacy rights, and can later be used against you or the agency by the media or in a future
lawsuit against the agency. In short, remember that what you post will be around for a long
time, so consider the content carefully.

Crisis Management Plan 20



The agency and its Employee Assistance Program provider are available to you if you should
need help coping with the incident. Please see any manager if you have questions about this

policy.

Crisis Management Plan

21



Appendix D - Sample Chain of Custody Document

Chain of custody documents are important from a legal perspective in that it document the
movement and location of physical evidence from the time it is obtained until the time it is
presented in court.

A chain of custody document should be used when physical evidence as part of an investigation
is placed in secure storage and/or provided to another person or organization. It is important to
document the chain of custody so that it reflects the care provided in handling important
physical evidence when stored or transferred to indicate its condition and that is was not
physically altered while in the care of any individual.

(Reference here the incident relating to the need to execute a chain of custody document)

John Doe, Manager for the Anytown Park District (Describe here exactly what was done to
obtain a device or document, on what day, time and where stored securely).

Date

John Doe, Any Town Park District

Example:

John Doe turned over control of the above cited device/document to Jeff Smith, PDRMA, at
approximately 11:00 a.m. on xx/xx/xxxx at (Add location here). Jeff Smith delivered the
device/document to Sara Yager, PDRMA, Director of Claims and Legal Services, at the PDRMA
office at approximately 8:30 a.m. on xx/XX/Xxxx.

Description of Device or document:
6" X 5" white box hard drive (now brownish and discolored) square shape with venting around

three sides.

e In hand-written pen on one side. — “10.20.13.10 (space) Sept 2009”

e Three ports on one side —one round, one cable jack and a rectangle prong jack.

e Additional manufacturer information on a label that may be readable, but will need
closer inspection and cleaning to identify details. Manufacturer listed as Security Digital.

Crisis Management Plan 22



Security Camera:
3 XYZ Security Cameras provided by John Doe to Jeff Smith on xx/xx/xxxx. Jeff Smith provided
cameras to Sara Yager on xx/xx/xxxx.

Camera description:

Camera 1 Bar Code 10.4.192.33 10.23.15.109

Date

Ed Dutton, PDRMA

On xx/xx/xx (approximately 9:00 a.m.), Sara Yager provided the devices to Eric Hohenstein,
PDRMA Claims Supervisor, who removed the hard drive and three security cameras from their
storage container for the purpose of photographing the items and placing identifying stickers
on the devices. The hard drive and camera were returned to their original container and
securely stored at the PDRMA office.

Date

Eric Hohenstein, PDRMA

Crisis Management Plan

23



Emergency Operations Guidelines 1
Policy Statement

It is a significant purpose of the Morton Grove Park District to provide programs and facilities
for general use in the safest method. No procedure or structure is unsusceptible from
emergencies, and the Morton Grove Park District acknowledges its responsibility for the safety
of its employees and patrons. All measures taken and determined will provide the highest
safety, assessing the circumstances and options.

In providing such a plan, the Morton Grove Park District is responsible for delivering a safe
environment for all employees and patrons.

All responsible Morton Grove Park District employees will acquaint themselves with this manual
and their role in the event of an emergency.

Crisis Management Plan 24



Emergency Phone Numbers

Police

Non-emergency:

Fire

Emergency Medical and Ambulance

Morton Grove Park District
Administration/Community Center
Maintenance

PDRMA, Park District Risk Management Agency
Village of Morton Grove

Public Works

Sheriff

Public Health

Public Utilities

Northern Illinois Gas
Commonwealth Edison
J.U.L.LLE. (underground cable)

lllinois and National Agencies
State Police

Children & Family Services
Poison Control

Plans of Action and Description of Emergencies

Severe Weather
1. Lightning

211
847-470-5200
11
911

847-965-1200
847-965-0065

630-769-0332

(847) 965-4100

(847) 470-5235

630-668-0900

630-620-3325 or 630-682-7400

630-629-4000 or 1-800-942-6100
1-800-334-7661
1-800-892-0123

630-742-3553
1-800-252-2873
1-800-222-1222

A. Warning will only be flashes at a distance. Conditions are most ideal just prior and
during heavy storms. This is not however, the only time there is lighting.
B. Seek shelter if outdoors or remain inside whatever building you are in at the start of the

storm.
C. If no structure is available:

1. Do not stand under a natural lightning rod such as a tall tree in an open field.
2. Do not touch any pooled water and stop all water activities.
3. Stay away from metallic objects like fences, bicycles or golf clubs.

Crisis Management Plan

25



4. If caught in an open field and you feel or see your hair stand on end, drop to your
knees and bend forward with your hands on your knees.

5. NOTE: DO NOT LIE FLAT

6. In open fields seek low areas.

7. Avoid using the telephone except in emergencies.

D. Thorguard: When a lightning threat is detected within a 2.5-mile radius of the system:

1. A 15-second uninterrupted horn blast will sound along with a continuous strobe
flash.

2. All outdoor activities will be suspended, and park patrons should immediately
seek shelter in a building or closed automobile and remain in shelter until the
threat has passed.

3. When lightning threat potential has passed:
¢ Ahorn will sound three short blasts.

e The strobe light will turn off.

2. Thunderstorms

A.

Warnings: weather alert, radio, or TV announcements will be broadcast indicating the
areas of concern. Preparations for sheltering of dismissal of activities should be
considered and acted upon.

All water activities should be stopped, and pool areas evacuated at sighting of lightning
to a safe distance or position as determined by pool manager and conditions.

3. Tornadoes

A.

Tornado danger signs:
1. Severe thunderstorm-frequent lightning, heavy rains and strong winds.
2. Hail bullets of ice from a dark cloudy sky.
3. Roaring noise like ten jet planes or a hundred railroad trains.
4, Funnel - a dark spinning "rope" or column from the sky to the ground.
Radio and TV announcements of a Tornado Watch is a forecast of the possibility of one
or more tornadoes in a large area.
1. Continue normal activities but WATCH for tornadoes.
2. Ifatornado (a funnel cloud) is sighted move at a 90 degree angle away from it.
3. Notify proper authority.
Radio and TV announcements of a Tornado Warning means that a tornado has been
detected and may be approaching.
1. AS-minute steady blast of the emergency siren system will be activated if possible.
2. Shelter should be sought:
a) Inthe lowest level of available structure near interior walls or hallways.
b) Avoid using large rooms such as gyms or auditoriums.
c) Avoid rooms with large glass exposures.
d) In open areas try to lie flat in the nearest ditch.
3. The following areas are recommended as safe places to seek shelter in the event of a
tornado or tornado warning:

Crisis Management Plan 26



a) Prairie View Community Center: The two locker rooms will be the primary
locations.

b) Maintenance Building: Safe areas in this building are limited at best the
restrooms. Stay away from Garage 2 and 3.

c) Austin Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended for shelter of staff and
patrons.

d) Mansfield Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended for shelter of staff
and patrons.

e) Oketo Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended for shelter of staff and
patrons.

f) National Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended for shelter of staff
and patrons.

g) Parks (In general): In open areas try to lie flat in the nearest ditch or in the lowest
level of available structure near interior walls or hallways.

4. Blizzards or Winter Storms

A.

Radio or TV announcements of a Winter Storm Watch means hazardous winter weather

conditions may affect the area.

Radio or TV announcements of a Winter Storm Warning means hazardous winter weather

conditions are threatening the area.

A severe storm is defined as one that produces (6) six inches or more of snow in 48 hours

or less or damaging ice over 5,000 square miles.

If a winter storm occurs:

1. Considering the additional potential hardships of winter weather it is advised that
preparations for dismissal of all activities be initiated.

2. Try to stay inside if possible. If you must go out, avoid over exertion, dress warmly in
loose fitting, light weight clothing. Keep dry. Remember to wear a hat and gloves.

Fire & Explosions
1. At visual sighting of smoke or fire:

A.

B.
C.
D.

Sound fire alarm system and/or notify occupants of condition.
Notify fire department 911.
Evacuate area if necessary.
Employees trained in the usage of fire extinguishers may attempt to extinguish small
fires if the proper extinguisher is available.
1. At sounding of fire alarm and/or conditions that a fire exists:
a. Close doors and windows if time and conditions permit this to be accomplished
safely.
b. When smoky conditions exist, crawl toward exit on hands and knees along walls.
c. Always feel doors for signs of heat prior to opening. Use caution when reaching
for door handles. Metal conducts heat as well.
2. When evacuation is necessary:
a. Proceed in an orderly fashion.
b. Assemble in pre-designated areas.

Crisis Management Plan 27



C. Assoon as possible take roll call to insure safe exiting of all Individuals.
d. Render first aid as necessary.

3. Return to normal activities only after the fire department and/or supervisory staff
have declared the area safe.

If a fire alarm is sounded at the Prairie View Community Center, the following will apply:

Guest Services:

1. Guest Services staff will immediately call the Fire Department, 911 to verify the alarm.

2. Guest Services staff will check upstairs restrooms and all persons evacuate through the
nearest exit doors. Take daily schedule when exiting.

3. Remain outside until given the "all clear" by the fire department.

Instructors:

1. The Executive Director shall have all participants line up in an orderly fashion and
evacuate through the nearest exit doors.

2. Human Resource and Risk Manager: Will check bathrooms to make sure they are all
clear.

3. Superintendents: Will check Fitness Center to make sure it is all clear.

4. Once outside, instructors will take an immediate head count to assure staff that all
participants are outside.

5. Instructors and participants shall remain outside until an "all clear" is given by the fire

department.

Hazardous Materials Incident

1.

2,

Notification can be the visual observance of an incident or public announcements by

police, fire or another emergency agency.

What to do when engaged in inside activities:

A. Determine the need to leave the building.

B. If anincident is within the structure, you are to ensure involved area is closed off to
all but emergency personnel.

If incident is outside the structure, you are in:

A. Stay inside unless advised to evacuate.

Close all windows and doors on the side of the structure that faces the incident.

Relocate activities to areas of the structure opposite to the exposed side.

Arrange for evacuation if advised to do so by public safety authorities.

Evacuate in the direction and to a location as directed by public safety personnel.

Maintain order within the group and ensure roll call is taken upon arrival at

designated area.

G. Notify Morton Grove Park District administration office at 847-965-0538.

H. Notify parents/guardians of location so they can pick minors up.

If the activity is outside near the incident:

A. Move all personnel to an area up wind from the incident. A generally accepted

minimum safe distance is 1/4 mile.

mTmoN®

Crisis Management Plan 28



NOTE: Actual safe distance varies with products and ambient weather conditions.
B. Once relocated to a safe area, ensure a roll call is accomplished.
C. Administer first aid if necessary.
D. Notify Morton Grove Park District administration office at 847-965-0538.
E. Notify parents/guardians of location so they can pick minors up.

E. Return to normal activities only after public safety and supervisory personnel have
declared the area to be safe.

Floods

1. Notification of flood potentials will be given via radio, TV, public safety agency warnings
or public address systems. This is one of few emergencies that require evacuation as a
normal action. Upon notification, preparations to evacuate must be started.

2. Terminate all activities.

3. Notify necessary transportation agencies, parents/guardians of the condition so
evacuation can be carried out in a safe efficient manner.

4. Flash flooding: In cases where there is flash flooding or insufficient time for
notifications, personnel should progress to the highest area as rapidly as possible in an
orderly manner.

Earthquakes
1. During an earthquake the solid earth moves and sways. The shaking and swaying seldom
causes death or injury. Most casualties are the result of falling objects and debris from
damaged and destroyed buildings. For these reasons, potential of injury can be reduced
through removal of:
a. Items that are stored above user head heights.
b. Items that would impede progress of evacuation.
c. Cabinets with open face shelving or structurally weak latches or doors.
d. Chemicals in breakable containers stored on shelving.
2. Anticipate the hazards that could be caused by:
a. Ruptured water or gas lines.
b. Suspended ceilings.
¢. Glass windows and doors.
d. Desks or tables that are not secured.
3. Personnel in building:
a. Seek shelter under tables or desks with head placed between knees and facing away
from windows.
b. Move toward inside walls away from large open areas, crouch down and cover their
heads.
5. Personnel outside:
a. Lie orsit personnel down.
b. Try to maintain a tranquil attitude amongst the group.
c. The safety of all personnel will be greatly enhanced if supervisory personnel can
maintain an orderly and tranquil composure.
d. Once a quake has subsided, it is essential to take roll to account for personnel.

Crisis Management Plan 29



6. Return to normal:
a. No structure or area altered or affected by an earthquake will be utilized until public
safety and supervisory personnel have approved their usage. This is inclusive of
building, pools and play areas.

Prairie View Community Center Earthquake Evacuation Procedures

An earthquake can happen without warning. As soon as you feel an earthquake's shaking or
hear its rumble, go to safety immediately. When it's over, survey where you are and check for
injuries.

Maintenance Building
¢ Take shelter under tables until the earthquake is over.
* Austin Park Fieldhouse
e Take shelter under tables until the earthquake is over.
Mansfield Park Fieldhouse
Take shelter under tables until the earthquake is over,
Oketo Park Fieldhouse
Take shelter under tables until the earthquake is over.
e National Park Fieldhouse
e Take shelter under tables until the earthquake is over.

Supervisor's Office
e Get under a desk or table. Survey scene and proceed outside.

Registration Office
e Get under counters, away from windows. Survey scene and proceed outside to the side
of Prairie View Community Center,

Avoid The Stairwell - Be prepared for possible after-shocks.

Turn Off Utilities
e Upstairs staff turns off gas valve outside of kitchen door. Downstairs staff turns off

electricity and water valve in furnace room.
Proceed to downstairs areas only if it is safe to do so.

Utility Emergencies
1. Gas Line Break
A. Top priority item - with the first confirmation of a break in a gas line take the
following actions:
When break is inside a building and the concentration is noticed throughout building, evacuate
without further action.
e Notify police and fire 911

Crisis Management Plan 30



Notify Morton Grove Park District administration office at 847-965-0538.
Notify Northern Illinois Gas at 629-4000.
When a break is outside a building, notify Administration and Northern Illinois Gas.

2. Electrical Power Failures

Determine extent of problem.
Within a portion of building.
Only the building you are in.
An entire area of community.

B. Actions to take in case of problem 1 and 2 above.

Notify Morton Grove Park District administration at 847-965-0538.
Notify Morton Grove Park District maintenance at 847-965-0065.

C. Actions to take in case of community wide problem.

Contact Morton Grove Park District Administration Office for advice on dismissal
potential. If dismissal is effected insure that all personnel are advised to stay clear of any
and all downed power line.

When incident involves potential electrocution or person being held by electrical power
do the following:

Do not touch victim.

Call 911.

Try to remove victim from capture of electrical power by turning off source of power. If
this fails, wait for emergency personnel to arrive.

Water Pipe Ruptures or Loss of Water

a. Notify Morton Grove Park District maintenance at 847-965-0065.

b. If advised to do so, notify City or County public officials as required.

D. Telephone or Communication Loss

By available means, notify Morton Grove Park District administration at 847-965-0538.
If advised, notify proper communications company to request service.

Note: Loss of phone system is potentially a sign that emergency alarm systems may not
be in service. Maintain fire and security watch until the Park District administration can
relieve the situation.

Lockdown
In an imminent threat to public safety, such as an active shooter or other threat of violence,
one or more buildings at the Morton Grove Park District may be placed on lockdown.

a. Locking all exterior doors and windows

b. Covering windows

c. Stay out of sight of windows facing the outside

d. Clear rooms that cannot be secured, such and hallways

e. Take attendance of those in your department

f. Do not allow anyone outside of the building to enter, or vice versa

Prairie View Community Center: Safe areas in the building include areas where there are doors

with locks
A. Maintenance Building: Safe areas in this building are limited at best the restrooms.

Crisis Management Plan

31



Austin Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended as shelter for staff and
patrons.

Mansfield Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended as shelter for staff and
patrons.

Oketo Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended as shelter of staff and
patrons.

National Park Fieldhouse: The bathrooms are recommended for shelter of staff and
patrons.

Civil Or National Disorders
1. Bomb Threat

A.

These are potentially dangerous and normally descriptive situations. To secure the
premises and resume operations requires quick action by the staff. Knowing what to do
when a threatening phone call is received requires training and practice.

A secretary or staff member who receives the bomb threat telephone call should first
note;

e \Voice characteristics: raspy, slurred, accent, distinct diction patterns.

General manner; rational and calm, emotional and righteous, sure or unsure.
Background noise: traffic, office machines, animals.

Local or long distance.

A checklist should be kept at the secretary's desk. If a call is received that a bomb
has been planted, the secretary should also try to determine the following from the
call:

Name of caller or organization.

Date of call.

Time of call.

Exact location of bomb.

Time set for detonation.

What does the bomb look like.

Why the bomb was planted.

What kind of explosive used.

Caller: male, female, adult, child.

If the caller does not wish to answer questions, try to encourage the caller to do so by
expressing a desire to save lives. Try to keep the caller on the phone as long as possible so that
the call can be traced. Have someone alert the telephone company to begin tracing the call.

e Number for telephone company 1-800-698-4200
e Police Department number: 911

e Fire Department number: 911

e Administration Office: 847-965-0538

Crisis Management Plan 32



Emergency Operations Guidelines

A. Check all rooms in building for a possible device location. Do not touch any suspected
items. While checking building look for possible clues or indicators of a bomb.

1.

DN Wi

Waste containers.
Doors ajar.
Windows open.
Are unusual lights on or off.
Recently delivered packages.
Exposed wires or matchbooks.
7. Length of pipe.
8. Wires or strings attached to unknown objects or unusual items.

B. If any suspicious object that is believed to be a bomb is discovered, the following
procedures should be followed:

1

R S (R

Do not move or disturb the object.

Evacuate the building immediately to a distance of at least 500 feet.

Program leaders should take a count of patrons.

Telephones or radios should not be used.

Fire and police should be told of any information pertaining to the location of the
bomb.

Staff and patrons should remain away from the building until authorities determine
that it is safe to re-enter the building.

C. Should a bomb explode in a Park District facility:

ot B ol ol

Evacuate as soon as possible.

Administer first aid as needed.

Take roll of all personnel.

Notify police - 911.

Notify Morton Grove Park District administration at 847-965-0538.

Return only after the police and Park District administration have determined that
the area is safe.

D. Civil Unrest, Demonstrations and Disturbances.
With any of the above conditions it is advised that the following take place:

1.
&
3.

Crisis Management Plan

Notify the police department - 911,

Notify the Morton Grove Park District administration at 847-965-0538..

Notify the occupants of the building, using a calm, tranquil voice, of the pending
situation.

Any other actions should be taken only with the advice of public safety officials and
Morton Grove Park District administration.

Maintain security of important sensitive documents located at facility.

33



E. National Disaster/Disorder

1. National emergencies or disasters; all actions during these situations must be based
on information, time and general climate of the particular situation. Information will
most normally be received from the Illinois Emergency Service and Disaster Agency
of Cook County. This agency will provide notification via public address systems,
radio, and TV. Constant monitoring of these systems will be necessary in these
situations. It is essential that supervisory personnel maintain an attitude of
tranquility and calm for the enhancement of public safety at large.

Ozone Alerts
1. Ozoneis regarded as one of the chief sources of air pollution during late spring, summer
and early fall. It has been proven to be a health hazard for chronic respiratory and
coronary illnesses.
2. Methods of alert and classifications are by public notifications by Illinois Environmental
Protection Agency during the period of May 1st through September 30th.
Levels of alert:
A. Yellow - levels of 170 part per billion (PPB) and conditions are expected to re-occur
the following day.
B. Red - levels of 300-500 PPB and conditions are expected to re-occur the following
day.
3. Actions to be taken:
A. Yellow alert - notify personnel engaged in Park District outside activities of condition
and monitor individuals known to have respiratory problems.
B. Red alert - recommend stopping all outside activities until alert is terminated.
Serious Injuries and Iliness
1. For general information, should an incident occur the following information is provided.
A. Ambulance and emergency services - 911.
B. Police Department - 911
2. If a person is:
Not breathing - do CPR (if trained).
Bleeding severely - apply direct pressure and elevate wound.
Unconscious - treat for shock by elevating legs.
Severely/injured or extent of injuries are unknown or involve the spine - keep victim
as immobile as possible and calm. Do not move unless responsible medical help is
available.
Reporting Accidents/Incidents
1. Following all emergency situations, the supervisor shall gather all information regarding
the situation and complete a report. This information shall include, but is not limited to
names, locations, times, dates, agencies and action taken.
2. Areport of the events and actions taken shall be listed to serve as documentation for
investigation and legal purposes. This report shall be turned into the Administration
Office within 24 hours of the incident.
3. Itis very important that all accidents/incidents be reported regardless of who is
involved, or how minor the accident/incident might seem at the time. The whole

o0 ®>»

Crisis Management Plan 34



purpose of the safety committee is to prevent accidents/incidents through education.
We need the information that accident/incident reports contain to learn from our
mistakes and thereby reduce the chance of the same accident/incident reoccurring.

4. Itis not our intention to ridicule those who have an accident, only to learn from the
experience,

5. Please report all accidents/incidents to your supervisor, no matter what type (bodily
injury, vehicular, etc.) or how minor. Failure to do so only puts you and the people you
work with at greater risk of becoming a statistic.

Media Coverage
1. Inthe event of an emergency situation, no employee shall release any information
regarding the district, employees, patrons or emergency actions taken to the press or
media agencies.
2. Allinquiries of this type shall be directed to the Director or the Morton Grove Park
District President of the Board of Commissioners.
Crisis Management
1. What Is a Crisis?

A crisis is a situation or event that causes, or has the potential to cause, keen
public or media concern. It could be, among other things, an accidental
drowning, allegations or abuse, a severe vehicle accident, or a criminal act that
occurred on agency property. The potential crisis list is endless. The Morton
Grove Park District has appointed the Director as head of its Crisis Team. This
person will decide whether the crisis plan needs to be implemented or whether
the situation needs to be monitored and handled carefully. If the head of the
crisis team is not available, a potential or immediate crisis should be reported to
any Department Head.

2. Chain of Responsibility

In the event that the designated crisis team head/spokesperson is absent, the
following chain of responsibility will be followed in descending order. All
decisions and public responses should come through a consensus of the crisis
team members. Spokespersons will be responsible for making official statements
to the media on behalf of the crisis team. All listed spokesperson should review
their duties on a periodic basis to help ensure their preparedness in the event of
an unexpected crisis.

The following is a chain of responsibility order for crisis team head / spokespersons:

Executive Director

3. General Action Steps When A Crisis Occurs

A. Whenever a crisis occurs that involves injury or property damage, the first responsibility

of the Crisis Team is to ensure that the agency’s emergency response plan is
implemented, local EMS services are contacted, and any other actions are taken to
minimize further loss. Until the crisis is controlled, it is not recommended that any
statements be made to the media until the Crisis Team has had time to fully assess the

crisis and its impact on those involved.

Crisis Management Plan

35



B. Stay calm and in control. Notify employees that a crisis exists and that all information
about the crisis needs to be immediately communicated to the Crisis Team. Notify the
head of the Crisis Team at once and provide all known details. The Crisis Team Head will
direct actions depending on the severity of the crisis,

C. the need for immediate information, and the time of day. If contacted, members of the
crisis team must report to the designated location.

D. PDRMA should be immediately contacted in all crisis or potential crisis situations. If
applicable, an Accident Report Form should be submitted to PDRMA within 24 hours.
PDRMA’s fax #: 630-769-0449. The Crisis Team Head shall contact attorney if deemed
necessary.

E. Depending upon the situation, contact the governing Board President to make him/her
aware of the situation, followed by notifying other available Board members.

F. Continue to obtain and compile accurate information as quickly as possible so the Crisis
Team can disseminate accurate information to the media, if warranted. Document all
events surrounding the crisis. Staff should be assigned to monitor (and videotape if
possible) television news reports. In addition, local news radio stations should be
monitored to gather facts being reported. Any staff directly involved should be
interviewed by the crisis team as soon as possible. The Crisis Team may appoint fact
gathers to verify all facts necessary for the preparation of written press/media releases,
a meeting with the press, meeting with relatives, and other affected parties.

G. Guest Services will answer phone calls and relay any pertinent information to the Crisis
Team. Guest Services, as well as the entire Crisis Team, will document all information
received: who called, their title, time of call, etc.

H. The spokesperson may address the media after the crisis team has prepared a
statement. The designated spokesperson should speak on behalf of the agency and fault
should not be discussed. (In certain instances, the Crisis Team should not disseminate
information to the press or make a public statement.

I.  Depending upon the crisis, a press release may be prepared by the crisis team and
presented to the media.

1. Specific Action Steps for Crisis Team
¢ The following is a list of questions that will be addressed to begin the process of
responding to the crisis. Depending upon the circumstances, there may be much
more information to gather.
A. When appropriate, have the proper authorities been notified? (Police, fire, poison
control, EPA, utility companies, etc.)
Has the Morton Grove Park District attorney and board members been notified?
Has PDRMA been notified? (Phone #:630-769-0332, Fax:630-769-0449
PDRMA Helpline 630-435-8989
Have victims' families been contacted?
What outside parties should be notified?
Has the crisis situation been fully investigated? What is the potential for a secondary
crisis?
H. Are damage estimates accurate?

G mMmonNnm

Crisis Management Plan 36



How can the Crisis Team assure the public that the crisis is under control?

Has the waiting media been made comfortable (electrical power for equipment,
coffee, etc.)?

Will a formal press conference be appropriate and/or necessary? When: Where:
Has the spokesperson been updated with current information and tested with
anticipated media questions?

. Will a crisis center need to be established? Where?

Have false statements been reported by the media, which should be balanced with
facts?

Have photographs or videotape been taken to document the damage?

Is it necessary to contact the EAP or other counseling services for employees or
public involved in the crisis?

2. Members of The Crisis Team and Their Roles
Director (Official Spokesperson & Crisis Team Head)

The Director or Deputy Director in the Director’s absence will act as the official crisis
team head and as the spokesperson. The Director will be responsible for the overall
coordination of the agency’s crisis management plan. The director is the primary
voice of the park district throughout the crisis but may request that others with
more knowledge of the affected department’s operation also speak to the media.

Department Heads

The appropriate Department Heads will coordinate the processing of incoming
information such as witness statements, employee statements, in-coming phone
calls, radio reports, television reports, accident investigation results by safety
coordinator and PDRMA.

The Department Head is further responsible for establishing the following:

Exactly what happened?

Who was/is involved?

Where did the incident occur?

When did it happen?

Why did it happen?

What is currently being done to control or minimize the existing crisis?

If the answers to the above questions are not known, when will they be known?
Update the official spokesperson about changes in the situation as they occur.

Superintendent of Parks

The Superintendent of Parks will ensure that the Crisis Team has access to necessary
buildings, facilities, and power sources. Depending upon the crisis, the
Superintendent will coordinate efforts with the Village Public Works Department,
Police Department, Utility Companies, etc.

If directed by the crisis team head, the Superintendent of Parks will establish a
media center. When applicable, the media should be guided to a designated location
so they can monitor the crisis and receive the most up-to-date information on the
crisis situation. The Superintendent of Parks will be responsible for obtaining any
needed audiovisual equipment.

Crisis Management Plan 37



Supervisor Duties

Agency supervisory staff may be assigned to assist the director, spokesperson,
superintendents, crisis team, safety coordinator, or clerical staff. Some potential
assignments may include: Providing specific information on a program or facility.
Being responsible for identifying and reserving a designated media site capable of
accommodating a large group such as a news conference or open public forum.
Help assemble accurate information and formulate accurate answers to questions.
Contact the news media as directed by the spokesperson. Obtain information about
callers and inquiries from office administration. Assist the spokesperson in
responding to inquiries as directed.

Record and date all statements given to the media.

Risk Manager Duties

Assist PDRMA with investigative efforts.

Coordinate the identification of witnesses and gather information.

Take photographs and preserve any evidence.

Contact the necessary governmental agencies when applicable (i.e. EPA following
chemical spills, IDOL following the death of an employee, etc.)

Obtain, compile, or present pertinent safety documentation or practices conducted
by the agency.

Complete the Accident/Incident Report Form which should be faxed to PDRMA
within 24 hours, 630-769-0449. The safety coordinator will be responsible for
gathering employee statements in a narrative format to supplement the accident
report form.

Contact EAP services or other counseling agencies as directed by the crisis team
head.

Review the accident circumstances and causes and decide a course of action to
eliminate, or hopefully, prevent a similar situation from occurring in the future. This
information will be presented to agency staff after the crisis is controlled.

Office Staff Duties

Answer telephone inquiries associated with the emergency and screen reporters,
photographers, or others that arrive unannounced at Park facilities. Before
answering any questions, obtain the following information and keep a log of the calls
and media visitors:

The name of the person who is calling or visiting.

Their title and organization.

The name of the newspaper, radio, or TV station (if applicable).

The telephone number where the inquirer can be reached.

Their fax number.

Reporter’s deadline (if applicable).

Provide only the official information that has been approved by the
spokesperson. Let the caller know that they will be contacted as quickly as

O 0O 0 0O 0 0 O

Crisis Management Plan 38



possible with accurate information. If a reporter, photographer, or other
interested persons have arrived at the reception desk, notify the official
spokesperson after obtaining the above information.

Spokesperson Duties

e The role of the spokesperson is to present official, accurate information to the media on
behalf of the agency, when appropriate. The agency is not obligated to share any
information with the media. However, the term “no comment” can lead the media to
look for unreliable sources of information. In limited circumstances, it may be prudent
not to discuss the crisis with the media pending further investigation. The designated
spokesperson should have in-depth knowledge of the organization, be a good public
speaker, present oneself in a professional manner, and be trained as a spokesperson.

e On behalf of the agency and crisis team the spokesperson should present factual
information to the media at the crisis location, or at a press conference. It is best to
begin any interview by reading a prepared statement to accurately present the agency’s
response to a crisis.

e The spokesperson should refrain from answering any questions when verified acts are
not available. In addition, spokespersons should never:

1) Release victim information until family members are notified.

2) Speculate on liability, damage costs, causes, etc. (until verified).

3) Fix blame on others or mislead.

4) Speak off the record.

5) The spokesperson should admit that a crisis has occurred, and highlight what steps
are being taken to control it. The spokesperson should:

i. State the facts surrounding the crisis.

6) Highlight rescue efforts.

7) Highlight positive safety record.

8) Use the media to tell the agency’s story.

9) Balance any false statement made by the public or others.

10) An effective means of preparing for a spokesperson’s role is to conduct a simulated
press conference. This role-playing exercise can simulate a potential crisis response
at your agency by developing a fictional scenario and having the spokesperson
answer difficult questions the media may ask pertaining to a crisis.

11) When a spokesperson is confronted with a difficult question, it is best to respond by
stating that (the question) is still under investigation and that additional information
will be released when available. This will give the spokesperson and the crisis team
additional time to confirm facts, gather additional facts and formulate a specific
answer to the difficult question.

12) The spokesperson should keep agency employees informed regarding the facts

13) of a crisis when appropriate. Failure to inform employees can lead to the release.

14) of misinformation, speculation, and false rumors.

Role of Board Members and Elected Officials

e Itis recommended that board members and elected officials not make any
statements to the news media until after meeting with the Crisis Team or has been

Crisis Management Plan 39



directed by the Crisis Team Head. It is recommended that any statements made to
the new media only come through a designated spokesperson.

Role of Employees in Dealing with the News Media

In a crisis, all information should be released from members of the Crisis Team
through the designated spokesperson for the agency. Reporters may approach
employees who are knowledgeable of the event or who are witnesses to the event.
Employees should direct reporters and others to the agency spokesperson for their
information.

Listed below are some guidelines employees can follow when talking with reporters:

o If areporter questions you, you are not required to give an interview. If you are
uncomfortable, you can say, “I’'m not the best person to answer that question.
You may want to discuss this with (state proper person), the agency’s official
spokesperson.

o Itisacceptable not to know the answer to a question. Just openly admit, “l don’t
know.” Direct the reporter to the spokesperson who may have the answer.

o Itis okay to express sympathy for any persons injured during a crisis. However,
employees should direct any specific questions concerning the crisis to the
agency’s spokesperson.

o Don’t say, “No comment.” Reporters may interpret the “no comment” phrase to
imply guilt and reluctance to talk with the media. You can say, “at this time, it
would be premature and speculative to discuss the matter pending further
investigation.”

o Don’t say anything you don’t want to see in print. A negatively phrased “joke”
loses its humor in print and can be very embarrassing when read later.

o Never make an “off-the-record statement.” The confidentiality of off-the-record
statements cannot be guaranteed.

Media Relations Plan

The Crisis Team Head/Spokesperson will coordinate all interactions with the media.
In general, it is beneficial to communicate with the media when accurate
information is available. In some cases it may not be prudent to present detailed
information on a crisis to the media. The crisis team and legal counsel should make
this decision. However, in some situations failure to make an official statement to
the media or release information may lead to the media seeking alternative and
unreliable sources of information.

The spokesperson may designate other individuals to be interviewed as appropriate,
and will coordinate these interviews and be present for difficult questions. The
agency’s legal counsel or PDRMA’s General Counsel should also be available to assist
in answering certain questions.

It is recommended that waiting media be made as comfortable as reasonable
possible with electrical power, indoor waiting area, coffee, etc. when applicable.

Crisis Management Plan 40



Reunification
The immediate goal of school reunification drills is to establish safe and orderly procedures for
reuniting students with their parents/guardians.
e The Morton Grove Park District is the established reunification site.
e A school safety team is designated consisting of school administrators, teachers,
support staff, and Morton Grove law enforcement to direct and oversee the drill.
e The Morton Grove Park District staff will assist in any area requiring help during
reunification.
* The Executive Director office space is designated as the command center during
reunification.

Emergency Phone List

Listed below are the phone numbers and pager numbers of people to contact in the event of a
crisis situation. Please call the individuals in the order listed. If there is no response, then call
the next person on the list.

To use pager numbers: dial the pager number and wait for a beep, then dial the number at
which you can be reached.

Executive Director - Jeff Wait Time called:

Office: 847-965-3007

Human Resources and Risk Manager— Michelle Trevino Time called:

Office: 847-965-0538

Cellular: 847-704-0847

Superintendent of Finance — Marty O'Brien Time called:

Office: 847-965-3004

Superintendent of Parks-Keith Gorczyca Time called:

Office: 847-965-3009

Superintendent of Recreation- Sue Braubach Time called:

Office: 847-965-3010

News Media Outlets

Television Stations Phone Numbers Email/Fax

WGN - Channel 9 773-528-2311 wgntvinfo@tribune.com

WLS — Channel 7 (ABC) 312-750-7777 No email; Fax 312.899.8019
WMAQ - Channel 5 (NBC) 312-836-5555 Submit via website
WBBM — Channel 2 (CBS) 312-944-6000 tips@cbschicago.com
FX:312.849.7200

WFLD = Channel 32 (FOX) 312-565-5532 Submit via website
Radio Stations

WBBM AM 780 800-784-6397 wbbmnewsradiotips@cbsradio.com
WGN AM 720 312-222-4700 tips@wgnradio.com

Daily Newspapers

Chicago Tribune 312-222-3232 triblocaltips@tribune.com
FX:312.222.4674

Chicago Sun Times 312-321-2522 metro@suntimes.com

Crisis Management Plan 41



Daily Herald 630.955.3500 suburbanevents@dailyherald.com

Shaw Media — Suburban Life

Ryan Terrell, Morton Grove Editor 630.427.6252 rterrell@shawmedia.com
FX: 630.969.0228

Kate Schott — Herald News kschott@shawmedia.com

The Bugle Newspaper 815.436.2431 jsamples@buglenewspapers.com

Post Crisis Evaluation Form
Everyone involved with the crisis situation should complete this questionnaire.
1. Name, Date, Position, Department

2. What was your role?

3. How did you learn of the incident?

4. Were you satisfied with how you were notified?

5. How could notification be improved?

6. Rank how you feel the park district handled the crisis. (Scale 1-10: 1=poor,10=excellent)

7. How can the park district improve its Crisis Plan?

8. How could this accident have been prevented?

9. What steps need to be taken to prevent a future incident?

Crisis Management Plan 42



Emergency Operation Guidelines & Crisis Management Plan
Acknowledgment of Receipt

The Emergency Operation Guidelines and Crisis Management Plan is an addition to the many
safety policies and procedures already in place at the Morton Grove Park District. As an
employee, you are expected to read this document thoroughly and return this completed
acknowledgment of receipt form, which will be placed in your personnel file.

Signature of Employee

Date

Crisis Management Plan

43



MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

Safety and Risk Management Procedure Manual

September 2023

Mission
Morton Grove Park District is committed to complementing our community’s quality of life, economic
capacity, health, and wellness through recreational opportunities while protecting natural resources,

Core Values
Transparency- Excellence - Service
Respect — Accountability



SAFETY POLICY STATEMENT

In accordance with its mission and values, the Morton Grove Park District (“District”) provides a safe
environment in all parks, facilities, and programs by adopting and implementing safety and risk management
principles that protect the health, safety and welfare of all staff and guests. Similarly, the District utilizes
sound practices in protecting its property, assets, and resources; in all instances making safety a primary
concern.

The district provides a wide range of recreational services, all of which have a level of inherent risk. Staff is
committed to a high level of safety awareness and performance. All staff members are responsible for
working in a safe manner by correcting, avoiding, and reporting hazardous conditions and accidents.

To achieve a standard of safety excellence, the following objectives will be continuously met:

¢ Embedding safety and risk management into the district’s culture and operations.

e Maintaining an effective safety committee with members from all departments.

e Reinforcing the importance of safe work practices and risk management principles through training.

¢ Managing safety and risk management within the bounds of applicable law, regulations, and
industry best practices.

e Ensuring that all departments have ownership and clear accountability for safety and risk
management.

e Communicating clear roles and responsibilities as it relates to safety and risk management.

e Integrating safety and risk management into the district’s leadership activities such as decision
making, business planning and performance management.

* Monitoring the safety and risk management program on a regular basis with an emphasis on
activity and result standards.

Jeffrey Wait, Executive Director Date Paul Minx, Board President Date



Contents

L. PUFDOSE A SCODE s sissrs sivive s oomiss 51506930004 sivis i m s asa 00t it s 0 o oo B saa S mmbd s e s 6
B N A I T O AN im0 S s R e v 6
BIRCERA OFfICIAIS ..ottt ettt et e s eaea et eo e et ene st ae e et e nes s n e e enene e erer 6

X UtV D B O e s o T e A S B B e s S e o s e oy
B S I ATV im0 S i A S R S 6
BepaltmentlHead . v i i i T e S e S S e s s e e 7

BT TR v Y S R A S A P A T ST

3. S ATEY COMIMITER s mermmmmmssss e s o e L TS e ST s o T R S TS TS S YT sy A s ARt 9
Purpose of the Safety Committee......................... R R s e 9
AT ST R GO AT L cvmmuminissin im0 S A A S s PSS S ST 9
Committee SeleCction ANd SEIUCTUNE ...........cciiuiirieinies st sesa s s ab s sab s s sa sa b aa s bs et st r0n 9

CDMMITERE IVIEBRIIES i miismss oo v o s o R B v S s TR ey o o v ascasomssissassrsa 10

4. General Safety/ Risk Management PrOCEAUIES. ..........ocoevrueeieetieiieseeiesesessesesesen s tesasessssesseassasasaesenssassessssseeseseses 10
G151 VL o e s S SO YRR B o o L e L ARy O o 10
T om0 S A S A i B 10
GENEIAI SAFELY RUIES ...ttt r e e s oot bttt bt et bbbttt et a et 14
Accident/Iocident REBOTENE o mms s S v e e R ST T s 15
Statemiant O A TG SIO TS A BB BINTBINE s oussosincuansesusssinsisnssos ssswsmssss s 5451 5508 Er§3 3SR S5 T TR SO AR SRS SRR FO S 15
ACCIAENL/INCIAENTE REPOILINE.....eoverercermrerissnseissressasesssssssrersassseresssasssssessassssessatstssssisarsss st ssmsnsssansasssssssassisssssbsnsssenesons 15
Waork:Related Mehicle ACCIHENTS: o unianmuminiiomimminos s s s o i T R 15
LTI g a2 (1) LFALLTLL e O ose -l e S R T e e I 16
Vandalism/ThafGand Other incdentS s i s e s e s 16
MOAITIEE DY POTICKE vy o mym e s s s N Ry R o A R A T A T T 17
Lo O g LT Y T T T 0 1= 4 OSSOSO U ST S 17
General Staff duties in crisis management are detailed belOW ... 17
6. AlCONO!/DIUE-FIEE WOTKPIACE ........oeve ettt 17
DB OIS . cossnssanssssmsmsnsionsenspmsssmss smmsmnssnnsasnmsp sbmmssss semasmmss s ooa o o A s i et 18
IO oo vasmvomason i asseassaess o3 vouvsaa Ry Y5 T Y DT R 4 AR SH TR S 18
PROCEDUIRES.... cocosnunessusmmmnsminmsesmssnsmmmniosmmmssmansise sy s mn s sSSP A Ve T A e A i S b 18
1§ R 18
(0] (11 [ Tt SRR IO SN e (TR SR N 19
Refusal to Provide SPECITEN OF CONMSEME.. . cuwmmrmsisssssnssiissivississossssssisistiossisicsssisisnsas sidbassussory susvaness somvivs stovsesiidiss 19
Chain OF POSSOSEION oo isininusmriimesisassoss i 1o e B b s e e W P PRSP R O TS F AT TR 19

iii



ORI O B AIIEY ot b s S G A B o R e AR 19

S T TTETE o sorvenrssn ot os s TRy R e e e T i O R N o e e S S e P AR 20
7. SAFETY TRAINING REQUIREMENTS ..........cooommriaimsasoisessassasssassnntssssianisaisiasiasssrosnesaivaiosnanstsonsnsssonsabiaiivassiiinssisvonssn 28
8. Facility Safety............. ST S S S —. 40
Facility EMErgency PrOCEAUIES........cocciiiiirmirreessesesimsse e seses st ems e ea et s s n s s 2o s A bR SRR bRt es 40
B BT e R MO PRI iciiiviionincomsn i s 4 S B R R VRT3 40
s A1) F- [0 [0 3 401 = £ L0 Jod 601610 | | 1RSSO TSN SN SR SSor S O 41
LIBhtning Hazard ProCRAUIE: ...........ccemminssisisisssrisasssnsisssssns sssssnanssssssasionssess sinesssassshosssesisnsssssshamamsatommiiismabasisinsivs 41
Code Adam EMErgency PrOCROIUFE: i i i sasuissatan s iissssss isousisds sivissbis sss sabia sii1sinsamanarsvasesssooiasasasassasssasas 41
FACHITY, FlOBH PrOCOTIUTES . .oxommsrsssiniimmnssessaisanseisinssssssrs it sammssssensatonsahsbrossons ridiadasns sssmgsnsaassssvons siabis st SAHHE A ARTI R TS 4]
Facility Gas Leak ProCaTUres st o et L5 o0 058 o s L e T B i S o PR
FaCility LOCKAOWN PrOCEAUIES ..o ittt ettt ee e es s e et eeme s eeeen s e st e s ettt s 42
Routes of Egress, Fire Exits and Other Walking SUrfaces ..o 43

BEETA L O ISEREBDINE cunmmmsvasonivirs et b s sk e s AR e VR S s S s SR i S pesensie so AED

D E OO G v o oo e e e s e o e S W TG P e S TR P s 44
R T G Bl T S i s T e T s e e S e s 44
Safe Lifting and Matorial HaNGINE s onissime oo mssmyiiss s s st s 49
10. TOOIS BNT EQUIDIMEINT..1.iietesivirsesessiesssrerssreseeesesessasssesessassesssas s esessssesmasasesesssmsesses et esabe e st b e st b e s seas s Esenransnarens 50
LATBS L anusiass oo o ms v oo oo U500 T Vo s o e s e s 0 0 s S b e B S P e i 50
L e R T L T T 51
POWET TODIS AN B DI R i s e oo S sm o S e o A S i 52
AT P B T ETOM T o couunonnsns im0 TR N 0 o SRS A S 03 52
Bl CETICAl SATOLY. ... oottt ettt s e e et et e et £ S A e A e es R e ee s R e meae Attt et n s 53
Electrical circuits..........occe..... S U o B S s e s 54
O AEE Y EICEIIERIL .o s 0 A Al R SN A A T SR 54
MISCEIANBONE L. e i s i e S el S A S R 54
LD IO TAP QUL v s ssssnsss sy st sauaie smsasva o sv ooy SaA oo S s s e O R o S A b3 55
P BCIAL SIEUATIONS ..ottt m s ca e s s s e e e es e em s as se et eaen e e s ese st s ensssssenemen s e es e e ee s eee et ereme e 55
CONTREE SPRCE v i o s i e S B G s o e i 55
T T T o L U 56
S e M e AR i s R S R R s S s e S i e SR T T R N o 56
TR OF PO I OORE s vususausuuaiessnsivevasiss o iessvssssias sees o dsns s S T e Fo e s S A GRS T T S T 56
DESKS @MU CR@ITS: ...ttt ettt s b ettt s e es s o2 st s bbbt bt 56
o T T B T B o 4 e 57
Playground Safety.......c...covvveeececeeeei e T S A R R e A B D T 57
aatolgo o L=l el ol Lo (AT 2= U = ol - OO ROSRRRRSTPR 57



s 3 A T T 57
L NN, PP OIIN i cinscsomessimasmisasisoshoe  5 A  A S  S  d5 58
Preventing SIPS TRPS @N FAIIS ... oottt e e ettt sees s er e 58

T SEE U ———" 58
Preventing Falls From HB BT ..o i s s omessi s oy b ey s i svos g sy seses s v aiavin 58
13, VT E O PEIAtOr SATELY .. .iiviveeeeciiiireseeeiciesiess s eeesessaresas e e seresas e e s eses e s eseseesesensse et esseeseseeessssssseresaseeensennnes 59
General Vehicle Operator REQUITEMENTS. ......cccciiiiiiciomraeeisasisirasesssisesessssstssssassast stasanssesesssasSessiesamsassssasasemsserasasas 60
14 RECREATION. SARETYE s oo ssmsssinne s com e s o e i s i e G e oA 62
Abuse and Neglected Child REPOTTING AC........ovoiveeeeeeeeeeerscee e eesse s seess s sss s seessssseseseses st st sesesssssessasessssaseesesas 62
Child Care Sarety RUles ..o amanmmnains s s s s s i e i iaisiviiss /O
PlayBroUNG SAfEY RUIBS .......coov ittt es s s s s ee et et e e et st es et et eae e ssen s st mee e s eae st seeteeeseasarestassmnmee 63
RIS ON KON BaTS i s s o s s e e e s s S s esv et 63
T TN N T IS cacunmonons s 3 A A A A 31 63
e R .~ W 64
Bats @N0 BallS: ...t ssese st bbbt R ettt es e g R st b b ns e e sea b 64
15: Other Safety TopICS i mmsim mr s R s saas s 64
Peirsorial Protective EGUiDIETE s s o osa i s o e G o R s oo s b s 64
HEATINE CONSEIVATION ....ceovivveeisisesistiseseeeeeecsassae s e sessasees s emsasssssest st aesas s eeeeean et et aansemsesems s eesbnassaeasenesssssm et ens e ababesssetas 64
NGisE: MomiTorinE RE SR i i s b S s S B S st 64

POt TR A S A AT O S O B O S U L oo S Mo o o S B SRS S 65

C. Respiratony ProtootiDn .. mis s ssssti oy s insissns o ceriso s i sws 154500 v b owiars 50 s s nsas s 65
2HEaTote JioTe T aT- i AT 0 g (o 5] L e U SO eSO NPORT SO DO 66

Facility Medical Emergency Prototol. ... i deiiniuiiiin it aimraiaimiamssmisivn 0T
MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT: ivussnin subiswssonssossssisns sibnsinsiss o rssnosss sy osnisass tasssasos o rsnssis i usnsissussiivaon sy 69
STAFF ACKNOWLEDGMENT ....cccmmmmsessssonsmmremmnonsnsrmssmmsetssseisssssnsstnsasopte s stonsinss st st e sl ikt s e 09



1. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of the Staff Safety and Risk Management Manual (“Manual”) is to create an
awareness of safe work rules and guidelines for risk management as it relates to the work,
purpose, and mission of the district. Staff members are expected to become familiar with the
information contained in this Manual, and follow all the rules, standards and guidelines outlined
herein.

This Manual applies to all District operations, facilities, and programs; it is intended to be a
resource for safety rules and risk management information. Detailed information for any of the
topics presented in the Manual can be obtained from the Human Resources & Risk Manager.
Additional information for many of the programs and procedures in the manual is posted
electronically on the district’s computer system at C:\Risk Management\Safety and Risk Manual.

2. Accountability for Safety

All staff members are expected to perform work in a safe manner and follow the rules and
guidelines contained in the Manual. Furthermore, it is the responsibility of Supervisors to
ensure that the standard of safety in this manual is followed.

Enforcement of safety rules should be carried out as necessary by Supervisors according to the
disciplinary action policy found in the Personnel Policy Manual.

Elected Officials

Provide the Executive Director and the various Department Heads with the resources necessary
to create a safe operation and supportive environment for its employees and citizens.

Executive Director

Designate a Risk Manager and ensure that safety responsibility is accepted, and policies
implemented.

Require Department Head accountability for the safety performance of employees in their
respective departments,

Review all safety committee minutes and safety committee recommendations.

Review recommendations from the Risk Manager for new safety policies or modifications to
existing policies.

Manage the claims and litigation of same, as well as other risk management functions.

Risk Manager
The Risk Manager is responsible for guiding management in the formulation
and implementation of sound safety policies. Overall, the Risk Manager shall have the responsibility to:

Organize and direct “The Safety Committee” and attend all Safety Committee meetings.
Review the District’s safety policies annually and recommend to the Executive Director new
safety policies or modifications of existing policies as necessary.

Provide the Executive Director with all safety committee minutes, safety committee
recommendations and summaries of significant accidents.

Develop an attitude of “Safety Mindedness”.

Provide technical know-how in the establishment of safety procedures, instructions, rules and
standards.

Analyze data on accidents and personal injuries for the purpose of corrective action to
determine direct causes and contributing factors in order to better understand the various
safety problems.



Discuss with Department Heads the application of safety procedures and practices within their
respective divisions.

Develop, organize and implement special safety programs and safety communication.
Periodically evaluate compliance of the District’s safety program requirements within each
division by inspecting facilities, equipment, and work practices.

Make follow-up safety inspections when required to ensure that unsafe conditions or practices
identified by the Risk Manager, Safety Committee or the Department Heads have been properly
corrected.

Inform the Executive Director and Department Heads about the status of matters affecting the
loss prevention program.

Coordinate compliance with federal, state, and local safety laws.

Maintain files and records on all accidents including injuries, vehicular accidents, property
damage and general liability.

Maintain the O.S.H.A. 300A Log.

Department Head
Each Department Head is responsible for the safe fulfillment of the District’s safety goals and objectives,
as well as for the health and welfare of each employee in his division.

While the authority to carry out the safety policy may be delegated to supervisors within the District,
overall responsibility for the safety record of the District cannot be transferred from the Department
Head. Specifically, each Department Head will:

Provide the leadership and positive direction necessary to maintain continuous emphasis on loss
prevention in all operations.

Interpret the District’s safety policies and apply them to the internal operations of the division.
Develop safety procedures for division operations.

Ensure that the safety policies and procedures set forth herein are in compliance by all
personnel under his/her direction.

All reports and required forms received from supervisors must be turned into the Risk Manager
within 24 hours of receipt.

Ensure all accidents are reported and thoroughly investigated as required and, where
appropriate, prompt corrective action is taken whenever hazards are recognized or unsafe acts
are observed.

Review all accidents occurring in their respective division and discuss plans to bring about a
more positive loss reduction.

Document all training.

Correct all unsafe acts and conditions observed or reported.

Provide the personal protection equipment as required by certain operations, provide training
as necessary in the use of the personal protection equipment and ensure it is used, and used
properly.

Encourage safety suggestions from employees.

Ensure all employees are trained and, when necessary, retrained in safe procedures for
hazardous jobs and the proper use of safety equipment.

Actively participate on the District’s Safety Committee.

Ensure safety is part of each employee’s Performance Evaluation.



Supervisor
The success of the loss control program depends on the sincere, constant and cooperative effort of
all supervisors and on their active participation and support. Supervisors shall strive to:

Ensure that the safety policies and procedures set forth herein are in compliance by all
personnel under his/her direction.

Provide complete safety instructions to new employees prior to assignment of duties and to
existing employees prior to reassignment of duties.

Document all training.

Enforce all safety regulations and rules and ensure that employees understand that violations
will not be tolerated. Inspect operations for unsafe practices and conditions and, where
appropriate, implement prompt corrective action to eliminate causes of accidents.

Investigate and report, in writing, all accident/injuries in a prompt and thorough manner. This
includes completing all required forms. All reports and required forms shall be submitted to the
respective Department Head within 24 hours of the accident.

Incorporate safety objectives in employee training sessions. To pass on safety
information/training, receive information on safety related problems and to stimulate interest in
safety.

Ensure employees practice good housekeeping and general maintenance.

Ensure proper maintenance of equipment for the reduction and elimination of hazards.
Provide the personal protection equipment as required by certain operations, provide training
as necessary in the use of the personal protection equipment and ensure it is used, and used
properly.

Take the initiative in recommending correction of deficiencies noted in facilities, work
procedures, employee job knowledge, or attitudes that adversely may affect Park District loss
control efforts.

Ensure safety is part of each employee’s Performance Evaluation.

Employees
The employee has a responsibility for his/her own safety and likewise has a responsibility to his/her
coworkers, the community and employer. As such, the employee must:

Comply with established safe work rules and the special instructions of the supervisor.
Report all accidents and injuries immediately and cooperate in all accident and injury
investigations, supplying supervisors with full and complete information.

Report all unsafe conditions or defective equipment immediately to his/her supervisor.
Submit recommendations for safety and efficiency, as needed, to his/her supervisor.
Only operate equipment that he/she has been trained and authorized to operate.

Use personal protective equipment as required and/or needed in performing daily work
assignments.

Never abuse tools and equipment through improper use.

If any doubt exists about the safety of doing a job, he/she shall STOP and get instructions
from his/her supervisor before continuing work.



3. Safety Committee

Purpose of the Safety Committee

The mission of the Safety Committee is to support the Safety and Risk Management functions of the
Park District and facilitate implementation of objectives stated in the Morton Grove Park District safety
policy by communicating clear roles in safety and risk management to all staff; assisting in the creation
and evaluation of safety and risk management initiatives; recognizing and investigating opportunities for
improving safety and risk management performance and to exhibit a high level of performance as a staff
advocate and leader in safety and risk management practices.

Safety Committee Goals
The goal of the Safety Committee is to embed safety and risk management into the district’s culture and
operations. To achieve this goal, the Committee must successfully perform five roles:

e Educator: Provide information to departments through training, verbal, and written
communication

e Advisor: Shape training, safety and risk management plans and initiatives through active
feedback in departmental and team meetings.

* Investigate incidents and accidents as well as current and potential safety and risk management
problems to come to a recommended solution.

* Advocate: Discuss departmental or division safety and risk management concerns during
Committee meetings.

® Leader: Learn, teach, exhibit and influence safety and risk management best practices within
the Committee, departments, and divisions.

The Safety Committee has six strategies to meet its purpose and goals.

 Perform in-depth reviews of all significant accidents, incidents, and facility inspections at every
Committee meeting.

» Review viability, function and performance of safety and risk management programs and plans
on a schedule set by the Human Resources & Risk Manager.

o Communicate safety issues and activities to staff through meetings with full-time and key part-
time staff as requested by the Human Resources & Risk Manager.

* Discuss department/division concerns as an agenda item at each Team meeting with follow up
or resolution action on all items.

* Consciously observe work behaviors and coach or correct staff exhibiting unsafe or risky
behaviors and follow up with supervisors.

* Discuss the outcomes of quarterly facility safety inspections.

Committee Selection and Structure
Each of the following areas will have a full-time staff representative.

® Parks and Facility Maintenance
e Recreation
e Administration



Committee Meetings

Committee meetings are held monthly on an annual schedule determined by the Human Resources & Risk
Manager. In the event of scheduling conflicts, meeting times will be rescheduled to a time agreed upon
by most Committee members.

® o @ 8 @

A review of the minutes from the previous meeting

Continuing, open or unresolved agenda items from the previous meeting

Mini-training session

New Agenda Items

Review of significant accidents/incidents/injuries

Discussion of significant facility safety/risk management issues from facility inspections
Representative reports

4. General Safety/ Risk Management Procedures

General Safety and Risk Management Responsibilities

Director and Superintendents

Work with Human Resources & Risk Manager to implement safety and risk management
measures affecting his/her department.

Enforce safety and risk management standards through coaching staff and correcting unsafe or
incorrect behavior and conditions. Implements disciplinary action if appropriate.
Communicate the need far safety equipment to the Human Resources & Risk Manager.
Reinfaorce department standards for safety and risk management to supervisors.

Supervisors

Inspect work areas for compliance with safe work practices and rules.

Enforce safety and risk management standards through coaching staff and correcting unsafe or
incorrect behavior and conditions. Recommends disciplinary action if appropriate.

Completes accident reports and provides medical authorization for initial medical care of injured
staff.

Communicates need for safety supplies to the Human Resources Department.

Ensures that safety equipment and supplies provided are available to staff, are used and properly
maintained.

All Staff

Maintain familiarity with Safety and Risk Manual contents.

Maintain a working knowledge of all general and departmental safety and risk management rules
and procedures.

Report all accidents and unsafe conditions to a supervisor immediately.

Promptly forward all medical information pertaining to a work-related injury to the Human
Resources & Risk Manager.

Cooperate and assist in the investigation of accidents.

Submit suggestions related to safety methods, conditions, or activities.

Attend all required safety trainings and actively participate when necessary.

Comply with all safety rules and follow safe work practices. If any doubts arise, get instruction
from the appropriate staff before continuing work.



e Use all equipment in a safe manner and for its intended purpose.
e Wear the required personal protective equipment for all jobs or assigned tasks. Dress
appropriately for the job or tasks assigned.



PDRMAD A Parter You ConDepen On

Legal Considerations for Serious Incidents

After any serous incidents involving palrons or employees, your Bgency needs o address & variety of
wsues, Inchuding iInvestigations by tha police and other governmental agencies, questions and demands
from the public, your staff, the media and gathering of information. One of the most important actions
your agency must take is to call PDRMA immediately at 630-769-0332 regardiess of the time of
day. Often, time is of tho essence, and it is critical to consult with PDRMA Claims. and Legal Services
quickly after the incident. Calls to PDRMA during nonwork hours go 1o an emergency service thal will

immediately contact the appropriate PDRMA stafl,
During a crisis, PDRMA's Claims and Leogal Services depariments can:

s Assist with police and other governmental agency investigations.

e Provide instructions regarding llinois Department of Labor and/or the (linoks Department of Pubbc
Health reporting.

+ Coordinale the investigation

s Protect the confidentiafity of the investigation.

+  Aid with media statements,

o Assist with communications with the victim's family, members of the public and other
parties seeking information.

« Provide customized legal services including hinng outside defense counsel. if necessary.

« Provide risk management sarvices based on the scope and nature of the incident.

Protect the Investigation - Attorney Client Privilege

“Attorney-client privilege” is a legal concept that protects certan communications between a clenl (le.. a
PDRMA agency/employee) and atlorney and keeps those communications privileged and confidential
from third-parties, including (for example) potential claimants, media outiets, elc. By assuring
confidentiality. it encourages clients 10 make full and frank disclosures to thelr aftorney, who can befler
provide lailored advice and effective representation. Communications that do not fall within the scope of
attorney/client privilege are often subject to public disclosure via the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA).
subpoena and discovery in ktigation, or through third parties such as law enforcement and other official
investigative agencies. Those unprotected communications can contain inaccurate, incomplete and
misleading information and/or admissions aganst the interest of the PDRMA agencylemployee thal
olhers can then use against the member in a cour of law andfor the cour of public opmion. You can only
give a slatement with absolute confidentiality lo PDRMA's legal counsel or your corporate counsel. Thes
includes wrillen statements prepared by stafl witnesses, third-party accounts documented by member
saff and drafl media statemenls created by staff or outside consullants. Members should speak with
PDRMA's legal counsel before requesting of preparing written stalements, preparing media statements
and before taking any disciplinary action agains! staff,

Follow these steps immediately after a crisis
1. Conlact PDRMA at 630-769-0332.
2. Consult with PDRMA's legal counsel before giving, requesting or preparing any writlen
statements of reports. It 1§ acceptable to compile a list of witnesses that inchudes names and
personal and professional contact information

12



Serious Incident: Legal Considerations for PORMA Members
Page |2

3

When possible, consull with PDRMA'S legal counsed before cooperating with the investgating
law enforcement or other governmental agencies. investigative reports and statements taken by
nvestigating police or other official investigators are often subject to public disclosure under
FOIA. PDRMA recommends nforming the investigator that the agency wants 1o provide is hull
cooperation but also wants to protect it legal rights.

Consult with PDRMA's legal counsel before drafting or releasing any media statements
regarding the incident,

Avoid internal emails, instant messaging, lext messages, tweets, blog ertries, Facebook
postings and any other social medial comments about the incident. These communications are
not protected by attomey client privilege and fikely must be disclosed f requested by FOIA or in
discovery,

Prepare an Accident/Incident Report using PORMA’s Incident/Accident Report Form 01

and submit it to PDRMA by emailing R to pewclaims@pdrma org. Do not create a separate
internal loss report. It is important 1o submit Form 01 to PDRMA for review by PDRMA Claims
and Legal Services 1o maintain the attomeyiclent prvilege. PDRMA’s standard ciaims reporting
forms contain specific language 1o establish and protect the confidentiality of the report through
attorney/client privilege. Any written account or description of the incident or supplemental writien
(including electronic) communication or report pertaining to the incident should have the following
language at the lop of the document:

THIS DOCUMENT IS AN ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIVILEGED COMMUNICATION
PREPARED FOR AND AT THE REQUEST OF PDRMA'S LEGAL COUNSEL.

When directed by PDRMA legal counsel or PDRMA-assigned outside legal counsel,
communications (email, fax, other) should also contain t™he above phrase in he subject heading
of the communication and should be directed o PDRMA's Legal Services department - Sara
Yager, General Counsel, and/or Dustin Fisher, Deputy General Counsel. Do not send the
documents 1o any other recipients (e.g.. facility managers, superintendents, etc ). since that
could negate the attorney-client privilege.

Never release the Form 01 report to any third party (including investigating police or via FOIA)
without first consulting with PDRMA's legal counsel.

It is critical you do not accept iability and/or offer to pay medical bills or repair costs. PORMA's
Claims and/or Legal Services will respond to the claim on your behalf

By working together, PORMA and its members can handle senous incdents in 8 manner thal maoumizes
safe response and minimizes legal risks

13



General Safety Rules

The safety rules listed below are basic and general in nature. These rules are the minimum standard of
safety expected of all staff members. All staff are responsible for abiding by the rules contained in this
Manual.

e Horseplay and fighting will not be tolerated.

e Possession of unauthorized firearms such as knifes, airsoft pistols, etc., as well as alcoholic
beverages, or drugs in the workplace is against policy.

¢ Inform a supervisor if required to take medication during work hours that will affect the ability to
operate vehicles, equipment or perform job duties in a safe manner.

e The Supervisor must be notified of any permanent or temporary impairment that may reduce the
ability to safely perform a job.

e Personal Protective Equipment must be used as required by the Personal Protective Equipment
program and according to the specific job or task hazard assessment.

e District vehicles, mobile or powered equipment may only be operated by trained and authorized
personnel.

e Any potentially unsafe conditions or actions must be reported immediately to a supervisor. This
includes “near miss” accidents — those accidents that almost happened.

e If there is any doubt about the safety of a work condition, assignment, or procedure, consult the
appropriate Supervisor before beginning work. Hazards must be eliminated or adequately
protected against by protective equipment before beginning work.

¢ All incidents, injuries, and property damage must be reported to a supervisor, regardless of the
severity.

e All hazards and unsafe conditions must be reported to Supervisory staff or the Human Resources
& Risk Manager immediately.

e Staff is responsible for maintaining proper housekeeping standards for their work areas. All tools
and equipment must be stored in a designated place. Scrap and waste material are to be
discarded in designated refuse containers.

e Smoke, fire, or unusual odors must be reported to a supervisor immediately.

e Tasks requiring lifting and/or carrying of tools, equipment or material must be done using proper
lifting and carrying techniques. A two-person lifting technique or machine aided lift is needed for
objects weighing over 50 Ibs.

¢ Staff must never attempt to catch a falling object.

o If a work task creates a potential hazard, correct the hazard immediately or mark the area clearly
before leaving it unattended.

e Seat belts must be fastened and worn by all drivers and passengers when operating a vehicle or
mobile equipment.

e Staff that operates vehicles must comply with all aspects of the Vehicle Operator Safety Program.

¢ Staff authorized to drive District vehicles are responsible for having a valid driver’s license for the
class of vehicle operated. Staff must report revocation of driver’s license and must notify their
supervisor of any driving citations received.

e Staff must be familiar with facility emergency procedures and be prepared to perform required
actions in emergency situations. More information can be found on the incident accident form.



o Staff must cooperate with all safety investigations and inspections and assist in implementing
requested safety procedures.

Accident/Incident Reporting

The District’s Accident/Incident form must be completed and signed by the appropriate chain of command
for accidents/incidents. The form must be filled out completely; not applicable (N/A) shall be placed in
areas that do not apply. Only facts that can be verified should be included on the form. Additional
information such as witness statements, opinions and unverified facts should be documented on a
separate piece of paper and attached to the form.

Statement of Admissions Agreement

When an accident occurs, no matter how insignificant it may seem to be, it is of the utmost importance
never to admit guilt or negligence of any kind until there is a formal investigation of the matter by your
supervisors and the causes of the incident have been determined. You are required to contact your
immediate supervisor and not to render speculation on the causes of the incident. All questions relating
to an accident involving District property and/or personnel must be directed to a department head or
designated manager.

e Do not promise payment of medical bills to any injured person.
¢ Do notindicate that the Park District is responsible for the accident, injury or incident.

Accident/Incident Reporting

e Any injury sustained at work should be immediately reported, no matter how minor or
insignificant it may seem. It is the staff member’s responsibility to report all injuries as soon as
they are discovered.

e Injuries should be reported to the immediate Supervisor if available, or to the level above
immediate Supervisor. Should these individuals not be available, injuries may be reported to any
Supervisor, Manager, Superintendent or Director.

e Supervisors must complete the accident/incident form. All Accident/Incident reports must be
submitted to the Superintendent of Human Resources & Risk Management within 24 hours after
the incident occurs. If medical treatment beyond basic first aid is required contact the Human
Resources & Risk Manager immediately.

e After the injury is reported, seek treatment. First aid used in treating a work-related injury must
be reported in detail on the Accident/Incident form, including the name of the person providing
first aid.

« If medical attention is needed because of an accident, to either a guest, or coworker; or if there
is any damage to District property or third-party property, the staff member sustaining the injury
and/or otherwise causing the accident will be transported to either Concentra Medical Center or
Lutheran General hospital for treatment and post-accident drug/alcohol testing.

e |If a work-related accident requires paramedic transport of the injured staff member, drug and
alcohol testing will take place at the facility where the individual was transported for treatment.

Work-Related Vehicle Accidents
* Any accident involving District vehicles or personal vehicles on District business must be reported
to police immediately.
e The driver will use 911 to report an accident and request emergency medical assistance if
necessary. The driver will call the immediate Supervisor and the Human Resources & Risk



Manager or the Director to report the vehicle accident. The driver will follow any instructions
given,

The driver and passengers may not leave the scene of the accident until police have arrived and a
report has been completed.

The driver and passengers must not make any statements that may indicate fault. Use a digital
camera or tablet to photograph the accident scene and damage Complete both sides of the
Illinois Vehicle Accident Report. Complete the entire Accident/Incident form.

If there are injuries, the accident results in property damage, or the driver is ticketed because of
the vehicle accident, the staff member who was driving must submit to a drug and alcohol test at
Concentra Medical Center. If the accident requires paramedic transport of an injured staff
member, drug and alcohol testing will also take place at the facility the staff member was
transported to.

The Illinois Accident Worksheet and the Accident/Incident report form along with any photos
must be submitted to Human Resources & Risk Management the next business day.

Guest Accident/Injury

Complete the District’'s Accident/Incident form as described at the start of Accident/Incident
Reporting. If medical treatment beyond basic first aid is required, call 911 then contact Human
Resources & Risk Management immediately.

Provide first aid if necessary. First aid used in treating a guest injury must be reported in detail
on the Accident/Incident form, including the name of the person providing first aid.

If the injured guest is under the age of 18, contact the guest’s parents or guardian and inform
them of the injury sustained by the guest. Complete the appropriate portion of the
Accident/Incident form verifying that a parent or guardian was contacted.

In the case of a guest accident that requires medical treatment beyond first aid, take pictures of
the area where the accident occurred. Pictures should include any equipment involved with or
causing the accident. Use a digital camera if available. Label and attach all pictures to the
Accident/Incident form. Digital photos can be emailed to the Human Resources & Risk Manager.
All Accident/Incident reports must be submitted to the Human Resources & Risk Manager the
next business day.

Vandalism/Theft and Other incidents

Staff will complete the Accident/Incident form as described at the start of Accident/Incident
Reporting. Staff will specify the type of incident by completing the front of the form. A police
report number, if one has been provided, must be printed legibly in the appropriate space at the
top of the form. If medical treatment beyond basic first aid is required, call 911 then contact the
Human Resources & Risk Manager immediately.

Take pictures of the area where any vandalism, damage, or theft occurred. Label and attach all
pictures to the Accident/Incident form. Digital photos can be emailed to the Superintendent of
Human Resources & Risk Management

Call the police to handle extreme behavior incidents such as fights, violent threatening or
disruptive behavior. Call police for all reported incidents of vandalism and theft. Staff will wait at
the site of the incident (if safe to do so) for police to arrive and will obtain a police report number,
if appropriate, from the responding officer.

All Accident/Incident/Injury reports must be submitted to the Superintendent of Human
Resources & Risk Management the next business day.



Modified Duty Policy

The district is committed to providing employees with every reasonable opportunity to maintain career
and employment status and benefits. The district has developed a Madified Duty Program for
employees who have sustained work-related injuries or illness.

The purpose of the Modified Duty Program is to provide a temporary modified work assignment, where
feasible, available, and applicable. The feasibility of Modified Duty shall be determined on a case-by-
case basis, taking several factors into consideration including but not limited to the specific physical or
mental impairment, the essential functions of the job, the work environment and ability of the district to
provide modified duty.

An employee who declines a Modified Duty position, which is within the limitations set by the treating
physician, may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of employment. The
employee may also lose eligibility for workers’ compensation benefits when applicable.

5. Crisis Management

A Crisis is a situation or event that causes, or has the potential to cause, keen public or media concern. It
could be, among other things, accidental drowning, allegations of abuse, a severe vehicle accident, or a
criminal act that occurred on Agency property. The potential crisis list is endless. If staff knows of a
situation or event that could be of concern to the public or media, please contact your Supervisor and the
Executive Director immediately. The district has appointed the Executive Director as the head of its Crisis
Team. The Executive Director will decide whether the crisis plan needs to be implemented. If the Executive
Director is not available, a potential or immediate crisis should be reported to the Superintendent of
Finance.

General Staff duties:

s Protect life — Staff on the scene of an emergency that requires police, paramedic ar fire
department assistance will call 911. Trained staff on the scene will provide first aid, CPR and/or
AED care as necessary within established District protocols.

e Communicate — Staff on the scene will contact a Supervisor and Executive Director via the
phone or radio. Priority is to contact a supervisor who is on duty and close to the scene.

e Don’t talk to the media, don’t gossip, and don’t speculate — The Crisis Team will appoint an
Official Agency Spokesperson to keep staff, residents and the media updated. Always refer
questions to the “Official Agency Spokesperson.” The best response to questions will be, “I'm
not the best person to answer questions — you'll need to speak to the Official Agency
Spokesperson.”

e Wait for direction and be prepared to help — Staff may assist in administering first aid (if trained),
assist in clean-up efforts, or be part of the Crisis Clerical Team.

e Be familiar — with the “Bomb Threat” form and procedure, Inquiry Log and Post Incident
Evaluation form.

o Never leave the scene of a crisis without contacting a supervisor.

e Complete a Post Crisis Evaluation form if involved at all in the crisis or the crisis management.

6. Alcohol/Drug-Free Warkplace
There is overwhelming evidence that alcohol and drug abuse have a detrimental impact on employees’
health, safety, and efficiency. Since District employees operate, supervise, and maintain parks, facilities,



programs, and equipment for use by members of the public and fellow employees, the district wishes to
assure the health and safety of its patrons and employees. Therefore, in accordance with federal and
state Drug-Free Workplace Acts (41 U.S.C._701 et seq. and 30 ILCS 580/1 et seq.); it is the policy of the
district to provide a safe, productive, and drug-free work environment.

All personnel are expected to report to work and remain in a condition suitable to perform their duties
at the highest level of efficiency. The impairing influence of drugs and alcohol during working hours is
inconsistent with this objective.

Definitions

a) “Work time” includes all time during which an individual is performing work for the benefit of
the Agency.

b) “Legal drug” means any controlled substance the possession or sale of which is not prohibited
by law.

c) “lllegal drug” means any controlled substance the possession or sale of which is prohibited by
law.

d) “Traceable in the individual's system” means that the results of the laboratory’s analysis of the
employee’s urine, blood or other specimen are positive for the tested substance.

Drugs
Engaging in any of the following conduct will cause disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

1. Reporting to work or working under the influence of illegal drugs.
2. The use, sale, possession, manufacture, or distribution of illegal drugs while on Park District
premises or on Park District time.

Individuals undergoing prescribed medical treatment with a controlled substance that may affect the
individual’s job performance must report this treatment to Human Resources. The use of controlled
substances as part of a prescribed medical treatment program is not grounds for disciplinary action; it is
important however, for the district to know such use is occurring as it may affect job performance.

Alcohol
Engaging in any of the following conduct will be cause for disciplinary action, up to and including
termination.

1. The use of alcohol while in working areas during working hours or reporting for work or working
under the influence of alcohol while on District business, where such use or influence affects the
individual’s work performance, safety or the performance of fellow District employees or
volunteers.

2. Volunteering to participate in treatment programs to help with alcohol or drug dependencies is
strongly encouraged but will not of itself prevent disciplinary action for any violations of this
policy. Such matters will be handled with complete confidentiality.

PROCEDURES

Testing
The district will require any employee to provide urine, blood and/or other specimen for laboratory
testing or to take a Breathalyzer test at a medical clinic of the district’s choice if:



1. The district has reasonable suspicion to believe that the individual is under the influence of
alcohol, or a legal or illegal drug. For the purposes of this policy, “reasonable suspicion” shall
mean suspicion based on specific personal observations that the Park District Supervisor can
describe concerning the individual’s appearance, behavior, speech, breath and/or body odor.

2. The individual is involved in any work-related accident. For purpose of this policy, an individual
shall be deemed to have been involved in a work-related accident if he or she is ticketed or
causes the injury of another person or self on the district’s premises or during working time or
causes damage to any of the District’s leased or owned property or any third party property.

Consent

If requested, an individual must sign a consent form authorizing the clinic to draw urine, blood and/or
other specimen, or to conduct a Breathalyzer test, and release the results of the laboratory testing to
the district or employment shall be terminated.

Refusal to Provide Specimen or Consent
An employee who refuses to provide urine, blood, or other specimen, or to take a Breathalyzer test
under this policy, or who refuses to sign a consent form employment shall be terminated.

Chain of Possession

At the time specimens are taken, the individual being tested shall be given a copy of the specimen
collection procedures; the specimens must be immediately sealed and labeled. The individual shall initial
the specimens to ensure that the specimens tested by the laboratory are those of the employee. The
required procedure is as follows:

1. The blood specimen, if to be drawn, shall be drawn with as little delay as reasonably possible.
Immediately after the specimens are drawn, the individual test tubes shall be labeled and then
initialed by the individual. The individual has an obligation to identify each specimen and initial
same. The specimens shall be placed in the transportation container after being drawn.

2. The urine specimen, if to be taken, should be collected, and tested for Ph and temperature. If
the initial test raises some doubt regarding the specimen, the individual being tested may be
required to retake the test in the presence of an observer. The specimen shall then be sealed in
the individual’s presence and then be initialed by the employee. The individual being tested has
an obligation to identify each specimen and initial same. The specimens will be placed in the
transportation container. The container will be sealed in the individual’s presence and he or she
shall be given an opportunity to initial or sign the container. If the samples are to be sent to an
outside designated testing laboratory, the containers shall be sent on that day or the soonest
business day.

3. The clinic shall conduct all Breathalyzer tests, if any, in accordance with generally accepted
procedures for the administration of such tests.

Confidentiality

The results of any blood or urine analysis or Breathalyzer test shall be kept strictly confidential among
the tested individual, the clinic, any outside laboratory used by the clinic for analysis and the district.
However, the District may use the results to decide upon an action to be taken toward the tested
individual or to the extent necessary, to defend its action in any subsequent legal or other proceeding.



Treatment

The district, in its sole discretion, may require any employee or volunteer who violates this policy, as a
condition to remaining in the employ of the district, to submit to and pass periodic urinalysis or blood
tests. In addition, the district may require the employee or volunteer to undergo, at the employee or
volunteer’s expense, alcohol, or drug rehabilitative treatment at the facility of the district’s choice. The
district may terminate any employee who fails or refuses to submit to urinalysis or a blood test, or who
cannot pass the urinalysis or blood test within six weeks following such treatment.

* Anyindividual convicted of violating any federal, state, or local criminal drug law must notify the
Supervisor of such conviction no later than five (5) days after the conviction.

e Anindividual convicted of violating any such criminal drug law may receive discipline up to and
including termination from wark or may have continued employment conditioned on
satisfactory participation in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program.



P D RMA% A Partner You Can Depend On

PARK DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AGENCY

OSHA/Illinois Department of Labor Recordkeeping and
Reporting Requirements

The lllinois Department of Labor (IDOL) enforces the lllinois Occupational Safety and Health Act
(ILOSHA) under the Safety Inspection and Education Act. ILOSHA protects the health and safety of
public employees by inspecting, investigating and evaluating public facilities and working conditions to
ensure compliance with OSHA standards and offers training and consulting to assure safe and healthy
working conditions.

Recordkeeping Requirements

Each employer must maintain in each workplace an OSHA 300 log of all recordable occupational injuries
and illnesses for that workplace. In addition, employers must complete and maintain OSHA 301 forms, or
equivalent, in each workplace as a supplementary record of each recordable occupational injury and
illness for that workplace.

Employers also must post an annual injury summary using Form 300A or an equivalent form that shows
total injuries for the year. At year end, employers must post the summary in a conspicuous/visible place
where they usually post notices to employees, so employees are aware of the injuries and illnesses
occurring in their workplace. You must post the summary no later than Feb. 1 of the year following the
year covered by the records and keep it in place until April 30.

You can find all reporting requirements in Section 350 of the OSHA Administrative Code and obtain
forms 300, 301 and 300A at https://www.osha.gov/recordkeeping/RKforms.html.

lllinois OSHA annually requires certain state and local government employers to report data from
their OSHA Form 300A Annual Summary of Work-related Injuries and lliness. Affected employers
must report that data from the prior calendar year via the federal online OSHA Injury Tracking Application
(ITA) portal no later than March 2 of the following year. The portal, with step-by-step instructions, is
https:/iwww.osha.qovlinjuryreporting/ita/. For additional information regarding annual reporting, visit
https://iwww2.illinois.gov/idol/Public-Safety/Documents/OSHA-ITA. pdf.

Reporting Requirements
All employers also must report 24/7 directly to IDOL at 800-782-7860 or 217-782-7860 the following
occurrences: (Section 350.410)

All work-related fatalities within eight hours.

All work-related inpatient hospitalizations of one or more workers, all amputations and all losses
of an eye within 24 hours

21



OSHA's Form 3004 & cine
Summary of Work-Related Injuries and llinesses

Because te

Nete: You can fype input into this farm and save It

1M i TS recarckerning package are Tilablsfwntatie’
PDF documents, you can type into the input form heids and

then save your Inputs using the free Adobe POF Reader

Year 20

Caupanm

A pitablishments coverad by Parf 1904 mus! complate this Summary page, even 4no wark-related imunes ar ilnssses oocured dunng the year
Asmember o renaw tha Log to verty that the eninas ans complets and accurats hefore completing this Summary

Lizing e Log, eourt the individun snines oy mada far aach caisgony TRen wrls tha isdals Saisw, Mang 5L you ve soded tha antra s frm
avery pags of the Lag If you had na casas wife T
Empiloy former 5 @nd maw hava the right fo s the OSHA Form 300 in s enfite]
the OSHA Form 301 ar is equvalert See 28 CFR Part 1904 35, i CSHA'S recordheesing rul. far furber defails
these forms

They aiso have imited access
the gocess prvisons for

1 numiber of
dabio

lotal muamber of o] niambser of sases
denths eases with days with
vy fpom work TSt

cascs

1 M) i

Ttk nuesber ol days of
b transfer o7 restry

T ot pumbser of dave

wartk

muay from

111 I 4] P

-
(21 Skin cisiediers 15 Hearing boss

3 Respirtary conditans t il

#ast this Summary gege from Fesirary 110 Apei 30 of ire yesr oot e pear coverad by the fomm

22

Estabiishment informagon

e wmmsrart o

St

Kl ip

riptn i

Empioyment infarmatian

oot o thet et piiige i

Al

wairhad by

sl
Sign here
Knowingly fabsifying this decument may resuli in a fine.

certify that | buve exsmine

i emities kre

U.5. Department of Labor
 Bafnty sns mewn Aman




JB PRITZKER MicHAaEL D. KLEINIK
(GOVERNOR DIRECTOR

January 20, 2022
To: All State and Local Government Employers

lllinois OSHA requires certain state and local government employers, who meet the criteria in Step 3 of this notice, to
annually electronically report data from their OSHA Form 300A Annual Summary of Work-Related Injuries and
llinesses. Use the steps outlined below to determine if this reporting requirement applies to your entity.

Step 1: Maintain injury and illness recordkeeping at the “establishment” level.

All state and local government employers must maintain OSHA injury and illness records at the “establishment” level.
For public entities, departments within an entity can usually function as establishments. For example, a city would
not maintain a single set of injury and illness records. Instead, they would maintain separate records for the fire
department, the police department, the street department, etc. Recordkeeping forms can be found here.

Step 2: Determine the number of employees per establishment.
For example, a city may have 25 employees in the fire department, 30 employees in the police department, etc. Part-
time, temporary, and seasonal employees must also be included.

Step 3: Determine if any establishments are required to electronically report Form 300A data.
State and local government employers operating establishments with 250 or more employees must electronically
report. For example, if a city has a department with 275 employees, the city must electronically report Form 300A
data for that department regardless of the type of department.
State and local government employers operating establishments involved in designated high-hazard activities
(identified below) with 20 or more employees must electronically report.
237310 - Road Maintenance/Construction (e.g. street or highway depts., road and bridge districts)
922160 - Local Fire Protection (e.g. fire depts., fire districts)
221310 - Water Supply/Distribution (e.g. water depts., water districts)
221320 - Sewage Treatment (e.g. sewer depts., wastewater treatment plants, sanitary districts)

Step 4: Electronically report.

State and local government employers meeting the criteria in Step 3 must annually electronically report Form 200A
data through federal OSHA's Injury Tracking Application (ITA] online portal no later than March 2nd for the prior
calendar year.

Resources
Federal OSHA has provided a specific resource page and FAQ regarding this reporting requirement. For technical
issues related to the online portal, please complete a Help Reqguest Form.

Please do not hesitate to contact lllinois OSHA at DOL.safety@illincis.gov or at (217) 782-9386 for questions or
clarification on recordkeeping and reporting. Thank you for your cooperation and compliance with this reporting
requirement.

Michae| A Biiz B c
160 North LaSa 2309 West Main Street. Suir
Springfield Ilinois 60601-3150 Marion, lllinots 62959

wa by (312) 793-2800 (A18] 993-7090

Fax: [217) 782-0596 Fax: (312] 793-5257 Fax: (618) 993-7258

Lincoln Te
324 South 2nd S

>




OSHAFactShee

C

Occupational Safety and Health
Administration (OSHA) Inspections

OSHA is committed to strong, fair, and effective enforcement of safety and heaith

requirements in the workplace, OSHA inspectors, called compliance safety and health

officers, are experienced, well-trained industrial hygienists and safety professionals whose

goal is to assure compliance with OSHA requirements and help employers and workers

reduce on-the-job hazards and prevent injuries, illnesses, and deaths in the workplace
Normally, OSHA conducts inspections without advance notice. Employers have the right
to require compliance officers to obtain an inspection warrant before entering the worksite

Inspection Priorities

OSHA has jurisdiction over approximately 7 million
worksites. The agency seeks to focus its inspection
resources on the most hazardous workplaces in the
following order of priority:

1. Imminent danger situations—hazards that could
cause death or serious physical harm receive top
priority. Compliance officers will ask employers

to correct these hazards immediately or remove
endangered employees.

2. Severe injuries and illnesses—employers
must report:

* All wark-related fatalities within 8 hours.
= All work-related inpatient hospitalizations,
amputations, or losses of an eye within 24 hours,

3. Worker Complaints— allegations of hazards or
violations also receive a high priority. Employees
may request anonymity when they file complaints.

4. Referrals of hazards from other federal, state or
local agencies, individuals, organizations or the
media receive consideration for inspection.

5. Targeted inspections—inspections aimed

at specific high-hazard industries or individual
waorkplaces that have experienced high rates of
injuries and ilinesses alsa receive priority.

6. Follow-up inspections—checks for abatement of
violations cited during previous inspections are also
conducted by the agency in certain circumstances.

Phone/Fax Investigations

OSHA carefully prioritizes all complaints it receives
based on their severity. For lower-priority hazards,
with permission of a complainant, OSHA may
telephone the employer to describe safety and
health concerns, following up with a fax providing

details on alleged safety and health hazards. The
employer must respond in writing within five
waorking days, identifying any problems found

and noting corrective actions taken or planned, If
the response is adequate and the complainant is
satisfied with the response, OSHA generally will not
conduct an on-site inspection.

On-Site Inspections

Preparation—Before conducting an inspection,
OSHA compliance officers research the inspection
history of a worksite using various data sources,
review the operations and processes in use and the
standards most likely to apply. They gather appro-
priate personal protective equipment and testing
instruments to measure potential hazards.

Presentation of credentials— The on-site inspection
begins with the presentation of the compliance
officer's credentials, which include both a photograph
and a serial number.

Opening Conference— The compliance officer will
explain why OSHA selected the workplace for
inspection and describe the scope of the inspection,
walkaround proceduras, employee representation
and employee interviews. The employer then selects
a representative to accompany the compliance
officer during the inspection. An authorized
representative of the employees, if any, also has the
right to accompany an inspector. The compliance
officer will consult privately with a reasonable
number of employees during the inspection.

Walkaround— Following the opening conference, the
compliance officer and the representatives will walk
through the portions of the workplace covered by the
inspection, inspecting for hazards that could lead to
employee injury or illness. The compliance officer will
also review worksite injury and illness records and
the posting of the official OSHA poster.



During the walkaround, compliance officers may
point out some apparent violations that can be
corrected immediately. While the law requires

that these hazards must still be cited, prompt
correction is a sign of good faith on the part of the
employer. Compliance officers try to minimize work
interruptions during the inspection and will keep
confidential any trade secrets observed.

Clasing Conference— After the walkaround, the
compliance officer holds a closing conference with
the employer and the employee representatives to
discuss the findings. The compliance officer discusses
possible courses of action an employer may take
following an inspection, which could include an
informal conference with OSHA or contesting citations
and proposed penalties. The compliance officer also
discusses consultation services and employee rights.

Results
When an inspector finds violations of OSHA
standards or serious hazards, OSHA may issue
citations and fines. OSHA must issue a citation
and proposed penalty within six months of the
violation's occurrence. Citations describe OSHA
requirements allegedly violated, list any proposed
penalties, and give a deadline for correcting the
alleged hazards. Violations are categorized as
willful, serious, other-than-serious, de minimis,
failure to abate, and repeated. In settling a penalty,
OSHA has a policy of reducing penalties for small
employers and those acting in good faith. For
serious violations, OSHA may also reduce the
praposed penalty based on the gravity of the
alleged violation. No good faith adjustment will be
made for alleged willful violations. For information
on penalty ranges, see www.osha gov/pe

nalties.

Appeals

When OSHA issues a citation to an emplayer, it also
offers the employer an opportunity for an infarmal
conference with the OSHA Area Director to discuss
citations, penalties, abatement dates, or any other
information pertinent to the inspection. The agency
and the employer may work out a settlement
agreement to resolve the matter and to eliminate the
hazard. OSHA's primary goal is correcting hazards
and maintaining compliance rather than issuing
citations or collecting penalties.

Alternatively, employers have 15 working days
after receipt of citations and proposed penalties
to formally contest the alleged violations and/

or penalties by sending a written notice to the
Area Director. OSHA forwards the contest to the
Occupational Safety and Health Review Commission
for independent review. Alternatively, citations,
penalties, and abatement dates that are not
challenged by the employer or settled become a
final order of the Occupational Safety and Health
Review Commission.

Workers’ Rights
Warkers have the right to:

* Working conditions that do not pose a risk of
serious harm.

* Receive information and training (in a language
and vocabulary the worker understands) about
workplace hazards, methods to prevent them, and
the OSHA standards that apply to their workplace.

+ Review records of work-related injuries
and illnesses.

* File a complaint asking OSHA to inspect their
workplace if they believe there is a serious hazard
or that their employer is not following OSHA's
rules. OSHA will keep all identities confidential.

+ Exercise their rights under the law without
retaliation, including reporting an injury or
raising health and safety concerns with their
employer or OSHA. If a worker has been
retaliated against for using their rights, they
must file a complaint with OSHA as soon as
possible, but no later than 30 days.

For additional information, see OSHA's Warkers

page (www.osha.gow/workers),

How to Contact OSHA

Under the Occupational Safety and Health Act

of 1970, employers are responsible for providing
safe and healthful workplaces for their employees.
OSHA's role is to help ensure these conditions for
America’s working men and women by setting
and enforcing standards, and providing training,
education and assistance. For more information,
visit . nsha.gov or call OSHA at 1-800-321-
OSHA (6742), TTY 1-877-889-5627.

This is one in a series of informational fact sheets highlighting OSHA programs, policies or standards.
It does not impose any new compliance requirements. For a comprehensive list of compliance
requirements of OSHA standards or regulations, refer to Title 29 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
This information will be made available to sensory-impaired individuals upon request. The voice phone
is [202) 693-1999; teletypewriter (TTY) number: (877) 889-5627.

5. Daparement of Labor

® Occupational
Safety and Health
Administration

DEP F5-3763 0B/7076



column, you should request 8 Cartificate of Insurance.

Fallowing are general guidelines for PDRMA members to determine when to require Certificates of Insurance naming your agency
as an additonal insured. Please note these are general guidelings, and you should consider the types of avents or uses requestad
to develop your own agency policy. If an svent or activily involves one or more of the following circumstances in the REQUIRE

ACTIVITY OR CIRCUMSTANCE

NOT NEEDED

Sport and Athletic Events
Examples: Games, tournaments, wamgfﬂa!n—&mms bi-tnathions, water activities|

X

Hazardous Recreational A:;uvi‘tlu
Exarnplos Bungee jumping, hot air hallommg sky diving, rock climbing, repelling

Large Special Events, Festivals, Celebrations :
Examples: “Taste of events, July 4Ihmoauay parhos Chamber of Commarce svents

X

—————— .

Public Demonstration/Rally
Examples: "Save the" demonstrations, prutesl groups

Music Cmuns
Examples: Rock concerts, teen concerts/dances
Examples: Family concers, children's concerts

Carnivals, Rides, Hazardous Games
Examples: Camival rides, dunk tanks, pony/horse rides, moon walks, Velcro wall

] Liquor Being Served

Food Prepared/Served by Vendors/Caterers
Examples: Group dinners, food booths, vending trucks, grills/lequipment use

Small Refreshment Stands
Examples: Canned pop/bottled water/juice sales, popcom, bag/box candy

Picnics: People bring and consume their own food

Service Group General Meetings {No Iicpor l.nmcl)

| ] | X

Low Risk Activities
Examples: Card clubs, reading groups

E4

Parties (No liquor served)
Examples: Birthdays/anniversaries, baby/wedding showars

Private Groups/individuals Using Parks/Facilities for Personal Profit
Facilities unavailable to general public so group/individual makss personal gain

b

Government Organizations/Businesses or Corporations
Examples: Usa of property, vehnclas l'ac:litms amplcyees ale.

Gruup wﬂh Insurance

If the group has insurancs, it is to protact the group against claims related to its
activitias. By requasting a cartificate naming your agency as additional insured, your
agency has additional financial profection.

|
x| x

26



MORTON GROVE
PARK DISTRICT

Job Task Reinforcement and Coaching Observation Process Checklist

Date: Time: Employee Job Title:

Job Task During Observation:

Observations:

D Equipment

|:] 30 Second Site Safety Walk Through (Other Hazards Identified)
D Wearing Necessary Personal Protective Equipment

[ ] perform 3 Points of Contact

|:| Conduct Reversal of Posture/Stretching

D Best Practice Ergonomics/Lifting/Material Handling

[ Slip/Trip and Fall

[Walking [0 Running/ Fast Walking [J]Walk with a purpose

Observation, Feedback, Communication and Follow-up:

D Reinforcement [_] coaching

Comments:




7. SAFETY TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

Safety training is a continual, year-round program for full-time, part-time, and seasonal staff. As such,
safety training has been integrated with the district’s value of Continuous Learning. Training sessions
completed by staff are logged and are the basis of safety training requirements for staff. Yearly training

requirements for staff will be ongoing.

In general, safety training must be completed as described in the following page.

exposure to noise above 85
decibels *

Topic Required Staff Morton Grove Park District
Standard
Statements of Admission All Staff Annually
Facility Emergency Procedures All Staff Annually
Blood borne Pathogens All First Aid and CPR trained |Annually
staff, all maintenance staff
and other staff who may
come in contact with blood
or bodily fluids.
Chemical Safety/Right to Know All staff working with, Annually
exposed to or having a
potential exposure to
chemical substances.
Lifting/Back Safety All appropriate staff. Annually
Respiratory Protection Staff that requires Annually
respiratory protection while
performing job duties.
Noise and Hearing Protection Staff with job or task related |Annually

Lock-out/Tag-out (Energy Isolation
Procedures)

Lock-out/Tag-out Autharized
and Affected Staff only **

Every two years

Confined Space Entry

Confined Space Entrants and
Attendants only ***

Every two years

Personal Protective Equipment

Staff required using PPE as
determined by a job hazard
assessment.

Every two Years

Fall Protection

Staff required using a
personal fall protection
device by IDOL standard.

%* % % K

Every two years




Powered Industrial Truck

Staff operating powered
vehicles other than cars,
pick-up trucks, dump trucks
or vans.

Every two years

CPR/AED/First Aid

Staff identified as first
responders must maintain a
valid training certificate.

Full training every three years.
First Aid every three years.
CPR/AED every two years.

High Risk Equipment

Staff operating potentially
dangerous equipment that
requires special training.

Every two years

Alcohol Server Training

Staff serving alcohol must
maintain a valid TIPS or
equivalent certificate.

Every two years

Food Service Safety/Sanitation

Every two years.

* In order to determine staff exposed to decibel levels of 85 decibels or higher, please consult the
section in this manual dealing with Hearing Conservation.

** Lock-out/Tag-out — Authorized staff that has received proper training and demonstrated proper
skill in specific lock-out/tag-out procedures and is authorized by the District to perform such
procedures in order to isolate hazardous energy while performing maintenance or service on
equipment. Lock-out/Tag-out affected staff is staff that work with machinery or equipment that
may be affected by lock-out/tag-out procedures during maintenance or service.

*** An Entrant is a staff member who is authorized and trained by the district to enter confined spaces
and perform work. An Attendant is a staff member authorized and trained to be positioned
outside the confined space and monitor conditions of the entrant, the conditions outside the
confined space, and the conditions inside the confined space.

****In order to determine staff that must use and receive training on the use of personal fall arrest
systems; please consult the section in this manual dealing with fall protection.




Form

Accident/Incident Report| "54

PDRMA

. ; 2 :
Park District Risk Management Agency Attorney/Client Privileged Document (pg. 2)
15 Was first aid administered? [ ]Yes [ ] No [ 1 Unknown

Name and position of person who administered first aid

What first aid was given?

Did first aid involve AED and/or CPR7 [ ]1Yes [ ]No [ 1 Unknown

If yes, please submit a PDRMA post-AED form.

Were paramedic services offered?

Called and refused (at scene by patron) [ ] Yes Offered and called [ ] Yes

Offered and refused [ ] Yes Offered, refused, called by agency anyway [ | Yes

Unable to respond and called [ ] Yes

Were police called? [ ] Yes If yes, please provide the following information.
Name of police department

Name of officer

[ ] Unknown

Do you expect this person to submit a claim?

PROPERTY DAMAGE
t1-] Was property damaged as a result of this accident/incident?

[1Yes [ ]No

[ 1Yes [ ] No [ ] Unknown

L¥4 If yes, how was the person involved in the accident/incident?

Owner of property adjacent to park district [1] Patron [1
Vehicle owner [1 Other [1

gl Last name (or business name) First name (not necessary if business name)
Address

City State Zip code Phone number

Describe the property damage

WITNESS INFORMATION

14} If there was a witness(es) to the accident/incident, please provide the following information:
Last name First name

Address

City State Zip code Phone number

b11] Did witness make any statements? [ 1Yes [ ]No [ 1 Unknown

If yes, what did witness say?

¥%] Where was witness when the accident/incident occurred?

30



Park District Risk Manager

nent Agency

Today's date

Date of incident (mm/ddlyyyy)

Time of incident (hh/mm, a.m./p.m.)

Mame of person completing the report

Title of person completing report

Business phone

Business email

How did the incident occur? (Provide a brief factual summary.)

Name of the location (streetiroad/highway) or nearest intersection where the incident occurred.

Street address

City

Is there an address for incident location? If yes, please provide the following:

State Zip code

Location

Offsite (non-agency owned) 3

On agency property [1

Primary location

Seasonal employee

Highway/roadway [ ] Parking lot [ ] Other [ ]
f1i| Was the agency vehicle occupied? [ ] Yes [ ] Ne [ ] Unknown
F] Agency driver last name First name

Address

City State Zip code

Home phone # Work phone # Cell phone #

Email

Is this driver an employee? [ ] Yes [ 1 No [ ] Unknown

If Yes, enter job title of employee

Identify the type of driver

Full-time employee [1 Intern [1 Non-agency employee |

Part-time employee [1] Volunteer [ 1] Spouse/family member [1

E4

Make

°¥1 Agency vehicle VIN

Model License number

3t




Attomey/Client Privileged Document

Park District Risk Management Agency

P¥] s vehicle drivable? ' [1Yes [ 1No [ ] Unknown

If no, provide current location of vehicle

1; Area of damage

£ Estimated repair cost

([]Was a trailer involved? [ 1Yes [ 1No [ 1 Unknown
If yes, provide the following information.

Trailer year Make Model License number

Trailer area of damage

Current location of trailer

Estimated repair cost of trailer

'} Has a police agency conducted an investigation? [] Yes [ ] No If yes, provide the following information.

What police agency investigated the incident?

Police report number

P7| Was the agency driver ticketed, arrested or cited for violation(s)? [ ] Yes [ ] No [ ] Unknown

If yes, provide details of the ticket, arrest or violation(s).

CLAIMANT INFORMATION

Identify other people involved in the accident. (Make additional copies of this section if needed.)

How was the person involved in the accident? (Check all that apply.)

Driver of other vehicle [ ] Injured person [ ] Owner of involved property [ ]

Owner of other vehicle [ ] Passenger of agency vehicle [ ] Passenger of other vehicle [ ]
Pedestrian [ ]

Last name or business name First name (not necessary for business)

Address

City State Zip code

Home phone # ) Work phone # T Cell phone #




Vehicle Accident Report

(Accident involving agency vehicle. May involve bodily injury/property damage.)

Attorney/Client Privileged Document

PDRMA

Park District Risk Management Agency

'] Vehicle make Model Year

Area of damage

Is vehicle driveable? [ ] Yes [ 1 No If no, current location of vehicle

Extent of damage [ ] Moderate [ ] MNothing visible [ ] Severe [ 1 Slight

Describe the property damage (other than vehicle)

Extent of damage to property other than vehicle [ ] Moderate [ ] Nothing visible [ ] Severe [ ] Slight
Age of injured person Sex of injured person [ ] Male [ ] Female
Was the injured person transported by paramedics? [ ] Yes [ 1 Ne

If yes, where was the injured person taken?

Do you expect the injured person to file a claim? [ ] Yes [ 1 Ne

Describe the injury

ADDITIONAL CLAIMANT INFORMATION

Identify other people involved in the accident. (Make additional copies of this section if needed.)

How was the person involved in the accident? (Check all that apply.)

Driver of other vehicle [ ] Injured person [ ] Owner of involved property [ |

Owner of other vehicle [ ] Passenger of agency vehicle [ ] Passenger of other vehicle [ ]
Pedestrian [ ]

Last name or business name First name (not necessary for business)
Address

city State Zip code

Home phone # Work phone # Cell phone #

Vehicle make Model Year

Area of damage
Is vehicle driveable? [ ] Yes [ 1 No if no, current location of vehicle
Extent of damage [ ] Moderate [ ] Nothing visible [ ] Severe [ 1 Slight

Describe the property damage (other than vehicle)

Extent of damage to property other than vehicle [ ] Moderate [ ] Nothing visible [ ] Severe [ 1 Slight

33




Park District Risk Manageeent Agency Atiurr'ney-’(,hent Prl\rlie_;Pd Documl‘:nt

19 Age of injured person Sex of injured person [ ] Male [ ] Female

Was the injured person transported by paramedics? [ ] Yes [ ] Ne

If yes, where was the injured person taken?

Do you expect the injured person to file a claim? [ ] Yes [ 1 No

Describe the injury

Identify witnesses of the accident. (Provide the following information for each witness. Make additional copies of this
page if needed.)

Last name First name

Address

City State Zip code

Home phone # Work phone # Cell phone #

Witness to accident? [ ] Yes [ ] Ne [ __[ 1 Unknown  If y;.v._. provide the following information.

Relation to injured person or property owner:

Agency employee or volunteer [ ] Another program participant or park user [ ] Friend | |

Other [1 Passerby [ 1] Relative [1]

Did witness make any statements? [ ] Yes [ 1 Neo [ ] Unknown

If yes, provide the following information.

What did witness say?

Where was witness when the accident occurred? o i 1l
b2 ] Was the driver of the agency vehicle conducting agency business at the time of the accident?

[ ] Yes [ ] Neo [ ] Unknown
] What street was the agency driver on? What street was the other driver driving on?
k| What direction was the agency driver traveling? [ 1 North [ ] South [ ] East [ ] West

What direction was the other driver traveling? [ 1 North [ 1 South [ ] East [ ] West

¥\ Weather conditions
Dry [1 Fog [1 Ice [1 Snow [ ] Wet B
P41 Accident diagram

34



PBR—MA Property Loss Report | Form
{For damage to agency p y) 03

Attorney/Client Privileged Document

Park District Risk Management Agency

Agency name Today’s date

Date of incident (mm/dd/yyyy) Time of incident (hh/mm, a.m./p.m.)

Name of person completing the report Title of person completing report

Business phone Business email

How did the incident occur and what property was damaged? (Provide a brief factual summary.)

Name of the location (park, pool, community center; Ex. Smith Pool, Johnson Gommunity Center) or nearest intersection
where the incident occurred.

Is there an address for incident location? If yes, please provide the following:

Street address

City State Zip code

Location (Specify the exact type of location/facility damaged, listing multiple locations/facilities if necessary. Ex. mainte-
nance garage, sports field)

Py Primary location (identify the exact area of damage. Ex. tool storage, batting cage)

£1)] Estimate of loss

£% ]| Contact person at facility

t¥] Contact person’s email

P%| Contact person’s phone number

[¥| Was damage caused by third-party (non-agency) individual? [ ] Yes [ ] Ne [ 1 Unknown

'L:{ Has the party responsible for damage been identified? If yes, provide the following contact information for the person or
persons identified:

Name Street address

City State Zip code

P1: Has a police agency conducted an investigation? [ ] Yes [ 1No [ ] Unknown

T%4 What police agency investigated the incident? What is the police report number?

(1| Were criminal charges brought against the responsible party? If yes, what were the charges?

35



PBRMA Employee Injury Report

Park District Risk Management Agency

Complete an Employee Injury Report for each employee injured.

Agency name Today's date

Date of incident (mm/ddfyyyy) Time of incident (hh/mm a.m./p.m.)

Name of person completing report o Title of person completing report

Business phone Business email

How did the incident occur? (Provide a one-line factual description.)

Name of the location (park, pool, community center; Ex. Smith Pool, Johnson Community Center) or nearest intersection
where the incident occurred.

Is there an address for this location? If yes, please provide the following:

Street address

City State ' Zip code

Location (Specify the exact type of location/facility where injury occurred. Ex. maintenance garage, sports fied ayuatic
outdoor, golf course, etc.)

:[1] Primary location (Specify exact location. Ex. lap pool, cart storage, classroom, pavilion)

L2l Employer's FEIN

1 2 Did the employee miss more than three (3) scheduled workdays? [ 1Yes [ ] No [ ] Unknown

i k] What was the employee doing when the accident occurred?

P¥| How did the incident occur? (Provide a detailed factual description.)

L I{Employee last name First name

City State Zip code

Home phone # Work phone # Cell phone #

Best number to contact employee ' Email

Social security number Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) Gender [ ] Male

___[ ] Female
Marital status (divorced/married/single/unknown) Number of dependents Does employee speak English?
[ ] Yes [ 1 No

Average weekly wage Job title/occupation

36



P/BRMA Employee Injury Report

Park District Risk Management Agency

L1 What is the employee’s employment status?

[ 1 Permanent full-time [ 1 Permanent part-time [ ] Seasonal [ ] Intern [ ] Other

Date hired (mm/idd/yyyy) What is the employee's tenure? (length of employment)
[ ] Lessthan1yr. [ ] 1-3yrs. [ ] 4-10yrs. [ ] 11-19yrs. [ ] More than 20 yrs.

Time employee began work on day of incident (hh/mm a.m./p.m.)

Last date employee worked prior to date of incident (mm/dd/yyyy)

If the employee died as a result of the accident, give the date of death. (mm/dd/yyyy)

Did the incident occur on agency premises? [ 1Yes [ ]No [ ] Unknown
Injury or iliness? [ 1 Injury [ 1 Winess

Describe the injury or iliness (affected body part and type of injury; Ex. contusion, bruise, laceration, sprain, break, etc.)

What object or substance, if any, directly harmed the employee?

£l Did the injured employee seek medical attention? [1Yes [ ]1No [ ] Unknown

th4 If yes, was the treatment given away from the worksite? [ 1Yes [ ]No [ ] Unknown

[1:] Was the employee treated in an emergency room? [ 1Yes [ ] No [ ] Unknown

'1:| Was the employee hospitalized overnight as an inpatient? [ J]Yes [ ]No [ ] Unknown

#11] Name of treating physician, health care provider, or emergency room
Address

City State Zip code Phone number

37



(Employee to complete and submit to supervisor or HR.)

Park District Risk Management Agency

PDRM N Notifiction d Ijuy Form
/- to Employer Report 04E

') Employee name.

2 Date of incident (mm/ddlyyyy) o Time of incident (hh/mm a.m./p.m.)

3 Specifici@ation d xci dnt. ( Ex. Second flor lal ay & rcreatin ®nt & , storage closet of maintenance
shed, south entrance of aquatic facility, etc.)

¥9 Are you reporting the iajury for the firt tirm i th s fon? Yes No

If no, when did you firt report tre ij wy (verkally o inwitig) and to vaom ddyu report it?

Date: Time: __ Reported to: — -

Describe how the injury occurred. (Identify the job task you were doing and include a step-by-step explana-
tion of what led to the injury.)

Name all people present at the time of injury (e.g., coworkers and/or witnesses).

vd Identify all body parts you injured. (Be specific Idi ate ldt o ridht, pper o lover )

P Did you seek medical attention on the date of the accident? Yes No

If yes, where did you seek treatment?

38



PDRM/\ Notifiction & Ij wry
: | i to Employer Report
Park District Risk Management Agencyll  (Employee to complete and submit to supervisor or HR.)

Have you injured this body part previously? Yes ) No
If yes, please describe which body part and what the prior injury was.

The above information is true and accurate:

(Employae signature) Date

Notifiction d ij uwy was received o

(Date raceived by employer representative)

Notifiction d i uwy ws receied ly:

(Representative signature)

(Printed name)




8. Facility Safety

Facility Emergency Procedures
The district will use the following code system to announce various facility emergencies.

CODE ADAM
A MISSING PERSON has been reported to an employee.

CODE BLACK:
SEVERE WEATHER is imminent and the facility must be closed.

CODE RED:
A FIRE OR CHEMICAL LEAK has been detected and the facility must be cleared.

CODE BROWN:
FECAL CONTAMINATION of the pool has been identified.

CODE PURPLE:
Staff has received a BOMB THREAT.

CODE

A HOSTILE PERSON has been identified in the facility.

Below is a summary of procedures for the most probable or likely emergency scenarios. Staff must be
familiar with these procedures and all other emergency procedures.

Fire Emergency Procedure

In the event that the facility fire alarm, sprinkler system is activated, all staff and guests must
evacuate the facility. Staff is required to gather in designated evacuation areas for each facility.
If staff encounters a facility fire that has not triggered the automatic alarm or fire suppression
systems, staff must then pull the facility fire alarm to alert staff to a facility fire. If the fire is in its
beginning stages, staff may put the fire out with a fire extinguisher if it is safe to do so. Staff and
guests must evacuate the facility when the Facility Fire Alarm has been activated.

The staff’s first responsibility in fire emergencies is personal safety. However, staff is instructed
to advise guests to evacuate the building during a fire emergency and to assist in evacuation if
necessary and safe to do so.

Recreation staff supervising children must have a copy of the attendance roster and perform a
head count.

Staff and guests must remain clear of the facility until the Fire Department clears the facility for
safe reentry.

40



Tornado Emergency Procedure

In the event that a tornado warning is issued for the Morton Grove area, a community tornado
siren will sound and local radio and television stations will carry tornado warning messages with
emergency instructions.

The Aquatic Center will issue a “Code Black” warning through the facility’s public address or radio
system. Managers on duty in Harrer Park and Oriole park, and park maintenance facilities will
warn staff in person or by phone. Staff must proceed to tornado shelter areas of the facility when
a “Code Black” announcement has been made.

Staff's first responsibility in tornado emergencies is for personal safety. However, staff is
instructed to advise guests to take shelter in a tornado shelter location during a tornado
emergency and to assist guests in reaching such shelters within the facility if necessary and safe
to do so.

Recreation staff supervising children must perform a head count using the Evacuation Participant
Headcount form located on the Common drive.

Staff must remain in the tornado shelter locations for the duration of the tornado warning.

Lightning Hazard Procedure

Staff’s first responsibility during a warning is for personal safety. However, staff is instructed to
advise guests to take shelter during the warning. Guests who do not take shelter do so at their
own risk.

Appropriate shelter includes substantial buildings and vehicles with the windows and doors
closed. Open-sided pavilions, trees or fences are not appropriate lightening shelters.

The 15-seecond Thor Guard horn blast means take cover. Three, 5-second horn blast means all
clear.

Code Adam Emergency Procedure
If staff learns of a missing child from a District facility, staff will implement the nationally recognized Code
Adam Procedure. Below is a six-step summary of this procedure.

Obtain detailed information about the missing child. This information must include height,
approximate age, hair color, eye color, style of clothing and any other distinguishing
characteristics.

Make a Code Adam announcement using the public address or radio system at the facility. The
Code Adam announcement must relay details gathered in Step #1.

Staff will search the facility and immediate surrounding area for the missing child. If the child is
not found within 10 minutes, staff will notify the police and the parents of the child.

If the child is found, reunite the child with the parent, guardian, or District staff member.

If an unknown individual(s) attempts to leave the facility with the child, get descriptions of the
person, including, if possible, a license plate number. Report this immediately to the police.
Cancel the Code Adam Emergency via PA or radio system.

Facility Flood Procedure

Indoor flooding conditions are defined as an inflow of water to a facility resulting in standing water
% inch or deeper or saturation of carpeting in any facility. In the event of facility flooding the
following steps must be taken.

41



Staff must report flooding to the senior manager on duty for the facility.

Staff not involved in flood mitigation or cleanup must stay out of flooded areas. Maintenance staff
will lock or otherwise isolate flooded areas of the facility. All flooded areas will remain closed to
unauthorized staff and guests until flood damage is repaired and the area is inspected for safety.
Only staff trained as a professional electrician will attempt to shut off electricity in a flood affected
area. Electricity should be shut off at the source under the guidance of a trained professional
electrician or the electric company.

Authorized maintenance staff will take steps to mitigate further flood damage by pumping out
standing water, shutting off leaking water supplies, etc. All electrical equipment used in flooded
or wet areas will have ground fault circuit interrupter (GFCI) protection.

If facility flooding is widespread, a portion of the facility or the entire facility may be evacuated at
the decision of the senior manager on duty.

Facility Blackout Procedure

If a facility loses power during an electrical blackout, guests must be evacuated from the area
without electrical power. If the blackout affects the entire facility or if the blackout disrupts power
to the facility fire alarm panel, guests must be evacuated from the entire facility. The facility will
remain closed to the public until power can be restored and it is determined no secondary hazards
exist.

Once evacuation of an area affected by an electrical blackout is complete, facility maintenance
staff will conduct a fire check of the facility to ensure no fires occurred as a secondary result of
the blackout. This fire check should include all electrical rooms and electrical panels in the facility.

Facility Gas Leak Procedure

A natural gas leak in a facility can be detected by smell or a persistent hissing sound. If staff
encounters these signs, facility maintenance as well as the guest service staff (CRC only) or the
manager on duty for the facility need to be notified. Guest service staff or the manager on duty
will make a “Code Red” announcement over the facility PA system or radio system indicating a
natural gas leak.

Everyone is required to evacuate the facility in case of a natural gas leak. Staff’s first responsibility
is for personal safety. However, staff is instructed to advise guests to evacuate, and to assist if
necessary and safe to do so.

The following precautions will be taken in a gas leak area:

1)

2)
3)
4)
5)

Staff responsible for the facility will contact the local gas company and 911 immediately. Staff
and guests must remain clear of the facility until emergency responders clear the facility.

Do not attempt to fix the leak.

Do not turn on or off electrical devices, including light switches in the gas leak area.

Do not use an open flame in the gas leak area.

Do not use cell phones in the gas leak area.

Facility Lockdown Procedures

The need for a facility to utilize an emergency lock-down procedure will be given by the Morton
Grove Police Department. The Morton Grove Police will contact the PVCC Guest Service Desk,
Fitness Center, or facility key holder list to advise of an emergency in the community that
requires public facilities to be locked down.



The PVCC Guest Service Desk, Fitness Center or facility key holder will contact all facilities.
Remote staff at school sites, parks and outdoor areas will be notified by radio or phone and
given instructions by a supervisor regarding what actions to take. Pool will be cleared and
closed, outdoor athletics programs or special events cancelled during a Code Yellow emergency.
Camp programs will immediately be moved indoors at the CRC.

Facility staff will lock all entrances or close gates to each facility and staff will make a Code
Yellow announcement over facility PA or radio systems. Staff will inform guests that the facility
is in lockdown. Guests and staff will be advised to move away from doors, windows, and gates
of a facility during the lockdown emergency.

Except in the case of a medical emergency or a facility emergency that endangers safety (i.e.,
fire), guests and staff will not be allowed to enter or exit facilities in lock-down during a lock-
down emergency.

The PVCC Guest Service Desk, Fitness Center or facility key holder will contact all facilities and
advise them when the emergency has been lifted and normal activities may resume.

Routes of Egress, Fire Exits and Other Walking Surfaces

Stored items may not obstruct walkways, exits, or stairways.

Emergency exit doors shall never be chained or locked in a manner that would restrict persons
from exiting a building in the event of a fire or related emergency.

Each building will have an emergency exit and shelter plan in all public rooms and areas clearly
posted to assist occupants if immediate evacuation is necessary.

Emergency lighting fixtures and illuminated exit signs should be installed in all District buildings
and checked periodically to ensure proper operation.

All floors will be maintained to avoid dangerous conditions.

All substances spilled on floors must be immediately removed. Proper signage should be placed
where any slip hazards exist.

Extension cords placed along the floor must be taped down to prevent staff or guests from
tripping.

Dance floors will be inspected prior to events for sharp surfaces, splinters, or glass shards. All
hazards will be removed.

Pool decks will have edges of drainage grates below deck level.

Trip hazards will be removed from all walking surfaces

Holes or openings in the ground or facility floor must be barricaded and marked as a danger.
Where this is not possible, staff must monitor the hole or opening.

General Housekeeping

Staff must keep all areas of their workplace, passageways, service rooms and storage rooms in a
clean, orderly, and sanitary condition to the extent the nature of the work allows.

Place all refuse in the proper containers. Waste receptacles should not be allowed to overflow.
Rags saturated with oil, grease or fuel must be kept in a separate refuse container designated for
that use only. This container must be kept closed at all times and must be emptied daily.

All materials and equipment should be stored properly and secured in designated areas to avoid
possible injury or damage to individuals or property.

When using compressed air as a method of cleaning equipment or facilities the compressed air
must be limited to 35 psi. Goggles or full-face shields with safety glasses must be worn when using
compressed air as a cleaning/dusting agent. Compressed air must never be directed toward a
staff member’s head, face, or body.

A non-slip coating must be used on all polished floors in work areas.

43



When stacking items for storage, boxes must be stored no more than five boxes high to a
maximum height of five feet. Storage in sprinkled areas must be at least 18 inches below sprinkler
heads.

9. Ergonomics
Stretching Guidelines

Medical Clearance. Be sure to obtain medical clearance if you are unsure whether to engage in
stretching activities based on a pre-existing health condition.

Warm up First. If you are stretching on the job during a lunch hour or a scheduled break — or at
home —remember to warm up if you were not previously active. Walk while gently pumping
your arms or do a favorite exercise at low intensity for two to five minutes. Stretching is more
effective when you warm up your muscles first.

Hold Each Stretch for at Least 30 Seconds. It takes time to lengthen muscle tissue safely. Hold
your stretches for at least 30 seconds — and up to 60 seconds for a tight muscle or problem
area. This may seem like a long time, so keep an eye on the clock to make sure you hold your
stretches long enough. For most of your muscle groups, doing three repetitions of a 30-second
stretch is enough. Due to the longer hold times, you usually perform these stretches before a
strenuous work task or activities at home.

Focus on a Pain-Free Stretch. A gentle pull on the muscle is good. If you feel pain as you stretch,
you've gone too far. Back off to the point where you don't feel any pain, then hold the stretch.
Stretch Both Sides. Make sure your joints on both sides of your body share an equal range of
motion.

Do Not Bounce. Bouncing as you stretch can damage muscles and tendons, leaving scar tissue as
the muscle heals. Scar tissue tightens a muscle even further, making you even less flexible —
and mare prone to pain.

Relax and Breathe Freely. Avoid holding your breath while stretching. Count out loud, even if
quietly, to assure you breathe while stretching.

Reversal-of-Posture Exercises. Do reversal-of-posture exercises only for 5- 10 seconds at a time
to restore circulation and reverse possible micro trauma resulting from static postures. You can
do reversal-of-posture exercises before, during, or after an activity or job task. (See Reversal of
Posture Stretches on page 128) Reversal-of-posture exercises differ from traditional stretching
exercises in the relatively short hold-times. For that reason, they are more practical to do during
the workday.

44



RMA— ...

Park District Risk Management Agency

Reversal of Posture Exercises

Accelerated =

rahahllitatlon centa rs

CHIN TUCK SHOULDER STRETCH
Slana straaght with head ievel Place he Place one hand on shoulder o stabiize 1
wah of your hand on your chin, genty Orop sar toward opposite shoulder. Hold
pushing your haad backwards. Atlompt 1o the streich for § seconds and repeat on
make a “doubie chin,” Hold for 10 seconds. oppasite side.

e,

-1

SHRUG-BREATH

Inbuale. cross s csanch fints and sheug shousdars up toward the ceibng Exhals OVERHEAD STRETCH
mowty whils pushing Ukimbs back and squeazing shoulder Diades together Lift arms overhcad, Siowty pull your shouldar
Hoid at ithe and for 5 seconds. blades down and back, & o put your odbows

Ity your back pockots Mold for 5 seconds.

45



Reversal of Posture Exercises
Page 2

Putting Patients First
For more information or to schedule an appointment
call 877-97-REHARB (B77-977-3422) or visit www.accleratedrehab.com

FOREARM STRETCH 1
Start with arm straight out at chest level,
fingartips up. Use the opposita hand 1o grab
the back of the cutstretched hand, pulling it
back toward you. Hold for § seconds and
rapasi on opposite side.

FOREARM STRETCH 2
Start with arm siraight out al chest level,
fingartips down. Make & fist. Use opposite
hand to pull your wrist toward you. Hold for
5 seconds and repeal on the opposite side,

BACKWARD BEND
Place both hands toward the middie of the
low back and push your hips forward, gently
keeping tha knoas straight. Allow your back 1o
arch and lcok up at the cedfing for 10 seconds.

ANTERIOR STRETCH
With your elbows straight, ciasp hands boahind
the back. Lt your hands away from your back.
Hold for 5 seconds.

HAMSTRING STRETCH
Flace hesl on elevated step. Keep your hesd
and chest up, hips back and shghtly lean
forward, Hold for § seconds and rapeat for
opposite leg.

GENERAL RULES

46




PDRMA silliant

Ergonomics-Office/Sitting on the Job

Sitting jobs require less musc ular effort, but that does not exempt people from the injury
risks usually associated with more physically demanding tasks. Sitting requires the muscles
to hoid the trunk, neck and shoulders in a fixed position, A fixed work ing position squeezes
the bloed vessels in the muscles reducing the blood supply to the working muscles just when
they need it the most. An insufficient blood supply ac celerates fatigue and makes th e
muscies prone to injury. Employees who work in a sitting position for long periods may
suffer back pain, muscle tenderness and aches, varicose veins, stiff necks, and numbness in

the legs.

What is a "good" sitting body position?

There is no one or single body position that is recommended for sitting. Every
worker can sit comfortably by adjusting the angles of their hips, knees, ankles
and elbows. The following are general recommendations.

Keep the joints such as hips, knees and ankles open slightly (more than 90°)

Keep the upper body within 30° of an upright position

+ Always keep the head
aligned with the spine.

« Keep upper arms between
vertical and 20° forward.

+ Keep elbows at an angle
between 90° and 120°.

s Keep forearms between
horizontal and 20° up.

+ Support the forearms

Keep the wrists straight and aligned with the
forearms. Place the working object so th at it can be seen at viewing angle
of 10° tn 30° helow the line of siaht.

. |

e Keep shoulders low and relaxed.

Keep elbows tucked in.

Tuck chin in and do not bend forward when looking down and
forward.

Change positions frequently but remain within recommended ranges.
Alternate crossed legs.

Avold bending to the side,

Avolid bending forward.

Do not slouch.

Do not sit for more than 50 minutes at a time

This lact shead is provaded ke PORMA'S uae by Allant Risk Control Conawting. This ok i ol ir d o bo stive
The dis W & e st p sugguated horon shoukd not be regarded as legal advice. Readers should pursue legal counsed or
condmct (hew Fisurance providers 1D gilin more axhauihive advioe

Source: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  PHONE (800) 789-5655 « www alliantinsurance com

47



Shoulders
relaxed

Back support

Arm support

Thighs
horizontal

Feet flat on
the fioor

48



Safe Lifting and Material Handling

e Back injuries resulting in low back pain continue to be one of the most significant issues in worker
health and safety in every industry. The following rules and guidelines are in place to reduce back
injury risk for maintenance and non-maintenance related tasks throughout the district.

« Objects heavier than 50 Ibs. or awkward in nature must be lifted using a two or more-person
lifting technique. If this is not possible or appropriate for the lifting task, use mechanical
assistance such as a jack, powered mobile equipment, powered lift, or hoist to lift the object.

s Lifting tasks must be planned by Supervisory staff or crew leaders so that the distance to manually
carry a load is minimized. If the lifted object must be transported a long distance, use mechanical
assistance such as a dolly, cart, EZ-GO or pickup truck to transport the object.

* Proper lifting technique, as illustrated below must be used whenever possible.

: i g \ < N
-'--— /?1 oy :\-'._:l‘; -t A
v () f.f\ . O
— | W \ N J
2 \) L 4
O - % e AN
1 - = /.5* s -\“':,'_L‘

Get to the level of
the load if you can.
Test a comner of
the load before
you lift to see if
you can lift it
safely.

Avoid reaching out for loads
or carrying them away from
your body. You have less
strength and stability when
doing this. Your back will be
bent. Try to maintain a
straight back.

Turn with your feet. not
your back. Your back
is carrying weight now
and more easily injured
when twisted.

e Whenever possible, heavy objects will be stored in the Safe Lifting Zone. The safe lifting zone is
the area between a person’s shoulders and waist. This allows for greatest ease of lifting and
back safety. The Safe Lifting Zone is illustrated below.

49



¢ Ininstances where proper safe lifting techniques cannot be achieved because of the requirements
of the job, alternate safe lifting techniques can be used.

SSO1)

The Diagonal Lift The Power Lift
Squat. Head up. Back arched. Partial squat. Head up
Feet spread. One foot ahead. B :

e Back arched. Feet spread.
One foot ahead.

The Golfer Lift The Partial Squat Lift

The Straight Leg Lift
Bend at the waist, not the back

10. Tools and Equipment

Ladders
* Never use a defective ladder. Select the right ladder for the job.
s Forindoor use, stepladders or multi-purpose ladders are usually recommended.
* For outdoor work, taller stepladders, multi-purpose, or extension ladders are generally more
appropriate.



Do not use aluminum ladders when working around electricity. Chose a ladder made from non-
conductive material for electrical work, such as when working near overhead power lines.
Make sure that the ladder is the proper length to do the job safely without having to stretch to
reach an item, improvise or use the top two steps of a step ladder. Choose a ladder that is
designed for how you intend to use it. For example, do not use step ladders in a folded and
leaned position in place of a straight ladder.

Choose a ladder that is capable of supporting your weight and the weight of any materials you
will be using. See the table below.

Type Weight Rating Duty Rating
1-AA 375 pounds Super Heavy Duty
1-A 300 pounds Extra Heavy Duty
1 250 pounds Heavy Duty Industrial
2 225 pounds Medium Duty Commercial
3 200 pounds Light Duty Household

Ladders must always be of sufficient length to reach the work being performed. Straight ladders
must extend at least 3 feet above the surface staff is climbing to.

Ladders must be placed firmly on the ground, be equipped with non-slip safety feet, and be kept
free of grease and oil.

Always use a wood or fiberglass ladder to perform electrical repairs.

To keep a straight ladder from slipping or falling backwards while in use, maintain a 4 to 1 ratio of
the ladder’s height versus the distance the base of the ladder is away from the object being
climbed.

Folding ladders must always have the stabilizing bar locked when in use.

e Staff will not use the top two steps of a folding ladder or straddle the folding ladder.

e Lladders must not be tied together to make longer ladders or longer ladder sections.

e Staff must not use makeshift ladders of any kind.

e Staff using ladders near doorways must barricade the doorway so that the ladder being used
isnt struck or knocked over and people on the ground are not struck from work objects above
them. Staff using ladders may not carry objects or tools by hand up a ladder. Tool belts must
be used, or tools must be lifted or hoisted to the person on the ladder.

¢ Only one person is allowed on a ladder at a time.

e ladders and ladder rungs must be free of water, oil, grease, and other slipping hazards.

¢ When ascending or descending a ladder staff must face the ladder.

¢ Staff must not overreach or stretch to reach an item while on a ladder.

Hand Tools

Staff using hand tools must wear PPE appropriate for the task being performed.

Always select the proper tool to perform a task.

Examine all hand tools for cracks, splits, or defects before using them. Report any damage to the
Supervisor immediately. Never use defective or damaged tools.

Staff will not use axe-like tools on stone or concrete.

When carrying knives or other sharp tools, staff will ensure these tools are properly closed or
the blade is protected to guard against cuts and damage to the tool.

Staff will not use a screwdriver to otherwise make punctures.

51



s Always return tools to the proper place.

Never toss tools, hand them to another person.

Power Tools and Equipment

Use of power tools and equipment is restricted to staff who have documented safety training and
instruction prior to using the equipment.

Powered tools and equipment such as saws, mowers or any equipment that may pose a risk of
injury to unprotected staff or guests through moving parts, noise, radiant/heat, ejected or flying
objects etc. may not be used in the vicinity of unprotected staff, guests or the public.

Electrical tools should always be grounded, and the cords inspected for damage such as cuts,
splices, or broken prongs. Use ground fault circuit interrupter protection when around water.
Staff will always carry tools by the handle, never by the cord or hose.

Handle all power tools cords with care. Keep away from heat, oil and sharp edges.

While using power tools, proceed with caution when others approach.

Power tools must not be operated without guards or safety devices attached. DO NOT attempt
to bypass guards or safety devices to work more comfortably or faster.

When possible, use a clamp or a vice to allow both hands to operate the power tool.

Avoid accidental starting of a power tool — do not touch the trigger of a pneumatic or electrical
tool while it is connected to a power source.

Keep all power tools sharp, clean, lubricated and in proper working order.

Do not wear loose clothing, ties, or jewelry while operating power tools.

Staff will make sure conditions for operating electric tools are safe. Electric power tools will not
be used in areas where the cord or plug may meet standing water.

Servicing or repairing of any machinery will be completed by authorized maintenance personnel
only.

Fire Prevention

Smoking is prohibited in District facilities within 15 feet of all entrances and in all District
vehicles. Smoking is also prohibited in all wooded areas of the Park District as well as within 100
feet of any soccer, baseball or football field, tennis court or basketball court. Flammable and
combustible materials may not be stored within 36 inches of water heaters, boilers, space
heaters, electrical transformers, or other potential sources of extreme heat or open flame.

All flammable liquids must be stored in flammable material storage cabinets. Flammable liquids
must not be stored with incompatible materials such as oxidizers or other corrosive materials.
Fire extinguishers are provided throughout the district facilities, and display NFPA labeling
denoting the type of fire it is suitable for extinguishing. Most fire extinguishers provided by the
district are dry chemical or foam-based extinguishers suitable for extinguishing class A, B or C
fires. Below is an explanation of the classes and types of fire that may occur in District facilities.

A Class A fires are classified as ordinary combustibles. Fires in this

classification usually have wood, paper, cloth, or other dry materials as

Ordina . = . .
W kcupses, 9 fuel. Most class A fires can be extinguished by water.

h
I



Class B fires are classified as flammable liquid fires. Fires in this
classification usually have grease, gasoline, oil or another flammable

raTable liquid as fuel. Class B fires cannot be effectively extinguished by water.
Liquids

Class C fires are classified as electrically energized fires. These types of
fires involve live electrically energized components. The use of water on

Electrical this type of fire is ineffective and can lead to a risk of electric shock.
Equipment

Staff must know the locations of the fire extinguishers and emergency exits nearest the staff
member’s workstation.

Fire extinguishers may not be blocked or obstructed from access.

Fire extinguishers are to be used with fires in the beginning stages only. If a fire is growing,
spreading or otherwise threatens to block an escape route, staff must evacuate the area
immediately.

Used fire extinguishers must be reported immediately to the Risk Manager for recharge or
replacement.

Electrical Safety

Use of a trained professional electrician
The following types of situations should be handled by a trained professional electrician:

Blown fuses or tripped breakers with an undeterminable cause:

Work to be completed on live electric circuits or machinery where power cannot be blocked,
isolated, or locked out

Work to be completed on circuit panels

Work to be completed to eliminate moisture in circuit panel or around electrical lines.

Work to be completed on buried electrical cable

Electrical work to be completed where the use of a mechanical lift is required

Connection of electricity to a building or facility for the first time

Running temporary electrical wiring for a special event or festival

Electrical work during flood conditions or sump pump failure

Staff performing electrician duties must have proof of current training on file with Human
Resources equivalent to a trained professional electrician.

NFPA, OSHA and NEC requirements

All staff or contractors initiating electrical work at any District facilities will follow the National
Consensus Standard for Electrical Safety in the Workplace, NFPA 70-E.

Contractors, maintenance personnel and all other staff must follow rules established by NFPA 70E
for approaching live exposed electrical equipment (arc blast boundary, limited approach
boundary, restrict approach boundary and prohibited approach boundary).

District staff must maintain OSHA established safe clearances from overhead electrical wires while
performing any type of maintenance work. OSHA establishes a safe clearance of 10 feet away
from electrical power lines carrying less than 50,000 volts. The safe clearance increases 4 inches
for each 10,000 volts over 50,000.

53



All new electrical work must be properly grounded to meet NEC requirements.
A working clearance of 3 feet around breaker boxes and heating units must be maintained.

Electrical Cords

Electrical wires with defective plugs, insulation or cracked components must be discarded. It is
not acceptable to repair electrical wiring with electrical tape or to remove the ground prong from
an electrical plug.

Extension cords must be used for their intended purpose. Staff must take care to avoid using
indoor electrical extension cords for outdoor uses, running over electrical extension cords with
vehicles or mobile equipment, and running electrical cords through doors, open windows, or wall
openings.

If extension cords are placed along the floor, do not run them under carpeting and secure them
properly to avoid tripping.

Electrical extension cords are for temporary use and are not allowed for use in lieu of permanent
wiring. Extension cords must be properly rated for the job intended. All extension cords must
also have UL rating.

Do not use extension cords to plug in computers, space heaters or office equipment, to plug in
permanent pieces of equipment (i.e., saw, grinder), or to provide electricity to a facility or area
where electricity was not originally provided.

Electrical Circuits

When replacing fuses, be sure to use appropriate tools such as a fuse puller to avoid potential
shocks and burns. Be sure to replace the fuse with a fuse of the same rating.

If a circuit constantly trips or fuses continually blow out, this indicates a problem with the circuit.
Notify the Risk Management and/or Superintendent of Parks and Facility Maintenance
immediately. Do not attempt to bypass this problem with a makeshift fix.

Facilities with ground fault circuit interrupters (GFCI) must have these devices tested monthly
during the facility safety inspection.

GFCl outlets or cords are required near all sinks, water faucets, or any other area where water is
within 3 feet of an electrical outlet. GFCI must also be used when setting up outdoor special
events, construction areas or work areas with wet conditions.

Electrical circuits should not be overloaded.

Underground Electrical

If digging is required for a maintenance task, state law requires that the Joint Utility

Location for Information for Excavators (J.U.L.I.E.) be contacted at least 48 hours in advance of
the project. J.U.L.LE. staff will visit the project location and mark the location of underground
utilities.

J.U.L.LLE. can be contacted at 800-892-0123

Miscellaneous

Refueling or transferring fuel to a gas must be done with the gas can sitting on the ground to avoid
the buildup of static charge.

Broken light fixtures and light bulbs must be replaced immediately. Florescent tube-type lighting
fixtures should have a protective plastic tube around the florescent bulb if unprotected by a hard
light cover.

54



Lock-out/Tag-out

The district has established energy isolation or lock-out/tag-out requirements for the control of hazardous
energy as required by the lllinois Department of Labor. These requirements cover the servicing and
maintenance of machines and equipment in which the unexpected startup or release of hazardous energy
could cause injury to staff members. If staff members are performing service or maintenance that do not
expose them to the potential for the unexpected release of hazardous energy the Lock-out/Tag-out
requirements do not apply.

For the purposes of lock-out tag-out there are six sources of hazardous energy that could be released by
machines or equipment. These are electrical energy, hydraulic or pneumatic energy, chemical energy,
thermal energy, mechanical potential energy, and gravitational energy. All of these potential energy
sources must be identified by staff before beginning a service or maintenance project.

Only trained and authorized staff may engage in lock-out/tag-out procedures or service/maintenance
projects that require lock-out/tag-out.

Staff that are performing maintenance, service or repair on machines or equipment that require lock-
out/tag-out must at a minimum follow the general eight step lock-out procedure listed below. Steps must
be followed in the order shown.

1. Identify the machine or equipment that requires lock-out, the reason for the lock-out and any
related equipment or machinery that will be affected when the machine or equipment is taken
out of service by lock-out or tag-out.

2. Notify all affected staff that a lock-out/tag-out procedure will be taking place in their area.

3. Shut the machine or equipment down using normal stopping procedures.

4, Disconnect, neutralize, or otherwise isolate the hazardous energy sources.

5. Apply lock-out and tag-out devices in the appropriate areas.

6. Test the effectiveness of the lock-out/tag-out procedure by trying to activate the equipment or
machine while in a locked-out state.

7. Perform the required service, repair, or maintenance.

8. Restore the machine, equipment, or system back to service.

Special Situations
e Forinformation on special lock-out situations such as a lock-out involving multiple people, shift
changes, on-site contractors or emergency lock-out removal please see the Lock-Out Tag-out
program posted on the District’s Common drive.

Confined Space
e District facilities contain spaces that are considered to be "confined" because their configurations
hinder the activities of any staff that must enter, work in, and exit from them. In many instances,
staff that work in confined spaces also face increased risk of exposure to serious physical injury
from hazards such as entrapment, engulfment, and hazardous atmospheric conditions. Because
of these increased working hazards the District has established a procedure for entry into
confined spaces and permit required confined spaces.



A confined space has limited or restricted means of entry or exit, is large enough for an employee
to enter and perform assigned work and is not designed for continuous occupancy by the
employee.

A permit-required confined space is one that meets the definition of a confined space and has
one or more of these characteristics:

Contains or has the potential to contain a hazardous atmosphere,

Contains a material that has the potential for engulfing the entrant,

Has an internal configuration that might cause an entrant to be trapped or asphyxiated by
inwardly converging walls or by a floor that slopes downward and tapers to a smaller cross
section, and/or

Contains any other recognized serious safety or health hazards.

Office Safety

[ ]

Staff could be exposed to many different hazards throughout the workday that can cause serious
injury. The following is a listing of basic District rules and regulations.

Safety Maintenance

Staff shall be responsible for keeping the immediate work area clean and orderly. Good
housekeeping practices are very important in maintaining a safe office environment.

Furniture (tables, desks, chairs, & cabinets) should be maintained in good condition and be free
of sharp corners, projecting edges, wobbly legs, etc. Desk drawers and cabinet doors will be
always closed when not in use.

Report any loose or rough floor covering that could cause tripping injuries.

Office staff should not attempt to make electrical or mechanical repairs.

Never use rubber-based glues, markers, or typewriter cleaning fluids near heat or flames. Use
these materials in well-ventilated areas to avoid inhalation of fumes that can cause dizziness and
headaches.

Sharp or Pointed Objects

Never keep letter openers, scissors, or sharp, pointed objects in shirt pockets or stored upright in
drawers. Always carry objects with the pointed portions away from the body.

Always operate paper cutters and shredders with extreme caution, keeping hands and fingers
away from the cutting area. Keep paper cutters closed and locked when not in use.

Desks and Chairs

File cabinets must be loaded so that they are not top heavy and prone to tipping over.

Never use a chair, desk, or any other office furniture as a makeshift ladder. If reaching raised
material is necessary, use a stepladder if accessible.

Never tilt a chair back on two legs. Before sitting down, always be sure the chair is there.
Immediately tag and remove all broken chairs from use.

Always adjust the workstation to a comfortable setting including computer screen height and
brightness, chair and desk height, keyboard position, etc. If assistance is needed in adjusting the
workstation, contact the Risk Manager.



11. Park and Field Safety

Playground Safety

In addition to weekly inspections by the Parks Department, it is important that all staff who supervise
children on playgrounds as part of District programming take a few moments to observe play equipment
for potential hazards to children. The National Playground Safety Institute has identified some of the
leading causes of injury on playgrounds. Below are a few of the leading causes most appropriate for
recreation program staff to monitor play equipment for.

Improper Protective Surfacing

The surface or ground under and around the playground equipment should be soft enough to
cushion a fall. Acceptable surfaces are hardwood fiber/mulch, sand, and pea gravel. These
surfaces must be maintained at a depth of twelve inches, be free of standing water and debris,
and not be allowed to become compacted. Synthetic or rubber tiles and mats are also appropriate
for use under play equipment. Staff should observe the playground and report areas where
protective surfacing is compacted, worn, damaged or missing.

Protrusion & Entanglement Hazards: Examples of protrusion and entanglement hazards include
bolt ends that extend more than two threads beyond the face of the nut, hardware configurations
that form a hook or leave a gap or space between components and open "S" type hooks. Rungs
or handholds that protrude outward from a support structure may be capable of penetrating the
eye socket. Special attention should be paid to the area at the top of slides and sliding devices.
Ropes should be anchored securely at both ends and not be capable of forming a loop or a noose.

Trip Hazards: Trip hazards are created by play structure components or items on the playground.
Exposed concrete footings, abrupt changes in surface elevations, containment borders, tree roots,
tree stumps and rocks are all common trip hazards that are often found in a play environment.

Lack of Maintenance: There should be no missing, broken, ar worn-out components. All hardware
should be secure. The wood, metal, or plastic should not show signs of fatigue or deterioration.
All parts should be stable with no apparent signs of loosening. The surface material must also be
maintained. Check and report signs of vandalism.

Pinch, Crush Shearing, and Sharp Edge Hazards: Companents in the play environment should be
inspected to make sure there are no sharp edges or points that could cut skin. Moving
components such as suspension bridges, track rides, merry-go-rounds, see-saws, and some swings
should be checked to make sure that there are no moving parts or mechanisms that might crush
or pinch a child's finger.

Pool Safety

Safety and Health practices and daily operations for Harrer and Oriole pools must follow rules and
guidelines set in the District’'s Aquatics Staff Manual, the PDRMA Aquatic Safety Guidelines
Manual and the IDPH Illinois Swimming Pool Code.

The lllinois Swimming Pool Code can be found online:
http://www.ilga.gov/commission/jcar/admincode/077/07700820sections.html|




12. Fall Protection
Preventing Slips Trips and Falls

Slips

Trips

Slips, trips, and falls account for 15% of all accidental deaths, second only to automobile
fatalities. There are some simple actions staff can take to minimize the risk of slip trip and fall
injuries to staff and guests.

When walking on wet surfaces, shorten your stride, walk with feet pointed out slightly, and
make wider turns.

Clean up spills immediately. If you are unfamiliar with the contents or how to safely contain or
clean up a spill, contact the Human Resources & Risk Manager.

In wet or snowy conditions walk more slowly so you can react to traction changes. Wear slip
resistant shoes or boots and dry off shoes as soon as practical after entering a building (wet
shoes on dry floors are as dangerous as dry shoes on wet floors). Wear sunglasses on sunny
winter days so you can more easily see slippery areas.

Wear the proper footwear for the job or task you must complete. If you must walk in slippery
areas or areas that could be wet or icy, wear footwear that is relatively slip resistant, If you
must walk in areas that may be uneven or have trip hazards use footwear that is comfortable,
easy to walk in and provides good stability and ankle support.

Do not allow carried packages to obstruct your view or allow awkward carried packages to affect
your balance as you are walking.

Avoid walkways that have obstructions, tripping hazards, or broken pavement. Pay attention to
changes in walkway elevation (i.e., stairs, thresholds, etc.).

Close desk and file drawers when not in use.

Report burned out or missing lights.

Report any uneven or broken pavement, sidewalks, or handrails.

NEVER stand on a chair or other object to reach a high object. Always use a ladder or step stool.
Exercise caution on stairs; do not skip steps and never jump from the last step.

Use handrails.

Do not run.

Report any unsafe conditions.

Preventing Falls from Height

Staff members working at heights over four feet where no guard rails are provided to protect
against falls must use a personal fall arrest device while working. Additionally, staff members
working on scaffolding, indoor or outdoor personnel lifts must wear a personal fall arrest device.
Prior to assigning staff to work a task or job that has an unprotected fall hazard or requires the
use of scaffolding or personnel lifts, Supervisory staff will hold a 5~10-minute meeting with staff
assigned to the task to accomplish the following:

Ensure that staff understands that a personal fall arrest system must be used when performing
the job.

Ensure the staff understands the type of personal fall arrest equipment needed and how to use
it.

58



Ensure that staff has read and understands the fall control procedures and any additional PPE that
must be worn while completing the job.

A personal fall arrest system consists of a fall protection harness and lanyard with appropriate D
rings and tie off points as illustrated on the next page.

3

1. Tie-off Point

4. Shock-Absorbing
Lanyard
5. Cross-Arm Strap

= 7. Full-Body Harness
@
¥l

J

|

{
|
!

Py
| S —

13.

Staff using personnel lifts must work in pairs. One staff member must perform the work while
riding the lift. The second staff member must attend to the lift on the ground in case of a fall or
equipment malfunction.

Staff is prohibited from riding in the lift buckets of end loaders or other mobile equipment with
such capability.

Personal fall arrest systems must be inspected prior to use. Fall harnesses and lanyards must be
replaced if they have any of the following characteristics:

Equipment has been involved in a prior fall incident.

Equipment has rips, tears, or significant discoloration.

Equipment shows signs of burn or pock marks from open flame or welding operations.
Equipment has broken or loose hardware and buckles.

Vehicle Operator Safety

The District's Vehicle Operator Safety Program includes all rules and regulations for staff
operating Motor Vehicles, Powered Industrial Trucks and all other vehicles while performing work
related duties for the district. All operators of District owned vehicles are subject to the rules and
regulations of the type of vehicle operated as well as the general rules and requirements of the
Vehicle Operation Safety Program. A few important elements of this safety program are listed
below.

59



Vehicle Check-In/Check-Out Procedure

Vehicle Check Out: Only staff on the authorized vehicle operator list for Park District vans are allowed to
check out a Park District van from the PVCC. Please remember, Park District vehicles are for Park District
business only. Use of Park District vans or vehicles on personal business is prohibited.
e Step#1: Pick up keys from PVCC. You must sign the vehicle in and out.
e Step #2: Complete a Vehicle Inspection Checklist prior to departing with the vehicle. Any safety
concerns must be addressed before departing with the vehicle.

Vehicle Check In: Be sure to return the vehicle on time. Return the vehicle with the interior in a clean
condition; clean up any mess you make in the vehicle. The vehicle must also be gassed up. Please be
considerate of other users. Do not return the vehicle almost out of gas.
e Step #1: Park the vehicle in its designated spot. Remove all personal items from the vehicle. Be
sure the vehicle is locked.
e Step #2: Turn in keys in PVCC.

General Vehicle Operator Requirements

e Staff must immediately notify their immediate supervisor of any traffic citations, arrests or
accidents resulting in a police report whether using an agency vehicle or their personal vehicle.
Immediate notification requires that notice be given on the day of the occurrence or if during
normal non-working hours, day off etc., on the next day worked.

* No staff member may use or be under the influence of alcohol or illegal drugs and/or possess or
transport alcohol or illegal drugs while operating a Park District vehicle.

e |f staff is currently prescribed medicine that may affect alertness and ability to operate vehicles
or machinery the operator is prohibited from being under the influence of or using these
prescription medications during working hours that require them to operate vehicles or
machinery.

e All operators of vehicles equip with seatbelts may only operate the vehicle when properly
wearing a seatbelt. All passengers of motaor vehicles must also be properly wearing seatbelts
before the vehicle is in motion.

e The use of a cell phone by the operator of a vehicle is prohibited when the vehicle is in motion
or in any way considered to be in traffic. Hands free devices for cell phones do not exempt
vehicle operators from this requirement. Similarly, the operator of a vehicle may not send or
receive text messages or email from a cell phone or any other portable electronic device while
the vehicle is in motion or in any way considered to be in traffic.

e [f children under the age of 8 are transported in a Park District van, or minivan, they must be
seated using a child restraint system. Further, children under the age of 8 may not ride in the
front seat of any agency vehicle.

* Staff may not use District vehicles for any personal purpose. District vehicles are designated for
District business purposes only. Similarly, District vehicles, except for golf carts, may not be
operated by anyone other than District staff.

e Loading of passengers into a District vehicle will be done from the curb side only. No one may
enter a District vehicle from the street side of the vehicle except the operator of the vehicle.

e Operators of District vehicles that transport guests must be at least 21 years of age.

60



Regulated Commercial Vehicle Operator Requirements

In addition to the General Vehicle Operator Requirements, Operators of Regulated Commercial Motor
Vehicles must abide by the requirements of the State of Illinois. Please note the differences in driver
licensing requirements and drug/alcohol use regulations.

All drivers of Commercial Motor Vehicles for the Morton Grove Park District must be at least 21
years old.

All operators of Regulated Commercial Motor Vehicles must submit to periodic DOT regulated
fitness for duty physicals and random drug/alcohol testing.

All newly hired staff who will be Commercial Motor Vehicle drivers must have submitted an
application that states his/her name, social security number, and the identification number,
class and state issuing the Commercial Driver’s License. This information must be maintained on
record for at least 3 years after the driver’'s employment with the Morton Grove Park District
has terminated.

All Drivers of Commercial Motor Vehicles for the Morton Grove Park District must have the
proper classification of CDL required to operate a Regulated Commercial Motor Vehicle of the
type and classification he/she is required to operate. The license presented must be current and
not in revoked, expired, or suspended status and the Driver must only possess a license from
one state.

All Drivers of Commercial Motor Vehicles for the Morton Grove Park District must be able to
read and speak the English language well enough to be able to read road signs, converse with
the public, respond to official inquiries and make entries on reports and records.

A driver who receives notice that his/her license has been revoked, suspended, or otherwise
withdrawn must notify the Morton Grove Park District of the contents of the notice before the
end of the business day following the receipt of the notice.

No driver will operate a commercial motor vehicle while his or her ability or alertness is
impaired, likely to become impaired because of iliness, fatigue, or any other cause to make it
unsafe to begin or continue to operate the vehicle.

No driver of a commercial vehicle shall be on duty and possess or be under the influence of the
following drugs or other substances unless under the instructions of a licensed medical
practitioner who has advised the driver and the employer in signed correspondence that the
substance will not impair the driver’s ability to operate the commercial motor vehicle safely.
Schedule | substances as indicated in chapter 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations part
1308.11. The list of banned substances in this chapter can be found attached to the appendix of
this program.

Any amphetamine or amphetamine derivative (i.e., “pep” pills, “bennies” etc.)

Any narcotic drug or narcotic derivative, or any other substance to a degree that renders the
driver incapable of safely operating the commercial vehicle.

No driver of a commercial motor vehicle will have in his or her possession or use a radar
detecting device while in operation of a commercial motor vehicle.

General Vehicle Operator Safety Rules

L ]

L ]

No vehicle shall be driven up to anyone standing in front of a fixed object.

No vehicle shall be driven directly up to a fixed object such as a wall, picnic bench, tree etc.
Vehicle Operators will follow the rules and laws of public roadways when operating vehicles on
public roadways.

61



e Arms or legs are prohibited from being or outside the cab/passenger area of the vehicle while the
vehicle is in motion.

e When left unattended all controls for the vehicle will be in the off position and gears set in the
park (or neutral) position and emergency brakes will be set. Keys will be taken from the vehicle if
the operator will be more than 25 feet away from the vehicle or the vehicle or its passengers are
out of sight of the operator.

s Vehicle Operators will yield the right of way to pedestrians, fire trucks, ambulances, police cars or
any other emergency vehicles.

e Vehicle Operators are required to look in the direction of travel (forward or reverse) and keep a
clear view of the path of travel while traveling in either direction. If view of the path of travel
becomes blocked, the Vehicle operator must immediately stop the vehicle and wait for the
blockage to be cleared before continuing.

¢ Horseplay including stunt driving and drag racing are strictly prohibited.

s Apre-trip inspection must be thoroughly completed by the Vehicle Operator before operating the
vehicle. All instructions on the inspection form must be followed.

e Headlights, running lights or work lights on vehicles must be turned on in darkness and/or low
light/ low visibility situations. When weather is poor, all headlights, work lights or running lights
must be turned on when the vehicle is in operation or in the public roadway.

¢ Vehicle Operators must avoid always running over loose objects in the path of travel, except when
avoiding the loose object would cause the operator to swerve into another lane of traffic or turn
abruptly.

e Vehicle drivers must always look ahead in the path of travel and plan for loose objects in the path
of travel.

e Vehicle Operators must reduce speed to a safe level when negotiating turns and turn the steering
wheel in the smooth sweeping motion. Except when at very low speed, the steering wheel will
be turned at a moderate even rate.

* Upon encountering a pedestrian on a park pathway vehicle operators must slow down below 10
miles per hour, pull to the right-hand side and off the pathway where possible.

e Vehicle Operators will be required to slow down below posted local speed limits and the Morton
Grove Park District speed limit during poor weather or roadway conditions.

e Vehicle Operators will be required to avoid operation of any Park District vehicle if using
prescription or over the counter medication that will affect the ability to operate a vehicle.

e Vehicle Operators will be required to always conform to the principles of defensive
driving/operation.

¢ Vehicle Operators will be required to adhere to the specific safety rules pertaining to their vehicles
as well as any safety rules for specific operations such as loading or unloading, parking, or fueling.

14. RECREATION SAFETY

Abuse and Neglected Child Reporting Act

The district is required to report to the child abuse hotline whenever there is reasonable.
belief that a child is being abused or neglected. The hotline operates 24 hours per day, 7

days per week, 365 days per year. If any type of child abuse is suspected, notify the immediate
Supervisor or the Executive Director.



Child Care Safety Rules

Staff are not allowed to administer medication unless the parent has notified the district office of
medication needs and has signed the Medication Dispensing Information form.

Do not allow any children to leave the boundaries of the Program. Be aware of any strangers in
the parks. Do not allow children to live with anyone but a parent, or previously approved
guardian.

Staff are not allowed to hit or spank any participant in the Program. Appropriate discipline
procedures should be followed as outlined in the camp staff manual.

Staff should not assist any child in the bathroom facilities.

If a stray dog should enter park district property, phone the Park Patrol immediately. Do not
approach the dog or allow any of the children near the dog.

On days where the heat index is 90 degrees or above, periodic breaks (every 30 min. to 1 hr.)
should be taken to drink plenty of fluids.

Keep any hazardous chemicals or dangerous objects away from the reach of children.

Do not leave personal bags or purses where children can have easy access.

Keep all sharp objects (scissors, letter openers, etc.) out of reach of children.

When leaving the district building for outside activities, bring a first aid kit and a park district cell
phone. Staff is responsible for refilling the kit as needed.

Counselors/teachers must have emergency information on each participant when they leave the
district building.

Playground Safety Rules

Rings/

Climbi

A playground Supervisor may be considered a Day Camp Counselor, Preschool Teacher, or any
individual that acts as an overseer of children participating in or using District playground
equipment.

All playground Supervisors should be trained in basic first aid & CPR.

A playground Supervisor must be located on any playground used by children participating in
District programs.

Do not permit too many children to play on a single piece of equipment. Observe play patterns
to identify any unsafe behaviors.

Do not roughhouse or play tag on or near any playground equipment. No objects carried in hands
are allowed when on any apparatus.

Never allow vehicles, mowers, or other mobile equipment in proximity to playing children.

Monkey Bars
Equipment is to be used for hanging or traveling, not for gymnastic stunts.
One person should travel at least halfway before the second one begins. Only one person
should stand on any approach landing.
Drop from rings onto an approved surface only. Do not swing out over a hard surface and drop.

ng Apparatus
Never hang by the knees, stand on top, or jump from the apparatus.
Keep both hands in contact with the apparatus when climbing or descending.
Do not play below any climbing apparatus.

63



Slides
= (Climb one step at a time, one person at a time.
* Do not climb up the slide chute.
= Slide down in a sitting position, feet forward.

Swings
* One individual per swing in a seated position.
¢ Do not run behind or in front of swings in motion.
¢ Do not jump from the swings.

Bats and Balls
* Bats may be swung in approved areas only. Do not throw bats.
* Do not climb the baseball backstops.
= Basketball and Volleyballs are not to be kicked.

15. Other Safety Topics

Personal Protective Equipment

The Occupational Health and Safety Administration and the Illinois Department of Labor require District
staff that work with any hazard that could cause injury to the hands, feet, head, face, eyes, ears, skin, or
respiratory system to wear appropriate PPE.

All positions of employment and foreseeable work tasks have been analyzed for such safety hazards using
a PPE hazard assessment. The PPE hazard assessment is used by the Risk Manager and Supervisors in
determining required PPE for staff performing certain tasks or in specific jobs throughout the district.
Supervisors will inform staff of the specific types of PPE required on their positions before staff completes
new hire arientation.

If assigned a specific task, staff will be informed by Supervisors of the appropriate PPE to be used before
the task is started. In all cases, staff is responsible for wearing required PPE. For more information the
program, see the Risk Manager or a Supervisor.

Hearing Conservation

To protect staff from noise induced hearing loss, the district has implemented a Hearing Conservation
program. The program consists of three main parts, monitoring for potentially harmful noise exposures,
protecting against potentially harmful noise exposures, and monitoring staff that is exposed to potentially
harmful noise exposures.

Noise Monitoring Results

All District work locations and equipment with a potential for a high level of noise exposure are monitored
every three years for a potentially harmful level of noise exposure (85 decibels and above). Staff must
wear hearing protection when using equipment from the list below:

e Sod Cutter

e  Workman utility cart
® Reel mowers

64



Bobcat Mobile Equipment/End loaders
Park Maintenance Tractors
Weed whackers

Rotor Tillers
Chipper/Shredder

Leaf Blowers

Partable Air Compressors
Chainsaws

Brush Mower

Hedge Trimmer

Disc Saws

Protecting against harmful noise exposures
Staff using equipment or working around equipment with harmful noise exposures must wear approved
hearing protection.

Monitoring staff exposed to harmful noise levels

Staff exposed to a time weighted average of 85 decibels or above will be given an audiometric test by a
qualified physician to judge the effect of excessive noise on such staff members. To see if staff qualifies
for this program, please see the Risk Manager.

C. Respiratory Protection

Staff are exposed to harmful dusts, fogs, fumes, mists, gases, smokes, sprays, and vapors during work
operations may require the use of a respiratory protection device. Staff must consult the Material Safety
Data Sheet (“SDS") of each chemical substance used for respiratory protection requirements if:

e The substance used is toxic
* The substance is used in a confined space
e The substance is used in an area with little or no ventilation.

Staff is responsible for following all applicable safety guidelines and rules contained in the SDS regarding
respiratory protection as well as instructions given by Supervisory staff and/or the Risk Manager regarding
the use of respiratory protection.

The district provides two types of respiratory protection to staff, dust masks and air purifying respirators.
The following general rules apply to the use of these respiratory protection devices.

e Staff will be trained in the proper use of respiratory protection devices including applicability of
each device before use is permitted.

e Staff must complete and pass a medical evaluation conducted by a physician of the district’s
choosing before certain use of a respiratory protection device is permitted.

e Staff will complete fit testing and fit check procedures for a specific respirator conducted by the
Risk Manager before use of a respiratory protection device is permitted.

e Staff will return all used respirators to the Risk Manager after use for disposal, sanitation, and
storage.

65



Blood borne Pathogens
The district’s primary objective in developing an HIV/HBV/AIDS/Infectious Diseases program is to
minimize the district employees’ exposure to HIV, HBV, and other infectious diseases.

The district educates employees to reduce the risk of exposure to a blood borne pathogen. The Blood
borne Pathogen’s material covers:

Explanation of the Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV), the Hepatitis B (HBV), AIDS and other
infectious disease risks in the district environment.

Description of how HIV, HBS, AIDS and other infectious diseases are contracted and spread.
Explanation of safety precautions, universal precautions and procedures designed to minimize
the risks.

Explanation of the appropriate actions to take after contact with another person’s blood and/or
other bodily fluids.

Ongoing monitoring of medical and legal information and updating of information as
appropriate.

Training

Required for all new employees.

Provided by the District at no cost to the employees during regular working hours.
Reviewed annually for designated first responders.

An accessible copy of the lllinois Department of Labor’s regulations relating to Blood borne
Pathogens is in Human Resources.

If performing CPR or First Aid

All body fluids (blood, saliva, secretions from open sores or wounds, and other body wastes)
must be contacted only while wearing latex exam gloves.

All CPR/Automated External Defibrillator (“AED”) and first aid care must be given while wearing
latex exam gloves.

CPR will always be given using a CPR barrier shield.

Dispose of contaminated bandages, gloves, and barrier devices in a red biohazard bag. Seal the
bag and place it in the nearest trash receptacle. Do not place sharp objects in the biohazard
bags.

Wash hands with soap and water for at least 15-30 seconds after removal of gloves.

If cleaning up spilled bodily fluids

All body fluids (blood, saliva, secretions from open sores or wounds, and other body wastes) must
be contacted only while wearing latex exam gloves.

Thoroughly clean up blood and bodily fluids. Absorbent toweling, cloths, and/or powders may be
used. Never pick up broken glass with hands.

All toweling, cloths and contaminated items must be disposed of in a red biohazard bag. Broken
glass and other contaminated sharp objects must be kept in a sharp’s container.

Disinfect the area of the spill. Clean spill areas with a solution of 1 part bleach to 10 parts waters.
Dispose of contaminated items, including gloves in a red biohazard bag. Seal the bag and place in
the nearest trash receptacle. Do not place sharp objects in the biohazard bags.

Hands must be washed with soap and water for at least 15-30 seconds after removal of gloves.

66



Hazard Communication-SDS

The lllinois Toxic Substance Disclosure to Employees Act (P.A. 38-240) and the Hazard Communication
Standard (29 CFR 1910.1200) are both laws that give agency employees in Illinois a right to know about
the hazardous materials in the workplace.

The district has developed a comprehensive Hazard Communication (“Hazcom”) Program to ensure that
information on the hazards of chemicals used in our operations is communicated to our employees. The
program is intended to meet all requirements of the above regulations.

The Right-to-Know Law requires the district to train employees about the health and safety hazards of
the chemicals in the workplace. A “hazardous chemical” is any chemical which can be a physical or
health hazard. A few examples of “hazardous chemicals” used in the district’s operations include pool
chemicals, custodial supplies, fuels, paints, pesticides, automotive products, compressed gases, and
fertilizers.

Safety Data Sheets
SDS is documents that explain the chemical components and hazards that staff members are exposed to
while performing jobs. SDS contains the following safety information about the chemicals staff work with
or are exposed to:

e |dentity of Material and Manufacturer

e Hazardous Ingredients

e Physical and Chemical Characteristics

e Fire and Explosion Hazard Data

e Reactivity Data

e Health Hazard Data (Limits, Symptoms, etc.)

e Precautions for Safe Handling

e Control Measures and first aid

Staff are responsible for following the safe handling procedures contained in the chemical’s SDS and being
familiar with possible physical effects of the chemical and first aid procedures when using any hazardous
chemical.

Chemical Labeling
All chemical containers must be properly labeled as to the contents of the container. Proper labeling may
consist of manufacturer labeling, or Hazardous Material Identification System (“HMIS”) labeling.

Containers that do not have manufacturer labeling must have HMIS labeling. If staff encounters unlabeled
chemical containers, contact the Risk Manager immediately.

For more information on the Hazard Communication Program, Safety Data Sheets, or chemical container
labeling, please consult the nearest Right to Know station.

Facility Medical Emergency Protocol

¢ The information provided in this section is a basic outline of Facility Medical Emergency Response
and CPR/AED protocol.

67



Activate the Emergency Response Procedure for the facility. Facility Medical Emergency Response
Procedures for individual District facilities can be found on the District’s Common drive.

Staff designated as a facility first responder, must respond to the scene of the emergency
immediately. First responders must bring latex exam gloves, a CPR barrier mask, first aid kit and
AED (if available).

Begin CPR/AED protocol as necessary.

Assess scene safety.

Assess responsiveness. Tap shoulder and shout “Are you OK? |am a trained CPR responder, and
I can help.” If the victim is unresponsive be sure emergency services has been called (dial 9-911
form any District phone).

Perform Initial Assessment:

68



MORTON GROVE PARK DISTRICT

STAFF ACKNOWLEDGMENT
I, the undersigned staff member, acknowledge receiving a copy of the Morton Grove Park District’s
(“District”) Staff Safety and Risk Management Manual (“Manual”).
I acknowledge my responsibility to abide by the safety rules and guidelines in this Manual.

| understand and agree that the primary reason | am accountable for this information is the safety
and wellbeing of me, coworkers, and guests of the district.

| further understand that violations of the rules and guidelines contained in this Manual may subject
me to disciplinary action as outlined in the Personnel Policy Manual. Accordingly, | recognize that no
portion of this Manual establishes a contractual obligation on my behalf or on the part of the district.

| understand that this Manual may be updated with the Board of Commissioners approval and that
staff will be notified in writing of any such changes.

Employee Name (Printed)

Employee Signature

Date

69



Board Updates & Information




Morton Grove Park District

UPDATE & INFORMATION

October 18. 2023

RECREATION AND PROGRAMMING REPORT — SUE BRAUBACH

General/Special Events

Staff has completed their winter programs that will be advertised in the next Activity Guide.

e Susan and Claire will be attending Professional Development School November 5-8",
e A new audio receiver was purchased and installed in the dance studio.
e Staff have been finalizing numbers for 2024 budgets.
e Upcoming Events:
e Event Date Time Place
Cold Brews October 14 1:00-5:00 pm Harrer Park or PVCC
Family Kite Fly October 21% 10:00am-4:00 pm | Harrer Park
Halloween Family Fest October 27t 4:00-8:00 pm PVCC
Happy Howl-O-Ween October 215 10:00-11:00 am Prairie View Park
Turkey Shoot November 11" | 11:30-12:30 pm PVCC
Fitness
e N/A
Athletics
e The Adult Softball Leagues are going well and set to conclude in late October.
e The Fall Men’s 16” Tournament will run Saturday, October 6 with six teams registered.
e Adult Pickleball classes are running Wednesday and Thursday evenings at Harrer Park.
e Fall outdoor field rentals will be concluding Halloween weekend.
e Open gym and indoor rental groups will continue using the PVCC gym into the fall.

Hot Shots will begin their second fall session of classes on Monday, October 30™, There are
currently 56 participants registered for these classes.

Dance/Cultural Arts/Sponsorship

The first fall session of Dog and Puppy Training Classes began on September 215t with seven
dogs and six puppies.

Happy Howl-O-Ween will take place on October 21*, 10:00-11:00am. Prizes for Funniest,
Scariest, Cutest, Best Dog/Owner Team plus Best Dog Trick will be awarded.

Abracadabra Magic has 15 participants currently enrolled for the class on October 139,

The Morton Grove Singers began rehearsals on September 21** with eight singers.
Enrollment remains open for interested adults to register. Singers will perform at Light Up
the Park on December 1% and at the MGCCI event at Moretti’s on December 5™.

l1|Page



* Sponsorship Program packet for 2023-2024 was updated, posted on website and, sent to
current sponsors up for renewal.

Camps/Pre-School/Kinder Odyssey

* Preschool and Kinder Odyssey has been running smoothly. October will be filled with
Fall/Halloween projects and activities.

e Teachers are planning low-key Halloween celebrations with their students. Programs at
PVCC will trick or treat through the offices.

e Indoor playground began on Thursday, October 5'". We've expanded the times to 9:30-
11:30 am.

e Pictures for the preschools will be taken on October 11" and 12t by BellaVie studio.
Parents will be able to place orders online if they choose.

Aquatics/Gap/B4 School/BASE

e B4 School and BASE are also running smoothly. Halloween projects and activities have
started with the children.

e School Days Off Field trips for Thanksgiving and Winter Break are set and will be promoted
to the community.

e School Day Off October 9''- Children went bowling and had a great time.

e Many requests coming in for Fall Birthday Parties.

Marketing

e Work begins on the Winter Activity Guide, it goes to the printer on November 10",
Resident registration begins December 4'", nonresident begins December 11,

e Eblast and social media posts to announce the release of the activity guide, digital activity
guide available online on November 30",

e The first round of signage promoting Winter events goes up November 1 with second and
third round in December, and January.

e Eblast to go out, October 20", November 1 and November 24",

e \Website to have API key installed in preparation for the APl integration.

e \Website updates as needed.

e MGPG newsletter to be sent to schools early November.

2|Page



FINANCE DEPARTMENT REPORT - MAARTY O’BRIEN

We are in the process of completing the 2024 Capital Plan. The Capital Plan includes the
capital projects we hope to be completing in the next five years. Once the internal review is
completed, we will present the entire plan to the board for final approval.

For the board meeting on October 18™, we will be conducting a BINA hearing so that the
public can comment on the park district issuing approximately $1,0500,000 in general
obligation bonds. It should be noted that the majority of bond proceeds are allocated for
the payment of Oriole Pool bonds.

The 2024 preliminary budget is proceeding on schedule. The individual departments have
entered their budget requests, and | am in the process of analyzing the data. The next step
in this process is to meet with each department and determine any costs that can be
reduced or eliminated. We will conduct our public study session prior to the start of the
regular November board meeting to allow for comment from the board members and the
public.

HUMAN RESOURCES & RISK MANAGEMENT— MICHELLE TREVINO

[ ]

Mary our PDRMA Risk Management Consultant will be visiting the Morton Grove Park
District’s Safety Committee Meeting on October 26",

The Safety Committee will begin helping with the Slip, Trip, and Fall Assessments at the Park
District.

There are approximately six rentals in October.

There were zero workers' compensation claims.

There were zero unemployment claims.

PARKS AND MAINTENANCE REPORT — KEITH GORCZYCA

Austin Park’s field house underwent a roof replacement this month.

Upland Design provided a design for capturing runoff from Oketo Park’s ballfield.

Harrer Pool landscape plantings were replaced.

Ballfield lip repairs at all 5 Harrer ballfields.

Tree removal of the Maple in the southeast corner of the park over hanging neighbor’s roof.
Staff attended Conserv FS and Turface Wrigley Field Day. Picked up new ideas on ballfield
maintenance.

Work underway on Mansfield shade structures project.

3|Page



